
Page 1 of 2 

BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA FOR  
June 15, 2021 at 7:00 PM 

In accordance with Executive Order N-33-20, meeting to be held at 7:00 p.m. via teleconferencing 
[call (866) 899-4679 Conference ID:  785-518-013] and anyone interested may also call in. The 
District Office at 20863 Stevens Creek Boulevard, Suite 100, Cupertino, California is closed. 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
4. PUBLIC COMMENTARY – This area is reserved for items not listed on the agenda.  The Brown Act does not

allow discussion of or action on items not on the agenda.  The Board may briefly respond to comments or questions
from members of the public, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or direct staff to
place the issue on a future agenda. There is a three (3) minute limit for individual speakers.

4.A. Visitor Commentary 
4.B. Agency Representatives 
4.C. Board Commentary 

5. PUBLIC HEARING

5.A. Public Hearing on Taxroll Collection for FY2021-2022 

1. Staff Presentation
2. Open Public Hearing and Receive Testimony
3. Close Public Hearing
4. Board Discussion
5. Board Action – Adopt Resolution No. 286

6. CLOSED SESSION

6.A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL –EXISTING LITIGATION
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) Name of Case:  County Sanitation District 2-3, West Valley 
Sanitation District, Cupertino Sanitary District, Burbank Sanitary District and the City of Milpitas v. The 
City of San Jose, The City of Santa Clara, and Does 1 through 50 inclusive. 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR

7.A. Approval of Minutes.  Board action required: Approve Meeting Minutes from 5/18/2021

8. WARRANTS

8.A. Approval of Warrants.  Board action required: Approve five (5) warrants.

1. Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. (District Management Services and BSD CIPs)
2. First Tech Federal Credit Union (Board of Directors’ Payroll)
3. Armento and Hynes, LLP (District Legal Services)
4. Richard Tanaka (District Advisor Services)
5. Cupertino Sanitary District (Common Interest Agreement – Milpitas Portion of Invoices 4/1/2019 thru 

12/31/2020)

9. NEW BUSINESS

9.A. District Budget FY2021-2022.  Board action required: Review and approve District Budget. 

9.B. District Insurance. Board action required:  Review and approve District Insurance Renewal Proposal. 



Burbank Sanitary District  June 15, 2021 
Regular Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 2 

Page 2 of 2 

 
10. OLD BUSINESS 

10.A. Status of SRF Loan and Design Update. Board action required: None. 

10.B. Long Range Financial Planning.  Board action required:  None. 

10.C. GreenWaste Recovery, Inc. Update.  Board action required: None. 

10.D. District Website Update. Board action required: None. 

10.E. Form 470 Update. Board action required:  None 

10.F. COVID-19 Update.  Board action required:  None.  

 
11. HOUSEKEEPING ITEMS 

11.A. Updates on Housekeeping Items. Board action required: None. 

11.B. Agenda Items for Next Upcoming Meeting. Board action required: None. 

12. ADJOURNMENT: NEXT REGULAR MEETING – Tuesday, July 6, 2021 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special assistance to participate in a District meeting, or you need a copy of the agenda, or the 
agenda packet, in an appropriate alternative format, please contact the District Administrator’s office at (408) 255-2137. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting or time when services are needed will assist the District staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or 
service.   In accordance with California Government Code Section 54957.5, any writing or document that is a public record, relates to an open session agenda item, and is 
distributed less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting will be made available for public inspection at the District Office. If, however, the document or writing is not 
distributed until the regular meeting to which it relates, then the document or writing will be made available to the public at the location of the meeting, as listed on this 
agenda.  
*  Pursuant to Government Code 54954 subsection b, subsection 4, this facility constitutes the closest meeting facility for the Burbank Sanitary District, since the District 
has no other meeting facility within the boundaries of the territory, over which the Burbank Sanitary District exercises jurisdiction. 



 
BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
 

5.  PUBLIC HEARING 
 

   
5.A.1 Staff Presentation 
5.A.2 Open Public Hearing and Receive Testimony 
5.A.3 Close Public Hearing 
5.A.4 Board Discussion 
5.A.5 Board Action – Adopt Resolution No.286 

    
 
 



Burbank Sanitary District ‐ FY2021‐2022 Tax Roll Summary 

FY2020-21 FY2020-21 FY2021-22 FY2021-22 Difference % Difference
Total Amount Total User Total Amount Total User from Last Year from Last Year

Residential ‐$                     
Single Family Residence 718,449.48$        791 718,449.48$           791 ‐$                      0%
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) 127,787.76$        201 129,695.04$           204 1,907.28$            1% New ADUs
Multiple Family Residence 446,904.00$        600 446,904.00$           600 ‐$                      0%

Commercial
Retail 32,231.60$           42 32,496.43$             42 264.83$                1%

Garages 2,820.96$             1 2,820.96$               1 ‐$                      0%
Restaurants 9,247.68$             2 8,189.76$               2 (1,057.92)$           ‐11% Less water consumption
School 4,145.12$             1 2,792.45$               1 (1,352.67)$           ‐33% Less water consumption
Total 1,341,586.60$     1638 1,341,348.12$       1641 (238.48)$              0%

Users Comments



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44

A B
APN Amount

274-16-015 $13,407.12
274-16-016 $908.28
274-16-017 $908.28
274-16-018 $2,234.52
274-16-019 $908.28
274-16-020 $1,544.04
274-16-021 $908.28
274-16-031 $2,979.36
274-16-032 $908.28
274-16-033 $908.28
274-16-034 $2,234.52
274-16-035 $1,544.04
274-16-036 $4,469.04
274-16-037 $1,544.04
274-16-038 $908.28
274-16-039 $1,544.04
274-16-040 $908.28
274-16-041 $711.12
274-16-042 $3,724.20
274-16-043 $1,544.04
274-16-044 $908.28
274-16-045 $4,469.04
274-16-046 $2,979.36
274-16-047 $1,544.04
274-16-048 $2,234.52
274-16-052 $711.12
274-16-053 $3,690.48
274-16-057 $4,469.04
274-16-058 $1,544.04
274-16-059 $908.28
274-16-060 $908.28
274-16-061 $908.28
274-16-062 $1,544.04
274-16-064 $908.28
274-16-069 $711.12
274-16-071 $908.28
274-17-002 $908.28
274-17-003 $908.28
274-17-004 $908.28
274-17-005 $1,544.04
274-17-006 $2,234.52
274-17-007 $908.28
274-17-008 $1,544.04

1/23

Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87

274-17-009 $908.28
274-17-010 $908.28
274-17-018 $711.12
274-17-019 $711.12
274-17-020 $711.12
274-17-021 $711.12
274-17-022 $711.12
274-17-023 $711.12
274-17-025 $908.28
274-17-026 $2,979.36
274-17-027 $2,234.52
274-17-028 $1,544.04
274-17-030 $2,234.52
274-17-031 $2,234.52
274-17-032 $2,234.52
274-17-033 $2,979.36
274-17-034 $908.28
274-17-035 $908.28
274-17-036 $2,234.52
274-17-037 $1,544.04
274-17-039 $711.12
274-17-043 $1,544.04
274-17-044 $1,544.04
274-17-045 $1,544.04
274-17-046 $1,544.04
274-17-047 $2,979.36
274-17-048 $5,213.88
274-17-049 $908.28
274-17-050 $908.28
274-17-051 $5,958.72
274-17-052 $908.28
274-17-053 $2,234.52
274-17-054 $1,544.04
274-17-055 $908.28
274-17-056 $908.28
274-17-057 $908.28
274-17-058 $2,979.36
274-17-059 $2,234.52
274-17-060 $3,724.20
274-17-061 $5,213.88
274-17-062 $2,234.52
274-17-063 $1,544.04
274-17-071 $758.13

2/23



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130

274-17-073 $908.28
274-17-074 $2,234.52
274-17-077 $908.28
274-17-081 $2,979.36
274-17-082 $2,979.36
274-17-083 $5,958.72
274-17-084 $4,469.04
274-17-086 $1,544.04
274-17-088 $711.12
274-18-001 $908.28
274-18-002 $711.12
274-18-004 $711.12
274-18-008 $711.12
274-18-009 $908.28
274-18-011 $908.28
274-18-014 $908.28
274-18-015 $908.28
274-18-016 $908.28
274-18-017 $1,544.04
274-18-018 $908.28
274-18-019 $908.28
274-18-021 $4,469.04
274-18-022 $1,544.04
274-18-023 $908.28
274-18-024 $2,979.36
274-18-025 $2,234.52
274-18-026 $1,544.04
274-18-027 $908.28
274-18-028 $1,544.04
274-18-029 $908.28
274-18-030 $5,213.88
274-18-031 $5,213.88
274-18-032 $1,544.04
274-18-033 $908.28
274-18-035 $2,979.36
274-18-036 $5,958.72
274-18-037 $908.28
274-18-038 $908.28
274-18-039 $908.28
274-18-040 $908.28
274-18-041 $908.28
274-18-042 $1,544.04
274-18-043 $908.28

3/23

Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173

274-18-044 $1,544.04
274-18-045 $908.28
274-18-046 $908.28
274-18-047 $908.28
274-18-048 $1,544.04
274-18-049 $1,544.04
274-18-050 $1,544.04
274-18-051 $4,469.04
274-18-052 $908.28
274-18-053 $2,234.52
274-18-054 $908.28
274-18-055 $908.28
274-18-056 $908.28
274-18-057 $7,448.40
274-18-058 $1,544.04
274-18-059 $908.28
274-18-060 $2,979.36
274-18-061 $1,544.04
274-18-062 $1,544.04
274-18-063 $1,544.04
274-18-064 $2,979.36
274-18-065 $908.28
274-18-066 $908.28
274-18-067 $908.28
274-18-068 $908.28
274-18-069 $908.28
274-18-070 $908.28
274-18-071 $908.28
274-18-072 $908.28
274-18-073 $908.28
274-18-075 $711.12
274-18-080 $4,469.04
274-18-081 $4,469.04
274-19-001 $908.28
274-19-002 $908.28
274-19-003 $908.28
274-19-004 $1,544.04
274-19-005 $4,469.04
274-19-006 $908.28
274-19-007 $1,544.04
274-19-008 $908.28
274-19-009 $1,544.04
274-19-010 $1,544.04

4/23



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216

274-19-011 $908.28
274-19-012 $2,234.52
274-19-013 $2,979.36
274-19-014 $908.28
274-19-015 $908.28
274-19-016 $908.28
274-19-017 $1,544.04
274-19-018 $1,544.04
274-19-019 $3,724.20
274-19-020 $1,544.04
274-19-021 $908.28
274-19-022 $908.28
274-19-023 $908.28
274-19-027 $908.28
274-19-030 $908.28
274-19-031 $908.28
274-19-032 $4,469.04
274-19-033 $1,544.04
274-19-034 $908.28
274-19-035 $1,544.04
274-19-036 $4,469.04
274-19-037 $908.28
274-19-038 $908.28
274-19-041 $908.28
274-19-042 $908.28
274-19-044 $908.28
274-19-045 $908.28
274-19-046 $1,544.04
274-19-047 $1,544.04
274-19-048 $1,544.04
274-19-050 $2,234.52
274-19-051 $2,979.36
274-19-052 $908.28
274-19-062 $908.28
274-19-055 $2,979.36
274-19-056 $908.28
274-19-057 $908.28
274-19-058 $908.28
274-19-061 $2,234.52
274-41-006 $908.28
274-41-007 $1,544.04
274-41-008 $908.28
274-41-009 $908.28

5/23

Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259

274-41-010 $908.28
274-41-011 $908.28
274-41-012 $1,544.04
274-41-013 $2,234.52
274-41-014 $1,544.04
274-41-015 $908.28
274-41-016 $908.28
274-41-017 $908.28
274-41-018 $908.28
274-41-019 $908.28
274-41-020 $908.28
274-41-021 $908.28
274-41-022 $908.28
274-41-024 $908.28
274-41-025 $908.28
274-41-026 $908.28
274-41-027 $1,544.04
274-41-028 $908.28
274-41-029 $1,544.04
274-41-030 $908.28
274-41-031 $908.28
274-41-032 $908.28
274-41-033 $908.28
274-41-034 $908.28
274-41-035 $908.28
274-41-036 $1,544.04
274-41-037 $908.28
274-41-038 $908.28
274-41-042 $2,234.52
274-41-044 $1,544.04
274-41-047 $1,544.04
274-41-048 $1,544.04
274-41-049 $908.28
274-41-053 $2,979.36
274-41-054 $1,544.04
274-41-055 $908.28
274-41-056 $908.28
274-41-064 $711.12
274-41-068 $711.12
274-41-074 $4,468.80
274-41-080 $1,544.04
274-41-081 $6,703.56
274-41-091 $1,544.04

6/23



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302

274-41-092 $908.28
274-41-093 $908.28
274-41-095 $2,234.52
274-41-096 $2,234.52
274-41-099 $711.12
274-41-101 $711.12
274-41-103 $1,544.04
274-41-104 $908.28
277-05-004 $2,820.96
277-05-005 $711.12
277-05-006 $711.12
277-05-008 $711.12
277-05-011 $1,455.96
277-05-013 $908.28
277-05-015 $908.28
277-05-016 $908.28
277-05-017 $908.28
277-05-018 $908.28
277-05-019 $908.28
277-05-021 $908.28
277-05-022 $1,544.04
277-05-023 $1,544.04
277-05-024 $2,979.36
277-05-026 $908.28
277-05-027 $2,234.52
277-05-028 $2,979.36
277-05-030 $711.12
277-06-001 $2,979.36
277-06-002 $1,544.04
277-06-003 $2,234.52
277-06-004 $2,979.36
277-06-005 $908.28
277-06-006 $2,234.52
277-06-007 $908.28
277-06-008 $908.28
277-06-009 $908.28
277-06-010 $908.28
277-06-011 $1,544.04
277-06-012 $908.28
277-06-013 $2,979.36
277-06-014 $908.28
277-06-015 $1,544.04
277-06-017 $1,544.04

7/23

Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345

277-06-018 $908.28
277-06-019 $908.28
277-06-020 $1,544.04
277-06-021 $711.12
277-06-025 $711.12
277-06-026 $908.28
277-06-027 $908.28
277-06-028 $1,544.04
277-06-029 $908.28
277-06-030 $908.28
277-06-031 $1,544.04
277-06-032 $908.28
277-06-033 $908.28
277-06-034 $908.28
277-06-035 $908.28
277-06-036 $908.28
277-06-037 $1,544.04
277-06-038 $1,544.04
277-06-039 $2,234.52
277-06-040 $2,979.36
277-06-041 $908.28
277-06-042 $908.28
277-06-043 $1,544.04
277-06-044 $1,544.04
277-06-045 $2,979.36
277-06-046 $1,544.04
277-07-001 $908.28
277-07-002 $908.28
277-07-003 $908.28
277-07-004 $908.28
277-07-005 $908.28
277-07-006 $908.28
277-07-007 $908.28
277-07-008 $908.28
277-07-009 $908.28
277-07-010 $908.28
277-07-011 $908.28
277-07-012 $908.28
277-07-013 $1,544.04
277-07-014 $908.28
277-07-015 $1,544.04
277-07-016 $908.28
277-07-017 $908.28

8/23



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388

277-07-018 $908.28
277-07-020 $908.28
277-07-021 $908.28
277-07-022 $908.28
277-07-023 $908.28
277-07-029 $711.12
277-07-030 $908.28
277-07-031 $908.28
277-07-032 $1,544.04
277-07-033 $908.28
277-07-034 $1,544.04
277-07-035 $908.28
277-07-036 $908.28
277-07-037 $1,544.04
277-07-038 $2,234.52
277-07-039 $1,544.04
277-07-040 $908.28
277-07-041 $908.28
277-07-042 $908.28
277-07-043 $908.28
277-07-044 $908.28
277-07-045 $908.28
277-07-046 $908.28
277-07-047 $1,544.04
277-07-048 $908.28
277-07-049 $1,544.04
277-07-050 $908.28
277-07-051 $908.28
277-07-052 $908.28
277-07-053 $1,544.04
277-07-054 $1,544.04
277-07-055 $2,945.64
277-07-056 $908.28
277-07-057 $908.28
277-08-001 $908.28
277-08-002 $908.28
277-08-003 $908.28
277-08-004 $908.28
277-08-005 $2,234.52
277-08-006 $908.28
277-08-007 $908.28
277-08-008 $908.28
277-08-009 $908.28

9/23

Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431

277-08-010 $1,544.04
277-08-011 $908.28
277-08-012 $908.28
277-08-013 $1,544.04
277-08-014 $2,234.52
277-08-015 $1,544.04
277-08-016 $908.28
277-08-017 $1,544.04
277-08-018 $908.28
277-08-019 $1,544.04
277-08-020 $908.28
277-08-023 $1,544.04
277-08-024 $1,544.04
277-08-025 $2,979.36
277-08-026 $908.28
277-08-027 $908.28
277-08-028 $908.28
277-08-029 $908.28
277-08-030 $711.12
277-08-031 $711.12
277-08-033 $908.28
277-08-034 $908.28
277-08-035 $2,234.52
277-08-036 $908.28
277-08-037 $908.28
277-08-038 $908.28
277-08-039 $1,544.04
277-08-040 $908.28
277-08-041 $908.28
277-08-042 $908.28
277-08-043 $1,544.04
277-08-044 $908.28
277-08-045 $1,544.04
277-08-046 $908.28
277-08-047 $908.28
277-08-048 $1,544.04
277-08-049 $908.28
277-08-050 $1,544.04
277-08-051 $1,544.04
277-08-052 $908.28
277-08-054 $908.28
277-08-055 $908.28
277-08-056 $908.28

10/23



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474

277-08-057 $908.28
277-08-058 $1,544.04
277-08-059 $2,234.52
277-08-060 $1,544.04
277-09-001 $1,544.04
277-09-002 $908.28
277-09-003 $908.28
277-09-004 $908.28
277-09-005 $908.28
277-09-006 $4,469.04
277-09-007 $1,544.04
277-09-008 $1,544.04
277-09-009 $908.28
277-09-010 $908.28
277-09-011 $908.28
277-09-012 $1,544.04
277-09-013 $2,234.52
277-09-014 $1,544.04
277-09-015 $908.28
277-09-016 $2,234.52
277-09-017 $908.28
277-09-018 $908.28
277-09-019 $908.28
277-09-020 $908.28
277-09-021 $908.28
277-09-022 $908.28
277-09-023 $1,544.04
277-09-024 $908.28
277-09-025 $1,544.04
277-09-026 $1,544.04
277-09-029 $4,432.08
277-09-030 $1,544.04
277-09-031 $908.28
277-09-032 $908.28
277-09-033 $908.28
277-09-034 $908.28
277-09-035 $908.28
277-09-036 $908.28
277-09-037 $908.28
277-09-038 $1,544.04
277-09-039 $908.28
277-09-040 $908.28
277-09-041 $908.28

11/23

Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517

277-09-042 $908.28
277-09-043 $908.28
277-09-044 $908.28
277-09-045 $908.28
277-09-046 $908.28
277-09-047 $908.28
277-09-048 $908.28
277-09-049 $908.28
277-09-050 $908.28
277-09-051 $2,234.52
277-09-052 $908.28
277-09-053 $908.28
277-09-054 $908.28
277-09-055 $908.28
277-09-056 $2,200.80
277-10-001 $908.28
277-10-002 $908.28
277-10-003 $908.28
277-10-004 $3,724.20
277-10-005 $1,544.04
277-10-006 $908.28
277-10-007 $1,544.04
277-10-008 $908.28
277-10-009 $908.28
277-10-010 $908.28
277-10-011 $908.28
277-10-012 $908.28
277-10-013 $908.28
277-10-014 $908.28
277-10-016 $908.28
277-10-017 $1,544.04
277-10-018 $1,544.04
277-10-019 $2,234.52
277-10-020 $908.28
277-10-021 $908.28
277-10-022 $908.28
277-10-023 $1,544.04
277-10-024 $908.28
277-10-026 $1,543.58
277-10-027 $711.12
277-10-029 $1,544.04
277-10-030 $908.28
277-10-031 $908.28

12/23



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560

277-10-032 $908.28
277-10-033 $2,979.36
277-10-036 $908.28
277-10-037 $4,469.04
277-10-038 $1,544.04
277-10-039 $908.28
277-10-041 $1,544.04
277-10-042 $908.28
277-10-043 $908.28
277-10-044 $908.28
277-10-045 $908.28
277-10-047 $908.28
277-10-048 $908.28
277-10-049 $1,544.04
277-10-050 $1,544.04
277-10-051 $908.28
277-10-053 $908.28
277-10-054 $1,544.04
277-10-055 $908.28
277-10-056 $908.28
277-10-057 $1,544.04
277-10-058 $908.28
277-10-059 $908.28
277-10-060 $908.28
277-11-001 $908.28
277-11-002 $908.28
277-11-003 $908.28
277-11-004 $1,544.04
277-11-005 $908.28
277-11-006 $908.28
277-11-007 $908.28
277-11-008 $2,234.52
277-11-009 $2,234.52
277-11-010 $1,544.04
277-11-011 $1,544.04
277-11-012 $1,544.04
277-11-013 $908.28
277-11-014 $908.28
277-11-015 $908.28
277-11-016 $908.28
277-11-017 $908.28
277-11-018 $908.28
277-11-019 $908.28

13/23

Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603

277-11-020 $908.28
277-11-021 $908.28
277-11-022 $2,234.52
277-11-023 $908.28
277-11-024 $908.28
277-11-025 $908.28
277-11-026 $908.28
277-11-030 $2,234.52
277-11-031 $2,979.36
277-11-032 $908.28
277-11-033 $908.28
277-11-034 $2,234.52
277-11-035 $908.28
277-11-036 $1,544.04
277-11-037 $908.28
277-11-038 $1,544.04
277-11-039 $908.28
277-11-040 $908.28
277-11-041 $908.28
277-11-042 $1,544.04
277-11-043 $908.28
277-11-044 $908.28
277-11-045 $908.28
277-11-046 $908.28
277-11-047 $908.28
277-11-048 $908.28
277-11-049 $908.28
277-11-050 $908.28
277-11-051 $1,544.04
277-11-052 $908.28
277-11-053 $1,544.04
277-11-054 $908.28
277-11-055 $908.28
277-11-056 $1,544.04
277-12-001 $908.28
277-12-002 $908.28
277-12-003 $908.28
277-12-004 $908.28
277-12-005 $908.28
277-12-006 $908.28
277-12-007 $908.28
277-12-008 $908.28
277-12-009 $908.28

14/23



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646

277-12-010 $1,544.04
277-12-011 $908.28
277-12-012 $1,544.04
277-12-013 $908.28
277-12-014 $908.28
277-12-015 $2,234.52
277-12-016 $908.28
277-12-017 $1,544.04
277-12-018 $1,544.04
277-12-019 $908.28
277-12-020 $2,234.52
277-12-021 $1,544.04
277-12-022 $908.28
277-12-025 $2,234.52
277-12-026 $1,544.04
277-12-028 $5,297.77
277-12-029 $853.75
277-12-030 $908.28
277-12-032 $908.28
277-12-033 $908.28
277-12-034 $908.28
277-12-035 $908.28
277-12-036 $4,469.04
277-12-037 $4,469.04
277-12-039 $1,544.04
277-12-040 $908.28
277-12-041 $5,958.72
277-12-042 $908.28
277-12-043 $908.28
277-12-044 $908.28
277-12-045 $10,427.76
277-12-046 $2,979.36
277-12-047 $2,234.52
277-12-048 $908.28
277-12-049 $3,724.20
277-12-050 $1,544.04
277-12-051 $908.28
277-12-053 $908.28
277-12-054 $1,544.04
277-12-055 $908.28
277-12-056 $908.28
277-12-057 $908.28
277-12-058 $908.28

15/23

Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689

277-12-059 $908.28
277-12-060 $908.28
277-13-001 $1,544.04
277-13-002 $908.28
277-13-003 $1,544.04
277-13-004 $908.28
277-13-005 $1,544.04
277-13-006 $1,544.04
277-13-007 $908.28
277-13-008 $1,544.04
277-13-009 $908.28
277-13-010 $908.28
277-13-011 $908.28
277-13-012 $1,544.04
277-13-013 $1,544.04
277-13-014 $908.28
277-13-015 $908.28
277-13-016 $1,544.04
277-13-017 $2,234.52
277-13-018 $1,544.04
277-13-019 $908.28
277-13-020 $1,544.04
277-13-060 $908.28
277-13-023 $5,958.72
277-13-024 $908.28
277-13-025 $1,544.04
277-13-026 $908.28
277-13-027 $711.12
277-13-034 $6,703.56
277-13-035 $4,469.04
277-13-036 $908.28
277-13-038 $908.28
277-13-039 $908.28
277-13-040 $2,234.52
277-13-041 $908.28
277-13-042 $908.28
277-13-043 $1,544.04
277-13-044 $1,544.04
277-13-045 $908.28
277-13-046 $908.28
277-13-047 $908.28
277-13-048 $908.28
277-13-049 $908.28

16/23



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729
730
731
732

277-13-050 $1,544.04
277-13-051 $1,544.04
277-13-052 $1,544.04
277-13-053 $1,544.04
277-13-054 $4,469.04
277-13-055 $5,213.88
277-13-056 $1,544.04
277-13-057 $5,958.72
277-13-058 $5,958.72
277-13-059 $908.28
277-14-001 $2,234.52
277-14-002 $908.28
277-14-003 $908.28
277-14-004 $908.28
277-14-007 $1,544.04
277-14-008 $908.28
277-14-009 $908.28
277-14-010 $1,544.04
277-14-011 $908.28
277-14-061 $1,544.04
277-14-013 $908.28
277-14-014 $908.28
277-14-015 $908.28
277-14-016 $1,544.04
277-14-017 $908.28
277-14-018 $4,469.04
277-14-019 $1,544.04
277-14-020 $908.28
277-14-021 $908.28
277-14-022 $908.28
277-14-023 $1,544.04
277-14-024 $908.28
277-14-025 $908.28
277-14-028 $2,234.52
277-14-030 $2,979.36
277-14-031 $2,234.52
277-14-032 $3,724.20
277-14-033 $3,724.20
277-14-034 $1,544.04
277-14-035 $5,958.72
277-14-036 $908.28
277-14-037 $908.28
277-14-038 $908.28

17/23

Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
733
734
735
736
737
738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774
775

277-14-039 $1,544.04
277-14-040 $908.28
277-14-041 $908.28
277-14-042 $908.28
277-14-043 $1,544.04
277-14-059 $908.28
277-14-060 $908.28
277-14-045 $908.28
277-14-047 $2,234.52
277-14-048 $1,544.04
277-14-049 $1,544.04
277-14-051 $908.28
277-14-052 $908.28
277-14-053 $1,544.04
277-14-054 $908.28
277-14-056 $908.28
277-14-057 $908.28
277-14-058 $908.28
277-15-001 $908.28
277-15-002 $1,544.04
277-15-003 $908.28
277-15-004 $908.28
277-15-005 $1,544.04
277-15-006 $1,544.04
277-15-007 $908.28
277-15-008 $2,234.52
277-15-009 $5,213.88
277-15-010 $3,724.20
277-15-011 $2,234.52
277-15-012 $908.28
277-15-013 $908.28
277-15-014 $1,544.04
277-15-015 $908.28
277-15-016 $908.28
277-15-017 $908.28
277-15-018 $908.28
277-15-019 $908.28
277-15-020 $908.28
277-15-021 $1,544.04
277-15-022 $908.28
277-15-023 $908.28
277-15-024 $908.28
277-26-045 $1,544.04

18/23



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
776
777
778
779
780
781
782
783
784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
813
814
815
816
817
818

277-26-046 $908.28
277-26-047 $908.28
277-26-048 $908.28
277-26-049 $908.28
277-26-050 $1,544.04
277-26-051 $908.28
277-26-052 $908.28
277-26-053 $908.28
277-26-054 $908.28
277-26-055 $908.28
277-26-056 $908.28
277-26-057 $908.28
277-26-058 $908.28
277-26-059 $908.28
277-27-001 $908.28
277-27-002 $908.28
277-27-003 $908.28
277-27-004 $908.28
277-27-005 $908.28
277-27-006 $908.28
277-27-007 $1,544.04
277-27-008 $908.28
277-27-009 $908.28
277-27-010 $908.28
277-27-011 $908.28
277-27-012 $908.28
277-27-013 $908.28
277-27-014 $908.28
277-27-015 $908.28
277-27-016 $908.28
277-27-017 $1,544.04
277-27-018 $908.28
277-27-019 $908.28
277-27-020 $908.28
277-27-021 $908.28
277-27-022 $2,979.36
277-27-023 $908.28
277-27-024 $908.28
277-27-025 $908.28
277-27-026 $908.28
277-27-027 $908.28
277-27-028 $908.28
277-27-029 $1,544.04

19/23

Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
819
820
821
822
823
824
825
826
827
828
829
830
831
832
833
834
835
836
837
838
839
840
841
842
843
844
845
846
847
848
849
850
851
852
853
854
855
856
857
858
859
860
861

277-27-030 $908.28
277-27-031 $908.28
277-27-032 $908.28
277-27-033 $908.28
277-27-034 $908.28
277-27-035 $1,544.04
277-27-036 $908.28
277-27-037 $908.28
277-27-038 $908.28
277-27-039 $908.28
277-27-040 $908.28
277-27-041 $908.28
277-27-042 $908.28
277-27-043 $908.28
277-27-044 $908.28
277-27-045 $908.28
277-27-046 $908.28
277-27-047 $908.28
277-27-048 $908.28
277-27-049 $1,544.04
277-27-050 $908.28
277-27-051 $908.28
277-27-052 $1,544.04
277-27-053 $908.28
277-27-054 $1,544.04
277-27-055 $908.28
277-27-056 $908.28
277-27-057 $908.28
277-27-058 $908.28
277-27-059 $908.28
277-27-060 $908.28
277-27-061 $908.28
277-27-062 $908.28
277-27-063 $908.28
277-27-064 $908.28
277-28-001 $1,544.04
277-28-002 $908.28
277-28-003 $908.28
277-28-004 $908.28
277-28-005 $908.28
277-28-006 $908.28
277-28-007 $1,544.04
277-28-008 $908.28

20/23



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
862
863
864
865
866
867
868
869
870
871
872
873
874
875
876
877
878
879
880
881
882
883
884
885
886
887
888
889
890
891
892
893
894
895
896
897
898
899
900
901
902
903
904

277-28-009 $908.28
277-28-010 $908.28
277-28-011 $1,544.04
277-28-012 $908.28
277-28-013 $908.28
277-28-014 $908.28
277-28-015 $908.28
277-28-016 $908.28
277-28-017 $908.28
277-28-018 $1,544.04
277-28-019 $908.28
277-28-020 $1,544.04
277-28-021 $908.28
277-28-022 $908.28
277-28-023 $908.28
277-28-024 $908.28
277-28-025 $908.28
277-28-026 $908.28
277-28-027 $908.28
277-28-028 $1,544.04
277-28-029 $908.28
277-28-030 $908.28
277-28-031 $908.28
277-28-032 $1,544.04
277-28-033 $908.28
277-28-034 $908.28
277-28-035 $908.28
277-28-036 $908.28
277-28-037 $908.28
277-28-038 $908.28
277-28-039 $908.28
277-28-040 $908.28
277-28-041 $908.28
277-28-042 $908.28
277-28-043 $1,544.04
277-28-044 $908.28
277-28-045 $1,544.04
277-28-046 $908.28
277-28-047 $908.28
277-28-048 $908.28
277-28-049 $1,544.04
277-28-050 $908.28
277-28-051 $908.28

21/23

Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
905
906
907
908
909
910
911
912
913
914
915
916
917
918
919
920
921
922
923
924
925
926
927
928
929
930
931
932
933
934
935
936
937
938
939
940
941
942
943
944
945
946
947

277-28-052 $1,544.04
277-28-053 $908.28
277-28-054 $908.28
277-28-055 $908.28
277-28-056 $908.28
277-28-057 $908.28
277-28-058 $908.28
277-28-059 $908.28
277-28-060 $908.28
277-28-061 $908.28
277-28-062 $908.28
277-28-063 $1,544.04
277-28-064 $908.28
277-29-001 $908.28
277-29-002 $908.28
277-29-003 $908.28
277-29-004 $908.28
277-29-005 $908.28
277-29-006 $908.28
277-29-007 $908.28
277-29-008 $908.28
277-29-009 $908.28
277-29-010 $908.28
277-29-011 $908.28
277-29-012 $1,544.04
277-29-013 $1,544.04
277-29-014 $1,544.04
277-29-015 $908.28
277-29-016 $908.28
277-29-017 $908.28
277-29-018 $908.28
277-29-019 $1,544.04
277-29-020 $908.28
277-29-021 $1,544.04
277-29-022 $908.28
277-29-023 $908.28
277-29-024 $1,544.04
277-29-025 $908.28
277-29-026 $908.28
277-29-027 $908.28
277-29-028 $908.28
277-29-029 $908.28
277-29-030 $908.28

22/23



Burbank Sanitary District Tax Roll Report FY2021-2022

1
A B

APN Amount
948
949
950
951
952
953
954
955
956
957
958
959
960
961
962
963

277-29-031 $908.28
277-29-033 $908.28
277-29-034 $1,544.04
277-29-035 $908.28
277-29-036 $1,544.04
277-29-037 $1,544.04
277-29-038 $908.28
277-29-039 $908.28
277-29-040 $1,544.04
277-29-041 $908.28
277-29-042 $908.28
277-29-043 $908.28
277-29-045 $711.12
277-29-046 $711.12
277-29-047 $711.12

961 $1,338,555.67

23/23



Page 1 of 1 
Resolution No. 1252 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 286 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT APPROVING 
SEWER SERVICE CHARGES REPORT AND COLLECTION ON THE 

TAXROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021 - 2022 

 WHEREAS, IT IS RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Burbank Sanitary 
District, as follows: 

1. Pursuant to California Health & Safety Code § 5473 and following, the 
District’s Report of Sewer Service Charges for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 is 
approved and adopted following completion of the noticed public 
hearing required by law.  

2. Objections to and protests against said Report were not made by the 
owners of a majority of the separate parcels of property described in the 
Report. 

3. The sewer service charges and the delinquent service charges, if any, 
which are included on the Report shall be levied against the parcels 
identified in the Report and, as appropriate, shall be collected on the 
property tax rolls of Santa Clara County, respectively, in the manner 
specified by law. 

4. The amounts in the report are based on Ordinance No. 66, which was 
adopted by the Board on May 19, 2020. 

The Secretary shall cause true copies of the Report and this Resolution to be filed 
with the proper officers of those counties so that the charges may be entered upon 
their respective county rolls. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of June 2021 by the following vote: 

AYES: and in favor thereof, Members: 

NOES:  Members:  

ABSENT:  Members:  

ABSTAIN:  Members:  

RECUSE:  Members:  

____________________________________ 
Secretary, Burbank Sanitary District  
 

APPROVED: 

___________________________________ 
President, Burbank Sanitary District  



 
BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
 

7.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 
 
 

6.A.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 

Approve Minutes from Regular Meeting of  
May 18, 2021 

  



BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT  MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS May 18, 2021 

Page 1 of 3 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

The Board of the Burbank Sanitary District convened this date at 7:00 p.m. via teleconferencing in 
accordance with Executive Order N-33-20. President Sclafani called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 

2. ROLL CALL 

Directors Present: Ken Colson, Rene Prupes, Procopio Sclafani, Michelle Kaelker-Boor, Rebecca Yoder  
Directors Absent: None 
Counsel Present: Valerie Armento, Armento-Hynes, LLP (present for the beginning of the open 

session and the entire closed session) 
Staff: Benjamin Porter (District Manager), Robert Woodhouse (Deputy District Manager) 
Advisor: Richard Tanaka (present for the beginning of the open session and the entire closed 

session) 
Visitors: None 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion: To approve the agenda. 

Move: Kaelker-Boor   Second: Prupes 

Board vote:   Ayes: Colson, Prupes, Sclafani, Yoder, Kaelker-Boor 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTARY  

4.A. Visitor Commentary – None. 

4.B. Agency Representatives – None. 

4.C. Board Commentary - None. 

5. CLOSED SESSION 

5.A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL –EXISTING LITIGATION 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) Name of Case:  County Sanitation District 2-3, West Valley 
Sanitation District, Cupertino Sanitary District, Burbank Sanitary District and the City of Milpitas v. 
The City of San Jose, The City of Santa Clara, and Does 1 through 50 inclusive. 

Closed session discussion commenced at 7:06 pm and ended at 7:41 pm. Manager Porter and Deputy 
Manager Woodhouse were excused. No reportable action was taken at the closed session. Staff rejoined 
the regular session. 



BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT  MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS May 18, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 

6.A.  Approval of Minutes from the Regular Meetings of May 4, 2021. 

Motion: To approve Meeting Minutes from the Regular Meetings of May 4, 2021.  

Move: Yoder   Second: Colson 

Board vote:   Ayes: Prupes, Sclafani, Kaelker-Boor, Colson, Yoder 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 

7. WARRANTS  

7.A. Approval of Warrants.   

1. Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. (District Management Services and BSD CIPs) 
2. First Tech Federal Credit Union (Board of Directors’ Payroll) 
3. Armento and Hynes, LLP (District Legal Services) 
4. Richard Tanaka (District Advisor Services) 
5. Cupertino Sanitary District (Common Interest Agreement Cost Sharing Q3 FY2020-21) 

 
Motion: To approve five (5) warrants as listed. 

Move: Kaelker-Boor  Second: Yoder 

Board vote:   Ayes: Prupes, Sclafani, Kaelker-Boor, Colson, Yoder 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

 None. 

9. OLD BUSINESS 

9.A.  Status of SRF Loan and Design Update.   

  Manager Porter reported on the status of the SRF Loan.  Deputy Manager Woodhouse indicated that 
staff will discuss disadvantaged business who may be able to bid or provide subcontractor services for 
the CIP project with the Builders Exchange of Santa Clara County. 

9.B. Long Range Financial Planning. 

Manager Porter is exploring options to join NextDoor as a commercial enterprise. 

9.C.  GreenWaste Recovery, Inc Update. 

Manager Porter advised that the reason for so many blocked dumpsters on February 22, 2021 was an 
excess number of vehicles blocking the carts preventing GreenWaste from providing service. If a 
dumpster is over-filled GreenWaste will not service the dumpster and will leave a Non-Collection 
Notice and indicate why the bin or cart was not serviced. The lid-flip audit was suspended in the March 
– April 2020 timeframe due to Covid-19.  GreenWaste is willing to meet with the Board at a future date 
to discuss the services they provide and Post-Covid notifications.  GreenWaste is not required to follow 
the County requirement to do two pick-ups each week for multi-family properties like apartment 
buildings. 



BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT  MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS May 18, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 
 

9.D. District Website Update. 

Manager Porter reported that Ariff has started working on the website homepage. 

9.E. Form 470 Update. 

Manager Porter advised that Form 470 has been sent out to the Board members for filing. 

9.F. SSMP Recertification. 

Board reviewed and recertified the SSMP.  

Motion: To approve SSMP as amended and adopt Resolution #285 

Move: Kaelker-Boor  Second: Yoder 

Board vote:   Ayes: Prupes, Sclafani, Kaelker-Boor, Colson, Yoder 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 

9.F. COVID-19 Update. 

Manager Porter reported that a new order today by Santa Clara County requires employers to 
determine the vaccination status of its employees.  

10.  HOUSEKEEPING ITEMS  

10.A. Updates on Housekeeping Items.  

No housekeeping items to update. 

10.B. Agenda Items for Next Upcoming Meeting.  

• Status of CIP project design and SRF loan 
• GreenWaste Recovery, Inc. Update 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT – NEXT REGULAR MEETING – Tuesday, June 1, 2021 

Motion: To adjourn meeting at 8:45 pm. 

Move:  Yoder Second: Prupes 

Board vote:  Ayes:  Colson, Kaelker-Boor, Prupes, Sclafani, Yoder 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 

Approved: June 1, 2021 Respectfully Submitted, 

Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. 

      District Manager 
Procopio Sclafani, President   Benjamin T. Porter, PE 



 
BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
 

7.  WARRANTS 
 
 
 
 

8.A.   APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 
 

 
 

1. Mark Thomas & Company, Inc. 
2. First Tech Federal Credit Union 
3. Armento and Hynes, LLP 
4. Richard Tanaka 
5. Cupertino Sanitary District 

 
 

 
    

 
 
 
 



Warrant List for 06-15-21

# Payee Invoice Date Invoice No. Invoice Amount Description Warrant No.
1 Mark Thomas and Company, Inc 6/11/2021 40473 20,963.37$         District Management Services

6/11/2021 40472 13,833.74$         BSD District Wide CIP Project
6/11/2021 40471 609.58$              1975 Scott St Mainline Extension

6/11/2021 40473-R 19.95$                Reimbursables - Monthly Website Hosting Fee

MTCo Subtotal 35,426.64$         3925

2 Burbank Sanitary District for Deposits / First Tech Fed C n/a 700.00$              
Board Payroll, Processing Fees/Taxes 
(Amount Deposited) 3926

Rebecca Yoder 115.50$              5/18/2021
Michelle Kaelker-Boor 115.50$              5/18/2021
Rene Prupes 115.50$              5/18/2021
Ken Colson 115.50$              5/18/2021
Procopio Sclafani 115.50$              5/18/2021

Subtotal actual amt 577.50$              
3927

3 Armento and Hynes, LLP 5/31/2021 2021-5 1,178.00$           District legal services
3928

4 Richard Tanaka 6/8/2021 2021-6 600.00$              District Advisor Services 

5 Cupertino Sanitary District 3/3/2020 2 3,783.92$           
Common Interest Agmt - Milpitas Portion of Invoices 4/1/19 
thru 12/31/19

5/10/2021 3 10,663.60$         
Common Interest Agmt - Milpitas Portion of Invoices 1/1/20 
thru 12/31/20

CUSD Subtotal 14,447.52$         3929

TOTAL 52,352.16$         

TOTAL YEAR-TO-DATE WARRANT AMOUNT  FY 2020-21 942,737.11$       



 
BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
 

9.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

 
   9.A. District Budget FY2021-2022  
   9.B. District Insurance 
    
    
   
    
  

 



Burbank Sanitary District
APPROVED BUDGET

Approved Draft
County Accounts Revenues 2020/21 Budget 2021/22 Budget

4301100 Interest Allocation 15,000$              15,000$              
4980010 Permits and Connections 10,000$              10,000$              
4980350 Direct Assessments 1,328,000$         1,328,000$         

SRF Loan - 5,064,000$         
Credit for Treatment Plant CIP 75,000$              75,000$              

Total 1,428,000$         6,492,000$         

County Accounts Expenses 2020/21 Budget 2020/21 Budget
5420200 Debt Related Expenses

Revenue Bonds 2009  Series A - Term Ends 2020 15,900$              -$                   
State Revolving Fund

Total 15,900$              -$                   

5561000 Special District Fixed Asset Acquisition
Treatment Plant Capital Improvement Fund 331,000$            446,167$            
Sewer System CIP Projects 450,000$            5,064,000$         

Total 781,000$            5,510,167$         

5350400 Service and Supplies
Wastewater Treatment Plant O&M 366,000$            288,758$            
Wastewater Treatment Plant Equipment 1,000$                1,000$                
San Jose Joint Use O&M 10,000$              10,000$              
San Jose Joint Use CIP 10,000$              10,000$              
Annual Neighborhood Clean Up Day 2,000$                2,000$                
Preventive Maintenance & Video Inspection 40,000$              40,000$              
Emergency Repairs and Stoppages 15,000$              15,000$              
Repairs and Replacement (mains/laterals) 30,000$              30,000$              
Permits (encroachment) 15,000$              15,000$              
Office Expenses/Publications 2,500$                2,500$                
Engineering/Maintenance Management 229,900$            236,500$            
Legal - District Counsel 35,000$              35,000$              
Legal - Outside Services 25,000$              25,000$              
Legal - District Advisor 8,000$                12,000$              
Audit and Accounting Services 12,000$              -$                   
Taxroll Preparation 500$                   500$                   
Annual Memberships (CASA, SWRCB, Website) 5,000$                5,200$                
Insurance Renewal (CASA) 10,000$              10,200$              
Conference Registration -Travel 4,000$                4,000$                
Website Expenses -$                   10,000$              
Board Election Expenses 3,000$                -$                   

Total 823,900$            752,658$            

5108300 Salary and Benefit Special Districts
Per Diem - Five Board Members x 24 meetings 17,100$              17,100$              
Per Diem - District Clerk x 24 meetings 3,420$                3,000$                

Total 20,520$              20,100$              

Total Budget Expenditure 1,641,320$         6,282,925$         
Revenue 1,428,000$         6,492,000$         

Difference (213,320)$          209,075$            



Approved Budget
 FY2020-21

Total  Expenses
 To Date

Unencumbered 
Balance

% 
Expended 
To Date

 Estimated 
Through Year 

End 

Total 
Anticipated 
FY2020-21

% of 
Budget 

Proposed Budget 
FY2021-22

Comments

Debt Related Expenses
Revenue Bonds 2009  Series A - Term Ends 2020 $15,900.00 $15,860.19 $39.81 99.75% -$                $15,860.19 100% $0.00 Last Paymt Nov 2020

Special District Fixed Asset Acquisition   
Treatment Plant Capital Improvement Fund $331,000.00 $101,792.00 $229,208.00 30.75% 40,530.00$      $142,322.00 43% $446,167.00 Dewatering delayed to FY 2021-22 (Updated May TPAC)
Sewer System CIP Projects $450,000.00 $122,243.61 $327,756.39 27.17% 25,000.00$      $147,243.61 33% $5,064,000.00 District Wide CIP Project

Service and Supplies  
Wastewater Treatment Plant O&M $366,000.00 $200,313.00 $165,687.00 54.73% 66,771.00$      $267,084.00 73% $288,758.00 Legacy Lagoons deferred
Wastewater Treatment Plant Equipment $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0.00% 1,000.00$        $1,000.00 100% $1,000.00 Budget for $1,000; CSJ budget contains $0
San Jose Joint Use O&M $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00% -$                $0.00 0% $10,000.00 Budget, no payment made, subject to new agreement
San Jose Joint Use CIP $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00% -$                $0.00 0% $10,000.00 Budget, no payment made, subject to new agreement
Annual Neighborhood Clean Up Day $2,000.00 $1,588.00 $412.00 79.40% 1,366.00$        $2,954.00 148% $2,000.00 Encroachment permit  & No parking posting fee
Preventive Maintenance & Video Inspection $40,000.00 $28,417.80 $11,582.20 71.04% -$                $28,417.80 71% $40,000.00 Annual maintenance for mains and laterals
Emergency Repairs and Stoppages $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 0.00% 2,000.00$        $2,000.00 13% $15,000.00 No change - same as last year
Repairs and Replacement (mains/laterals) $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 0.00% 2,000.00$        $2,000.00 7% $30,000.00 No change - same as last year
Permits (Discharge and Encroachment) $15,000.00 $1,154.91 $13,845.09 7.70% 1,000.00$        $2,154.91 14% $15,000.00 No change - same as last year
Office Expenses/Publications $2,500.00 $1,368.27 $1,131.73 54.73% 500.00$           $1,868.27 75% $2,500.00 No change - same as last year
Engineering/Maintenance Management $229,900.00 $149,634.67 $80,265.33 65.09% 95,000.00$      $244,634.67 106% $236,500.00 Assume 2.9% CPI increase
Legal - District Counsel $35,000.00 $13,015.00 $21,985.00 37.19% 8,000.00$        $21,015.00 60% $35,000.00 No change - same as last year
Legal - Outside Services $17,000.00 $9,424.00 $7,576.00 55.44% 7,300.00$        $16,724.00 98% $25,000.00 No change - same as last year
Legal - District Advisor $8,000.00 $2,400.00 $5,600.00 30.00% 5,000.00$        $7,400.00 93% $12,000.00 Keep same as last year based on full year
Audit and Accounting Services $12,000.00 $11,200.00 $800.00 0.00% -$                $11,200.00 93% $0.00 No Biennial audit this year
Taxroll Preparation $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00% 500.00$           $500.00 100% $500.00 No change - same as last year
Annual Memberships (CASA, SWRCB, Website) $5,000.00 $5,059.34 ($59.34) 101.19% -$                $5,059.34 101% $5,200.00 Increase slightly
Insurance Renewal (Alliant) $10,000.00 $9,728.00 $272.00 97.28% -$                $9,728.00 97% $10,200.00 Per proposal dated 6/2/21 $10,198.00
Conference Registration -Travel $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 0.00% -$                $0.00 0% $4,000.00 No change - same as last year
Website Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% - $0.00 0% $10,000.00 New website expenses
Board Election Expenses $3,000.00 $4,105.00 ($1,105.00) 136.83% -$                $4,105.00 137% $0.00 No election

$1,612,800.00 $677,303.79 $935,496.21 42.00% 255,967.00$ $933,270.79 58% $6,262,825.00

Salary and Benefit Special Districts
Per Diem - Five Board Members x 24 meetings $17,100.00 $10,500.00 $6,600.00 61.40% 6,500.00$        $17,000.00 99% $17,100.00 26 meetings @ 115.5 + payroll taxes & fees
Per Diem - District Clerk x 24 meetings $3,420.00 $577.50 $2,842.50 16.89% -$                $577.50 17% $3,000.00 26 meetings @115.5 

$20,520.00 $11,077.50 $9,442.50 $6,500.00 $17,577.50 86% $20,100.00$

TOTAL EXPENSES $1,633,320.00 $688,381.29 $944,938.71 42.15% 262,467.00$ $950,848.29 58% $6,282,925.00

BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT
Preliminary Budget Review

2020 - 2022

BUDGET REPORT - EXPENSES

Account Name



Account 
Number

Amount 
budgeted

Total  Receipts
 To Date

Balance of 
Budget

% Earned 
To Date

 Estimated 
Through Year 

End 

Total Anticipated 
FY2020-21

% of 
Budget 

Proposed Budget
 FY2021-22

Comments

OPERATING
Direct Assessments 4980350 $1,328,000.00 $767,671.48 $560,328.52 57.81% $550,000.00 $1,317,671.48 99% $1,328,000.00 No change - same as last year
Permits and Connections 4980010 $10,000.00 $13,960.00 ($3,960.00) 139.60% $1,000.00 $14,960.00 150% $10,000.00 No change - same as last year
Interest Allocation 4301100 $15,000.00 $14,387.03 $612.97 95.91% $2,000.00 $16,387.03 109% $15,000.00 No change - same as last year
SRF Loan $5,064,000.00 $5,064,000.00 SRF Loan
Credit for Treatment Plant CIP $75,000.00 $133,523.00 ($58,523.00) 178.03% $40,530.00 $174,053.00 232% $75,000.00 No change - same as last year

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE $6,492,000.00 $796,018.51 $498,458.49 12.26% $593,530.00 $1,389,548.51 79% $6,492,000.00

TOTAL REVENUE $1,428,000.00 $929,541.51 $498,458.49 65.09% $593,530.00 $1,523,071.51 107% $6,492,000.00

BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT
Preliminary Budget Review

2020 - 2022

BUDGET REPORT - REVENUE

Account Name



 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 

100 Pine Street. 11th Floor 

San Francisco, CA 94111 

O 415.403.1400 

F 415.874.4813 

CA License No. 0C36861 www.alliant.com 

2021 – 2022 

Commercial Package Insurance Proposal  
 
Presented on June 2, 2021 by: 
 
Seth Cole, ARM 
Senior Vice President 
 

Burbank Sanitary District 



 

Date Issued: 06/02/20211            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 2 

Burbank Sanitary District   | 2021 - 2022 Alteris Commercial Package Insurance Proposal 

Your Service Team 
 

 

Seth Cole, ARM 

Senior Vice-President 

scole@alliant.com 

 

Phone: 415.403.1419 

Cell:  925.628.8216 

  

Marilyn Schley, AU, CISR 

Assistant Vice President, Account Executive 

mschley@alliant.com 

 

Phone: 415.403.1432 

Fax:     415.874-7813 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.alliant.com/
mailto:scole@alliant.com
mailto:mschley@alliant.com


 

Date Issued: 06/02/20211            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 3 

Burbank Sanitary District   | 2021 - 2022 Alteris Commercial Package Insurance Proposal 

Named Insured / Additional Named Insureds 
 

 

Named Insured(s) 

Burbank Sanitary District 
 

 

 

Additional Named Insured(s) 

Additional named insured(s) here.  

 

 

 

NAMED INSURED DISCLOSURE 

 

 The first named insured is granted certain rights and responsibilities that do not apply to other policy named insureds 

and is designated to act on behalf of all insureds for making policy changes, receiving correspondence, distributing 

claim proceeds, and making premium payments. 

 Are ALL entities listed as named insureds? Coverage is not automatically afforded to all entities unless 

specifically named. Confirm with your producer and service team that all entities to be protected are on the correct 

policy. Not all entities may be listed on all policies based on coverage line. 

 Additional named insured is (1) A person or organization, other than the first named insured, identified as an insured 

in the policy declarations or an addendum to the policy declarations. (2) A person or organization added to a policy 

after the policy is written with the status of named insured. This entity would have the same rights and responsibilities 

as an entity named as an insured in the policy declarations (other than those rights and responsibilities reserved to 

the first named insured). 

 Applies to Professional Liability, Pollution Liability, Directors & Officers Liability, Employment Practices Liability, 

Fiduciary Liability policies (this list not all inclusive). Check your Policy language for applicability. These policies 

provide protection to the Named Insured for claims made against it alleging a covered wrongful act. Coverage is not 

afforded to any other entities (unless specifically added by endorsement or if qualified as a “Subsidiary” pursuant to 

the policy wording) affiliated by common individual insured ownership or to which indemnification is otherwise 

contractually owed. If coverage is desired for affiliated entities or for contractual indemnities owed, please contact 

your Alliant Service Team with a full list of entities for which coverage is requested. With each request, include 

complete financials and ownership information for submission to the carrier. It should be noted, that the underwriter’s 

acceptance of any proposed amendments to the policy, including expansion of the scope of “Insureds” under the 

policy could result in a potential diminution of the applicable limits of liability and/or an additional premium charge. 

 

http://www.alliant.com/


PROGRAM MANAGER
www.alliedpublicrisk.com

Allied Community Insurance Services, LLC
Agency License No. 733176

CA License No. 0L01269

INSURANCE PROPOSAL
Burbank Sanitary District 

EFFECTIVE DATE
7/1/2021

PRESENTED BY:
Apex Insurance Services



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 2 of 13

P R E M I U M  S U M M A R Y
NOTE: This proposal is prepared from information supplied to us on the application submitted by your insurance broker. It 
may or may not contain all terms requested on the application. Proposed coverages are provided by the Allied Public Risk 
WaterPlus policy forms and are subject to the terms, exclusions, conditions and limitations of those policy forms. Actual 
policies should be reviewed for specific details. Specimen policies are available from your insurance broker.

PAGE COVERAGE SECTION PREMIUM

3-7 SECTION 1.  PROPERTY
(Property, Equipment Breakdown & Mobile Equipment) $ N/A

8 SECTION 2.  COMMERCIAL CRIME $ N/A

9-10 SECTION 3.  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY $ 6,982.00

11 SECTION 4.  PUBLIC OFFICIALS & MANAGEMENT LIABILITY (POML)
(Wrongful Acts, Employment Practices, Employee Benefits, Privacy & Network Risk) $ 1,670.00

12 SECTION 5.  BUSINESS AUTO $ N/A

13 SECTION 6.  COMMERCIAL EXCESS LIABILITY $ 1,276.00

TOTAL ANNUAL PREMIUM
(excludes state-imposed taxes, surcharges, and fees) $ 9,928.00

TERRORISM PREMIUM $ 70.00

FULLY EARNED POLICY FEE $ 200.00

STATE-IMPOSED TAXES, SURCHARGES, AND FEES $ N/A

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE*
*Payment is due in accordance with the producer agreement. $ 10,198.00

NOTES:



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 3 of 13

S E C T I O N  1 .   P R O P E R T Y *
*IS THIS SECTION INCLUDED IN THE PROPOSAL? No

CARRIER:
Allied World Assurance Company or affiliate
A XV (Excellent) A.M. Best Rating

FORM:
Special Causes of Loss
Proprietary
Integrated

LIMITS:
Blanket Property:
(Real Property & Business Personal Property) N/A

Blanket Coverage Extension: 
A separate blanket limit that applies to the following coverages: Business Income,
Extended Business Income, Commandeered Property, Civil Authority, Extra Expense,
Tenant Leasehold Interest, Electronic Data, Preservation of Property.

N/A

Equipment Breakdown / Boiler & Machinery: N/A
Mobile Equipment (Scheduled): N/A
Mobile Equipment (unscheduled, maximum $10,000 any one item): N/A
Mobile Equipment (borrowed, rented & leased): N/A
Earthquake (earth movement excluded): N/A
Flood Zone AE: N/A
Flood Zone X (unshaded): N/A

DEDUCTIBLES:
N/A Property
N/A Mobile Equipment
N/A Equipment Breakdown (aboveground & less than 50 feet belowground)
N/A Equipment Breakdown (greater than 50 feet belowground)
N/A Earthquake (earth movement excluded)
N/A Flood Zone X (per occurrence)
N/A Flood Zone AE1 (per occurrence)
N/A Flood Zone AE1 (per damaged structure / per occurrence)

       1the greater of the deductibles will be applied
N/A Wind/Hail2 (per occurrence)
N/A Wind/Hail2 (per damaged structure / per occurrence)

       2the greater of the deductibles will be applied

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS:
Blanket Policy Limits
Blanket Coverage Extension Limits
No Coinsurance Penalty
Equipment Breakdown
Broad Definition of Covered Property
Proprietary Coverage Extensions

VALUATION:
Replacement Cost: Real Property & Business Personal Property
Actual Cash Value: Mobile Equipment 
Actual Loss Sustained: Loss of Income & Expenses
Market Price: Fine Arts



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 4 of 13

SPECIAL COVERAGES:

New Locations Or Newly Constructed Property:
Pays up to $1,000,000 for your new real property while being built on or off described premises as 
well as real property you acquire, lease or operate at locations other than the described premises; and 
business personal property located at new premises.

Utility Services – Direct Damage, Business Income & Expense:
Pays up to $250,000 for covered property damaged by an interruption in utility service to the 
described premises. The interruption in utility service must result from direct physical loss or damage 
by a Covered Cause of Loss and does not apply to loss or damage to electronic data, including 
destruction or corruption of electronic data. Separate limits apply to Direct Damage and Business 
Income/Expense Expense.

Pollution Remediation Expenses:
Pays up to $100,000 or $250,000 for remediation expenses resulting from a Covered Causes of Loss 
or Specified Cause of Loss occurring during the policy period and reported within 180 days. Covered 
Causes of Loss means risks of direct physical loss unless the loss is excluded or limited by the 
Property Coverage Form. Specified Cause of Loss means the following: fire; lightning; explosion; 
windstorm or hail; smoke; aircraft or vehicles; riot or civil commotion; vandalism; leakage from fire 
extinguishing equipment; sinkhole collapse; volcanic action; falling objects; weight of snow; ice or 
sleet; water damage; and equipment breakdown.

SCADA Upgrades:
Pays up to $100,000 to upgrade your scheduled SCADA system after direct physical loss from a 
Covered Cause of Loss. The upgrade is in addition to its replacement cost.  SCADA means the 
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system used in water and wastewater treatment and 
distribution to monitor leaks, waterflow, water analysis, and other measurable items necessary to 
maintain operations.

Contract Penalties:
Pays up to $100,000 for contract penalties you are required to pay due to your failure to deliver your 
product according to contract terms solely as a result of direct physical loss or damage by a Covered 
Cause of Loss to Covered Property.

Contamination:
Pays up to $100,000 for loss or damage to covered property because of contamination as a result of a 
Covered Cause of Loss. Contamination means direct damage to real property and business personal 
property caused by contact or mixture with ammonia, chlorine, or any chemical used in the water and / or 
wastewater treatment process.

Property In Transit:
Pays up to $100,000 for direct physical loss or damage to covered property while in transit more than 
1000 feet from the described premises. Shipments by mail must be registered for covered to apply. 
Electronic data processing property and fine arts are excluded.

Unintentional Errors:
Pays up to $100,000 for any unintentional error or omission you make in determining or reporting 
values or in describing the covered property or covered locations.



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 5 of 13

KEY DEFINITIONS

Real Property:
The buildings, items or structures described in the Declarations that you own or that you have leased or 
rented from others in which you have an insurable interest. This includes:

Aboveground piping;
Aboveground and belowground penstock;
Additions under construction;
Alterations and repairs to the buildings or structures;
Buildings;
Business personal property owned by you that is used to maintain or service the real property or 
structure or its premises, including fire-extinguishing equipment; outdoor furniture, floor coverings 
and appliances used for refrigerating, ventilating, cooking, dishwashing or laundering;
Completed additions;
Exterior signs, meaning neon, automatic, mechanical, electric or other signs either attached to the 
outside of a building or structure, or standing free in the open;
Fixtures, including outdoor fixtures;
Glass which is part of a building or structure;
Light standards;
Materials, equipment, supplies and temporary structures you own or for which you are responsible, 
on the premises or in the open (including property inside vehicles) within 1000 feet of the premises, 
used for making additions, alterations or repairs to buildings or structures at the premises;
Paved surfaces such as sidewalks, patios or parking lots;
Permanently installed machinery and equipment;
Permanent storage tanks;
Solar panels;
Submersible pumps, pump motors and engines; 
Underground piping located on or within 1000 feet of premises described in the Declarations;
Underground vaults and machinery.

Business Personal Property:
The property you own that is used in your business including:

Furniture and fixtures;
Machinery and equipment;
Computer equipment;
Communication equipment;
Labor materials or services furnished or arranged by you on personal property of others;
Stock;
Your use interest as tenant in improvements and betterments.
Leased personal property for which you have a contractual responsibility to insure.

Pollution Conditions:
The discharge, dispersal, release, seepage, migration, or escape of any solid, liquid, gaseous or thermal 
irritant or contaminant, including smoke, vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals, minerals, chemical 
elements and waste. Waste includes materials to be recycled, reconditioned or reclaimed.



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 6 of 13

KEY DEFINITIONS (continued)

Remediation Expenses:
Expenses incurred for or in connection with the investigation, monitoring, removal, disposal, treatment, 
or neutralization of pollution conditions to the extent required by: (1) Federal, state or local laws, 
regulations or statutes, or any subsequent amendments thereof enacted to address pollution conditions; 
and (2) a legally executed state voluntary program governing the cleanup of “pollution conditions.

Outdoor Property: 
Fixed or permanent structures that are outside covered real property including but not limited to:

Historical markers or flagpoles;
Sirens, antennas, towers, satellite dishes, or similar structures and their associated equipment;
Exterior signs not located at a premises;
Fences or retaining walls;
Storage sheds, garages, pavilions or other similar buildings or structures not located at a premises;
Dumpsters, concrete trash containers, or permanent recycling bins;
Hydrants; or
Electric utility power transmission and distribution lines and related equipment owned by the insured.

Equipment Breakdown:
Direct damage to mechanical, electrical or pressure systems as follows:

Mechanical breakdown including rupture or bursting caused by centrifugal force;
Artificially generated electrical current, including electrical arcing, that disturbs electrical devices, 
appliances or wires;
Explosion of steam boilers, steam piping, steam engines or steam turbines owned or leased by you, 
or operated under your control;
Loss or damage to steam boilers, steam pipes, steam engines or steam turbines; or
Loss or damage to hot water boilers or other water heating equipment;
If covered electrical equipment requires drying out as a result of a flood, we will pay for the direct 
expenses for such drying out.
None of the following are covered objects as respects to equipment breakdown:
a. Insulating or refractory material;
b. Buried vessel or piping;
c. Sewer piping, piping forming a part of a fire protection system or water piping other than:

(1) Feed water piping between any boiler and its feed pump or injector;
(2) Boiler condensate return piping; or
(3) Water piping forming a part of refrigerating and air conditioning vessels and piping used 

for cooling, humidifying or space heating purposes;
d. Structure, foundation, cabinet or compartment containing the object;
e. Power shovel, dragline, excavator, vehicle, aircraft, floating vessel or structure, penstock, draft 

tube or well-casing;
f. Conveyor, crane, elevator, escalator or hoist, but not excluding any electrical machine or 

electrical apparatus mounted on or used with this equipment; and
g. Felt, wire, screen, die, extrusion, late, swing hammer, grinding disc, cutting blade, cable chain, 

belt, rope, clutch late, brake pad, non-metallic part or any part or tool subject to frequent, 
periodic replacement.



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 7 of 13

PROPERTY SUBLIMITS:
Coverage         Limit
Accounts Receivable
Valuable Papers and Records
Contamination
Tools and Equipment Owned by Your Employees
Personal Effects and Property of Others
Outdoor Property (unscheduled)
New Locations or Newly Constructed Property $1,000,000
Business Personal Property at New Locations $1,000,000
Utility Services - Direct Damage $250,000
Utility Services – Business Income and Extra Expense $250,000
Dependent Business Premises $250,000
Property at Other Locations $250,000
Pollution Remediation Expense 
(specified cause of loss) $250,000

Pollution Remediation Expense (covered cause of loss) $100,000
Contract Penalties $100,000
SCADA Upgrades $100,000
Property in Transit $100,000
Backup/Overflow of Water from Sewer, Drain, Sump $100,000
Fine Arts $25,000
Limited Coverage for “Fungus”, Wet Rot or Dry Rot $25,000
Trees, Shrubs & Plants (maximum $1,000 any one item) $25,000
Indoor and Outdoor Signs (unscheduled) $25,000
Arson Reward $10,000
Fire Department Service Charge $5,000
Non-Owned Detached Trailers $5,000
Cost of Inventory or Adjustment $5,000
Patterns, Dies, Molds, Forms $2,500
Fire Protection Devices $2,500
Debris Removal 25% of scheduled limit
Ordinance or Law Provision 25% of scheduled limit

NOTES:
Premium is calculated from attached property schedule; review property schedule for coverage and limit adequacy. 
This section of the proposal is excluded. There are no Property, Earthquake, or Flood coverages afforded to the 
insured. 



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 8 of 13

S E C T I O N  2 .   C O M M E R C I A L  C R I M E *

*IS THIS SECTION INCLUDED IN THE PROPOSAL? No

CARRIER:
Allied World Assurance Company or affiliate
A XV (Excellent) A.M. Best Rating

FORM:
Proprietary
Integrated

RATING BASIS:
On file with underwriter
Non auditable

LIMITS:

EMPLOYEE
THEFT

FORGERY
OR

ALTERATION

INSIDE THE PREMISES
Theft of Money
and Securities

INSIDE THE PREMISES 
Robbery or Safe Burglary

or Other Property

OUTSIDE
THE

PREMISES
COMPUTER

FRAUD

FUNDS
TRANSFER

FRAUD

MONEY ORDERS
& COUNTERFEIT

PAPER CURRENCY

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

DEDUCTIBLE:
N/A each claim

DESIGNATED EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN(S):
     
     

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS:
Separate Limits Apply to Each Coverage
Coverage Extended to Directors and Authorized Volunteers
Faithful Performance 

NOTES:
This section of the proposal is excluded. There is no Commercial Crime coverage afforded to the insured. 



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 9 of 13

S E C T I O N  3 .   C O M M E R C I A L  G E N E R A L  L I A B I L I T Y *

*IS SECTION INCLUDED IN THE PROPOSAL?  Yes

CARRIER:
Allied World Assurance Company or affiliate
A XV (Excellent) A.M. Best Rating

FORM:
Occurrence
Proprietary

RATING BASIS:
On file with underwriter
Non auditable

LIMITS:
Per Occurrence $1,000,000

General Aggregate $3,000,000

Products & Completed Operations Aggregate $3,000,000

Personal & Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000

Damage to Premises Rented to You $1,000,000

Medical Payments $10,000

DEDUCTIBLE:

$5,000 per occurrence including expenses

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS:
Duty to Defend
Broad Definition of Insured
Fellow Employee
Per Location Aggregate
Blanket Additional Insured Endorsement

OPTIONAL COVERAGES INCLUDED IN QUOTE:

Hired and Nonowned Auto Liability



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 10 of 13

SPECIAL COVERAGES:

Water & Wastewater Testing Errors & Omissions:
Coverage is provided for damages arising out of an act, error or omission which arises from your 
water or wastewater testing.

Failure To Supply:
Coverage is provided for bodily injury or property damage arising out of the failure of any insured to 
adequately supply water.

Waterborne Asbestos:
Coverage is provided for bodily injury or property damage from waterborne asbestos arising out of 
potable water which is provided by you to others.

Contractual Liability - Railroads:
Coverage is provided for any contract or agreement that indemnifies a railroad for bodily injury or 
property damage arising out of construction or demolition operations, within 50 feet of any railroad 
property and affecting any railroad bridge or trestle, tracks, road-beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing.

Pollution: 
Coverage is provided for bodily injury or property damage which occurs or takes place as a result of 
your operations and arises out of the following:

Potable water which you supply to others;
Chemicals you use in your water or wastewater treatment process;
Natural gas or propane gas you use in your water or wastewater treatment process;
Urgent response for the protection of property, human life, health or safety conducted away from 
premises owned by or rented to or regularly occupied by you;
Your application of pesticide or herbicide chemicals if such application meets all standards of any 
statute, ordinance, regulation or license requirement of any federal, state or local government;
Smoke drift from controlled or prescribed burning that has been authorized and permitted by an 
appropriate regulatory agency.
Fuels, lubricants or other operating fluids needed to perform the normal electrical, hydraulic or 
mechanical functions necessary for the operation of mobile equipment or its parts
Escape or back-up of sewage or waste water from any sewage treatment facility or fixed conduit 
or piping that you own, operate, lease, control or for which you have the right of way, but only if 
property damage occurs away from land you own or lease.
Sudden and accidental events that are neither expected nor intended by an Insured. However, no 
coverage is provided under this exception for petroleum underground storage tanks. 

NOTES:
     



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 11 of 13

S E C T I O N  4 .   P U B L I C  O F F I C I A L S  &  M A N A G E M E N T  L I A B I L I T Y *

*IS THIS SECTION INCLUDED IN THE PROPOSAL? Yes

CARRIER:
Allied World Assurance Company or affiliate
A XV (Excellent) A.M. Best Rating

FORM: DEFENSE COSTS:
Occurrence Outside the Limits of Liability

LIMITS:
Wrongful Acts $1,000,000 per act

Employment Practices (including third party discrimination) N/A per offense

Employee Benefit Plans N/A per offense

Injunctive Relief $5,000 per act

$3,000,000 aggregate limit

PRIVACY LIABILITY AND NETWORK RISK1:
Privacy & Network Security Wrongful Acts $1,000,000 per act

Breach Consultation Services $1,000,000 per act

Breach Response Services $1,000,000 per act

Public Relations & Data Forensics $1,000,000 per act
1Coverage provided for Privacy Liability & Network Risk Coverage is issued on a claims made basis with defense inside the limit of 
liability.  Privacy Retroactive Date: 7/1/2013. Privacy Deductible: $1,000. 

SPECIAL COVERAGES:
Inverse Condemnation: No

DEDUCTIBLE
$1,000 each claim including expenses

RETROACTIVE DATE:

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS:
Duty To Defend 
Broad Definition of Named Insured including Past and Future Employees
Outside Directorship
Punitive Damages are Covered Where Insurable by Law
No Intentional Acts, Assault & Battery or Bodily Injury Exclusions

NOTES:
     



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 12 of 13

S E C T I O N  5 .   B U S I N E S S  A U T O *

*IS THIS SECTION IS INCLUDED IN THE PROPOSAL? No

CARRIER:
Allied World Assurance Company or affiliate
A XV (Excellent) A.M. Best Rating

FORM:
ISO Business Auto

PORTFOLIO:
Symbol Limit

Combined Single Limit for Bodily Injury & Property Damage
(each accident) No Coverage N/A

Hired Auto Liability No Coverage N/A

Non-Owned Auto Liability No Coverage N/A

“No-Fault” or Statutory Personal Injury Protection (each person) No Coverage N/A

Medical Payments No Coverage N/A

Uninsured / Underinsured Motorists No Coverage N/A

Hired Physical Damage No Coverage N/A

Owned Physical Damage – Comprehensive No Coverage N/A

Owned Physical Damage – Collision No Coverage N/A

DEDUCTIBLE:
Liability: None
Comprehensive: N/A
Collision: N/A

NOTES:
This section of the proposal is excluded. Please refer to the GL section for Hired and Nonowned Auto Liability 
coverage. 



INSURED: Burbank Sanitary District 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 7/1/2021         
DISCLAIMER: Actual coverage is subject to the language of the policies as issued. Your issued policy may contain limits, exclusions, and limitations that are not detailed in this proposal. 

Page 13 of 13

S E C T I O N  6 .   C O M M E R C I A L  E X C E S S  L I A B I L I T Y *

*IS THIS SECTION IS INCLUDED IN THE PROPOSAL? Yes

CARRIER:
Allied World Assurance Company or affiliate
A XV (Excellent) A.M. Best Rating

FORM:
Proprietary
Following Form

LIMITS:
  $2,000,000 / $2,000,000

RATING BASIS:
On file with underwriter
Non auditable

SCHEDULED UNDERLYING POLICIES:
Commercial General Liability -  Yes
Hired and Non-Owned Auto Liability  - Yes
Public Officials & Management Liability -  Yes
Wrongful Acts -  Yes
Employment Practices -  No
Employee Benefit Plans -  No
Owned Auto Liability - No
Employer’s Liability (minimum underlying limit requirement of $500,000 / $500,000 / $500,000) -  No 
Other: 

NOTABLE EXCLUSION:
Workers’ Compensation

NOTES:
Employers’ Liability subject to Allied World security requirements.



Policyholder Terrorism Disclosure  Page 1 of 1

POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE
NOTICE OF TERRORISM
INSURANCE COVERAGE

You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended via the Program 
Reauthorization Act of 2015, that you have a right to purchase insurance coverage for losses resulting 
from acts of terrorism, as defined in Section 102(1) of the Act: The term “act of terrorism” means any act 
that is certified by the Secretary of the Treasury – in consultation with the Secretary of Homeland Security, 
and the United States Attorney General—to be an act of terrorism; to be a violent act or an act that is 
dangerous to human life, property or infrastructure; to have resulted in dam-age within the United States, 
or outside the United States in the case of certain air carriers or vessels or the premises of a United States 
mission; and to have been committed by an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the 
civilian population of the United States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States 
Government by coercion.

YOU SHOULD KNOW THAT WHERE COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BY THIS POLICY FOR LOSSES RESULTING 
FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM SUCH LOSSES MAY BE PARTIALLY REIMBURSED BY THE 
UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT UNDER A FORMULA ESTABLISHED BY FEDERAL LAW. HOWEVER, YOUR 
POLICY MAY CONTAIN OTHER EXCLUSIONS WHICH MIGHT AFFECT YOUR COVERAGE, SUCH AS 
EXCLUSION FOR NUCLEAR EVENTS. UNDER THIS FORMULA, THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT 
GENERALLY REIMBURSES [85%THROUGH 2015; 84% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2016; 83% BEGINNING 
ON JANUARY 1, 2017; 82% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2018; 81% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2019 AND 
80% BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2020] OF COVERED TERRORISM LOSSES EXCEEDING THE 
STATUTORILY ESTABLISHED DEDUCTIBLE PAID BY THE INSURANCE COMPANY PROVIDING THE 
COVERAGE. THE PREMIUM CHARGED FOR THIS COVERAGE IS PROVIDED BELOW AND DOES NOT 
INCLUDE ANY CHARGES FOR THE PORTION OF LOSS COVERED BY THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 
UNDER THE ACT.

YOU SHOULD ALSO KNOW THAT THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT, AS AMENDED, CONTAINS A 
$100 BILLION CAP THAT LIMITS U.S. GOVERNMENT REIMBURSEMENT AS WELL AS INSURERS’ LIABILITY 
FOR LOSSES RESULTING FROM CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM WHEN THE AMOUNT OF SUCH 
LOSSES IN ANY ONE CALENDAR YEAR EXCEEDS $100 BILLION.  IF THE AGGREGATE INSURED LOSSES 
FOR ALL INSURERS EXCEED $100 BILLION, YOUR COVERAGE MAY BE REDUCED.

Acceptance or Rejection of Terrorism Insurance Coverage

I hereby elect to purchase terrorism coverage for a prospective premium of $70.00

I hereby decline to purchase terrorism coverage for certified acts of terrorism. I understand 
that I will have no coverage for losses resulting from certified acts of terrorism.

Policyholder/Applicant’s Signature

Burbank Sanitary District

Insurance Company

Allied World Specialty Insurance Company
Print Name Policy Number

Date



 

Date Issued: 06/02/20211            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 4 

Burbank Sanitary District   | 2021 - 2022 Alteris Commercial Package Insurance Proposal 

Changes and Developments 
 

It is important that we be advised of any changes in your operations, which may have a bearing on the 

validity and/or adequacy of your insurance.  The types of changes that concern us include, but are not 

limited to, those listed below: 

 Changes in any operations such as expansion to another states, new products, or new 
applications of existing products. 

 Travel to any state not previously disclosed. 
 Mergers and/or acquisition of new companies and any change in business ownership, including 

percentages. 
 Any newly assumed contractual liability, granting of indemnities or hold harmless agreements. 
 Any changes in existing premises including vacancy, whether temporary or permanent, 

alterations, demolition, etc.  Also, any new premises either purchased, constructed or occupied 
 Circumstances which may require an increased liability insurance limit. 
 Any changes in fire or theft protection such as the installation of or disconnection of sprinkler 

systems, burglar alarms, etc.  This includes any alterations to the system. 
 Immediate notification of any changes to a scheduled of equipment, property, vehicles, electronic 

data processing, etc. 
 Property of yours that is in transit, unless previously discussed and/or currently insured. 

 

Please keep your Alliant representative(s) informed so they can assist you in making the right 

decisions regarding your insurance needs. 

 

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Date Issued: 06/02/20211            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 5 

Burbank Sanitary District   | 2021 - 2022 Alteris Commercial Package Insurance Proposal 

 

 

 

IMPORTANT NOTICE 

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires the notification of certain financial 

accounts to the United States Internal Revenue Service.  Alliant does not provide tax advice so please 

contact your tax consultant for your obligation regarding FATCA.  

 

 

The Non-Admitted and Reinsurance Reform Act (NRRA) went into effect on July 21, 2011.  Accordingly, 

surplus lines tax rates and regulations are subject to change which could result in an increase or 

decrease of the total surplus lines taxes and/or fees owed on this placement.  If a change is required, we 

will promptly notify you.  Any additional taxes and/or fees must be promptly remitted to Alliant Insurance 

Services, Inc. 

 

CLAIMS REPORTING NOTICE 

Your policy will come with specific claim reporting requirements.  Please make sure you 

understand these obligations.  Contact your Alliant Service Team with any questions. 

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Date Issued: 06/02/20211            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 6 

Burbank Sanitary District   | 2021 - 2022 Alteris Commercial Package Insurance Proposal 

Premium Summary 
 

Coverage    Expiring    Renewal 

     

General Liability $ 6,824.00 $ 6,982.00 

Public Officials & Management Liability $ 1,515.00 $ 1,670.00 

Cyber Liability/Privacy 101 $ Included  $ Included  

Excess Liability $ 1,121.00  $ 1,276.00  

Terrorism Premium $ 68.00  $ 70.00  

Surplus Lines Taxes & Fees $ N/A $ N/A 

Company Policy Fee $ 200.00  $ 200.00  

     

Total Annual Premium $ 9,728.00 $ 10,198.00 

 

 
Payment Terms 

 Premium is due within 20 days of policy inception 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Date Issued: 06/02/20211            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 7 

Burbank Sanitary District   | 2021 - 2022 Alteris Commercial Package Insurance Proposal 

 

Disclosures 

This proposal of insurance is provided as a matter of convenience and information only.  All 
information included in this proposal, including but not limited to personal and real property 
values, locations, operations, products, data, automobile schedules, financial data and loss 
experience, is based on facts and representations supplied to Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
by you.  This proposal does not reflect any independent study or investigation by Alliant 
Insurance Services, Inc. or its agents and employees. 
 
Please be advised that this proposal is also expressly conditioned on there being no material 
change in the risk between the date of this proposal and the inception date of the proposed 
policy (including the occurrence of any claim or notice of circumstances that may give rise to 
a claim under any policy which the policy being proposed is a renewal or replacement).  In the 
event of such change of risk, the insurer may, at its sole discretion, modify, or withdraw this 
proposal whether or not this offer has already been accepted. 

This proposal is not confirmation of insurance and does not add to, extend, amend, change, 
or alter any coverage in any actual policy of insurance you may have.  All existing policy 
terms, conditions, exclusions, and limitations apply.  For specific information regarding your 
insurance coverage, please refer to the policy itself.  Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. will not 
be liable for any claims arising from or related to information included in or omitted from 
this proposal of insurance 

Alliant embraces a policy of transparency with respect to its compensation from insurance 
transactions. Details on our compensation policy, including the types of income that Alliant may earn 
on a placement, are available on our website at www.alliant.com. For a copy of our policy or for any 
inquiries regarding compensation issues pertaining to your account you may also contact us at: 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc., Attention: General Counsel, 701 B Street, 6th Floor, San Diego, CA  
92101.   

Analyzing insurers' over-all performance and financial strength is a task that requires specialized 
skills and in-depth technical understanding of all aspects of insurance company finances and 
operations. Insurance brokerages such as Alliant Insurance typically rely upon rating agencies for this 
type of market analysis. Both A.M. Best and Standard and Poor's have been industry leaders in this 
area for many decades, utilizing a combination of quantitative and qualitative analysis of the 
information available in formulating their ratings. 

A.M. Best has an extensive database of nearly 6,000 Life/Health, Property Casualty and International 
companies. You can visit them at www.ambest.com. For additional information regarding insurer 
financial strength ratings visit Standard and Poor's website at www.standardandpoors.com. 

http://www.alliant.com/
http://www.alliant.com/
http://www.ambest.com/
http://www.standardandpoors.com/


 

Date Issued: 06/02/20211            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 8 

Burbank Sanitary District   | 2021 - 2022 Alteris Commercial Package Insurance Proposal 

Disclosures - Continued 
 
Our goal is to procure insurance for you with underwriters possessing the financial strength to 
perform.  Alliant does not, however, guarantee the solvency of any underwriters with which insurance 
or reinsurance is placed and maintains no responsibility for any loss or damage arising from the 
financial failure or insolvency of any insurer.  We encourage you to review the publicly available 
information collected to enable you to make an informed decision to accept or reject a particular 
underwriter.  To learn more about companies doing business in your state, visit the Department of 
Insurance website for that state. 
 
NY REGULATION 194 DISCLOSURE 
 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. is an insurance producer licensed by the State of New York. 
Insurance producers are authorized by their license to confer with insurance purchasers about the 
benefits, terms and conditions of insurance contracts; to offer advice concerning the substantive 
benefits of particular insurance contracts; to sell insurance; and to obtain insurance for purchasers.  
The role of the producer in any particular transaction typically involves one or more of these activities. 

Compensation will be paid to the producer, based on the insurance contract the producer sells.  
Depending on the insurer(s) and insurance contract(s) the purchaser selects, compensation will be 
paid by the insurer(s) selling the insurance contract or by another third party.  Such compensation 
may vary depending on a number of factors, including the insurance contract(s) and the insurer(s) the 
purchaser selects.  In some cases, other factors such as the volume of business a producer provides 
to an insurer or the profitability of insurance contracts a producer provides to an insurer also may 
affect compensation.   

The insurance purchaser may obtain information about compensation expected to be received by the 
producer based in whole or in part on the sale of insurance to the purchaser, and (if applicable) 
compensation expected to be received based in whole or in part on any alternative quotes presented 
to the purchaser by the producer, by requesting such information from the producer. 

 

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Date Issued: 06/02/20211            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 9 

Burbank Sanitary District   | 2021 - 2022 Alteris Commercial Package Insurance Proposal 

Certificates / Evidence of Insurance 
 

A certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder.  
The certificate does not affirmatively or negatively amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by a 
policy.  Nor does it constitute a contract between the issuing insurer(s), authorized representative, 
producer or certificate holder.   
 
You may have signed contracts, leases or other agreements requiring you to provide this evidence.  
In those agreements, you may assume obligations and/or liability for others (Indemnification, Hold 
Harmless) and some of the obligations that are not covered by insurance.  We recommend that you 
and your legal counsel review these documents. 
 
In addition to providing a certificate of insurance, you may be required to name your client or 
customer on your policy as an additional insured.  This is only possible with permission of the 
insurance company, added by endorsement and, in some cases, an additional premium. 
 
By naming the certificate holder as additional insured, there are consequences to your risks and 
insurance policy including: 

 Your policy limits are now shared with other entities; their claims involvement may reduce or 
exhaust your aggregate limit. 

 Your policy may provide higher limits than required by contract; your full limits can be 
exposed to the additional insured. 

 There may be conflicts in defense when your insurer has to defend both you and the 
additional insured. 

 

 

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Date Issued: 06/02/20211            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 10 

Burbank Sanitary District   | 2021 - 2022 Alteris Commercial Package Insurance Proposal 

Optional Coverages 

 

The following represents a list of insurance coverages that are not included in this proposal, but are 

optional and may be available with further underwriting information. 

Note some of these coverages may be included with limitations or insured elsewhere.  This is a 

partial listing as you may have additional risks not contemplated here or are unique to your 

organization.  

 

 Crime / Fidelity Insurance 

 Directors & Officers Liability 

 Earthquake Insurance 

 Employed Lawyers 

 Employment Practices Liability 

 Event Cancellation 

 Fiduciary Liability 

 Fireworks Liability 

 Flood Insurance 

 Foreign Insurance 

 Garage Keepers Liability 

 Kidnap & Ransom 

 Law Enforcement Liability 

 Media and Publishers Liability 

 Medical Malpractice Liability 

 Network Security / Privacy Liability and 

 Internet Media Liability 

 Pollution Liability 

 Owned/Non-Owned Aircraft 

 Owned Watercraft 

 Special Events Liability 

 Student Accident 

 Volunteer Accidental Death & 

 Dismemberment (AD&D) 

 Workers’ Compensation  

 Workplace Violence 

 

Glossary of Insurance Terms 

 

Below are a couple of links to assist you in understanding the insurance terms your may find within 

your insurance coverages: 

 

http://insurancecommunityuniversity.com/UniversityResources/InsuranceGlossaryFREE.aspx 

http://www.ambest.com/resource/glossary.html 

http://www.irmi.com/online/insurance-glossary/default.aspx 

http://www.alliant.com/
http://insurancecommunityuniversity.com/UniversityResources/InsuranceGlossaryFREE.aspx
http://www.ambest.com/resource/glossary.html
http://www.irmi.com/online/insurance-glossary/default.aspx


 

Date Issued: 06/02/20211            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 11 

Burbank Sanitary District   | 2021 - 2022 Alteris Commercial Package Insurance Proposal 

Binding Requirements Recap 

 

Below is a recap by Line of Coverage.  All coverages require a written request to bind coverage 

from the client. 

Commercial Package Policy 

 
 Alliant Bind Request and Disclosure/Disclaimer Acknowledgement Form – Signed & 

Returned (Page 12) 
 Alteris – Terrorism Disclosure Form – Completed, signed & returned. 

 

In order to complete the underwriting process, we require that you send us any additional information 

requested above. We are not required to bind coverage prior to our receipt and underwriting acceptance 

of the above information. However, if we do bind coverage prior to such acceptance, the terms and 

conditions as indicated above may be amended until such receipt and acceptance. Any agreement to 

bind coverage in connection with this proposal must be in writing from an authorized employee of the 

Insurer 

 

http://www.alliant.com/


 

Date Issued: 06/02/20211            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 12 

Burbank Sanitary District   | 2021 - 2022 Alteris Commercial Package Insurance Proposal 

Request to Bind Coverage 

 

Burbank Sanitary District 

 

 

We have reviewed the proposal and agree to the terms and conditions of the coverages presented.  We 

are requesting coverage to be bound as outlined by coverage line below: 

 

 

Coverage Bind Coverage for: Effective Date 

Commercial Package Policy 

 

☐ July 1, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 

This Authorization to Bind Coverage also acknowledges receipt and review of all disclaimers and 

disclosures, including exposures used to develop insurance terms, contained within this proposal. 

 
 

   

Signature of Authorized Insurance Representative   Date 

   

Title   

   

Printed / Typed Name   
 

This proposal does not constitute a binder of insurance.  Binding is subject to final carrier 

approval.  The actual terms and conditions of the policy will prevail. 

 

http://www.alliant.com/


BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT 

10. OLD BUSINESS

10.A Status of SRF Loan and Design Update
10.B. Long Range Financial Planning
10.C. GreenWaste Recovery, Inc.Update
10.D. District Website Update
10.E. Form 470 Update
10.F. COVID-19 Update



Burbank Sanitary District Neighborhood Clean-up 
May 22, 2021 
7:00 AM – 11:00 AM (or until bins reach full capacity) 

GreenWaste Staff: 
Kevin Martinez 
Willis Pacheco  
Jimmy Pula 
Maria Diaz 

 

Overall, the Burbank Clean-Up ran smoothly and went well. The A-Frame “No Parking” signs with 
encroachment permit affixed to them were placed on Thursday, May 20 by GreenWaste Operations 
staff. Once the signs were placed, Burbank Sanitary District was informed to have an inspector go out 
and check. On Friday, May 21, GreenWaste Operations staff went back out to check on the “No Parking” 
signs to make sure the area was kept clear. 

 We started the clean-up at promptly 7am. There were no issues with loads or residents. Traffic was 
smooth throughout the dumpster locations. Maria, Ramona and I helped direct traffic to available boxes 
on Basile Ave which helped make the process seamless. The boxes on both Bailey and Elliott had helpers 
to assist residents and direct traffic as well. Willis, Jimmy and I made rounds to the different box sites to 
ensure things were running smoothly. All residents made sure to have their flyer on them. There were 
no illegal dumping incidents, and no one was turned away. Once the boxes were picked up, we swept 
and cleaned the box sites, leaving the streets as clean as they were upon our arrival. Residents did a 
great job remaining in their vehicle, keeping their distance and wearing their face coverings. Residents 
were kind and very appreciative of our service. 

KM 

 



BSD Website 
Migration Update



Update – June 11, 2021

!

!

!

https://techzo.ca/burbank/


Prototype 1: BSD Website Pages

! https://techzo.ca/burbank/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/reports-budgets/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/services/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/agendas/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/frequently-asked-question/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/about-us/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/contact-bsd/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/privacy-policy/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/terms-and-conditions/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/
https://techzo.ca/burbank/reports-budgets/
https://techzo.ca/burbank/services/
https://techzo.ca/burbank/agendas/
https://techzo.ca/burbank/frequently-asked-question/
https://techzo.ca/burbank/about-us/
https://techzo.ca/burbank/contact-bsd/
https://techzo.ca/burbank/privacy-policy/
https://techzo.ca/burbank/terms-and-conditions/


Prototype 1: 
Screenshots



BSD Homepage
https://techzo.ca/burbank/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/


About Us
https://techzo.ca/burbank/about-us/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/about-us/


Services
https://techzo.ca/burbank/services/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/services/


Reports and Budgets
https://techzo.ca/burbank/reports-budgets/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/reports-budgets/


Agendas
https://techzo.ca/burbank/agendas/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/agendas/


FAQ
https://techzo.ca/burbank/frequently-asked-question/

https://techzo.ca/burbank/frequently-asked-question/

	06-15-21 BSD Agenda Draft_sh.pdf
	5A Public Hearing 6-15-21
	BSD 2021-22 TaxRoll Report for Board Meeting
	RESOLUTION NO 286 Approving Sewer Service Charge Report FY2021-22_Draft_sh
	7A Approval of Minutes 06-15-21
	05-18-2021 BSD Meeting Minutes Draft_Final
	8A Warrants 06-15-21
	9A New Business 06-15-21
	BSD Budget 2021-22 Draft
	Sheet1

	BSD Budget 2021-21 Worksheet Draft_20210302 w website exp
	Burbank Sanitary District_Commercial Package Alteris Proposal_2021-2022
	10A Old Business 06-15-21
	BSD District-Wide CIP.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1 T-1
	2 G-1
	3 L-1
	4 L-2
	5 L-3
	6 L-4
	7 L-5
	8 L-6
	9 L-7
	10 L-8
	11 SD-1
	12 TC-1
	13 TC-2
	14 EC-1


	BSD District-Wide CIP.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1 T-1
	2 G-1
	3 L-1
	4 L-2
	5 L-3
	6 L-4
	7 L-5
	8 L-6
	9 L-7
	10 L-8
	11 SD-1
	12 TC-1
	13 TC-2
	14 EC-1


	BSD District-Wide CIP.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1 T-1
	2 G-1
	3 L-1
	4 L-2
	5 L-3
	6 L-4
	7 L-5
	8 L-6
	9 L-7
	10 L-8
	11 SD-1
	12 TC-1
	13 TC-2
	14 EC-1


	BSD District Wide CIP Specification 06082021_CLEANED for Board.pdf
	Bid Specifications Dated: June 11, 2021
	Bid Date on June 22, 2021
	Bid Opening on July 27, 2021 at 2 PM
	DOCUMENT 00010 – TABLE OF CONTENTS
	DOCUMENT 00105 – INVITATION TO BID

	END OF DOCUMENT 00105
	DOCUMENT 00200 – INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
	1.1 Summary
	A. Document Includes:
	1.2 Bid submission.
	1.3 Intent.
	1.4 Work Identified in Contract Documents.
	1.5 Contract Time.
	1.6 Definitions.
	1.7 Contract Documents Identification.
	1.8 Availability of Documents.
	1.9 Examination of Documents.
	1.10 Inquiries and Addenda.
	1.11 Product Substitutions.
	1.12 Site Examination.
	1.13 Pre-bid Conference.
	1.14 Bidder Qualifications.
	1.15 Bidder Pre-qualification.
	1.16 Subcontractors.
	1.17 Bid Submission Procedure.
	1.18 Bid Ineligibility.
	1.19 Security Deposit.
	1.20 Performance Assurance.
	1.21 Insurance.
	1.22 Bid Form Requirements.
	1.23 Fees for Changes in the Work.
	1.24 Bid Form Signature.
	1.25 Additional Bid Information.
	1.26 Selection and Award of Alternates.
	1.27 Bid Opening.
	1.28 Duration of Offer.
	1.29 Acceptance of Offer.

	B. Related Documents:
	1.30 Document 00105 - Invitation to Bid.
	1.31 Document 00412 - Bid Form - Unit Price.
	1.32 Document 00430 - Bid Form Supplements:  Appendices A, B


	1.2  Bid Submission
	A. Bids signed and under seal, executed, and dated will be received at the Mark Thomas Office, located at 20863 Stevens Creek Blvd Ste. 100, Cupertino, California 95014 by 2:00 PM local standard time on July 27, 2021.
	B. Bids submitted after the above time may be returned to Bidder unopened at the discretion of the District.
	C. Amendments to submitted Bids will be permitted when received in writing prior to bid closing and when endorsed by the same party or parties who signed and sealed the Bid.
	D. Bidders may withdraw their Bid by written request at any time before bid closing.

	1.3 Intent
	A. The intent of this Bid request is to obtain an offer to perform work to install sanitary sewer main, sanitary sewer cleanouts, sanitary sewer manhole, and laterals with appurtenances.

	1.4 Work Identified In Contract Documents
	A. In December of 2016, the District applied for a Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) loan.  On April 29, 2021, the District was notified that the CWSRF loan had been approved.  The loan will provide funding for construction costs and soft costs...
	B. Funding for this District Wide Capital Improvement Project has been provided in full or in part by the Clean Water State Revolving Fund through an agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board. California’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund...
	C. The work to be done under this contract consists of, in general, but not limited to the cured in place rehabilitation approximately 43 line segments of 6 and 8 inch sewer mains for a total length of 18,010 linear feet and spot repairs at 41 locatio...
	D. The solicitation is comprised of Base Bid Work for rehabilitation of sewer located within the Burbank street right of way and an Alternative Bid for rehabilitation work to repair pipes that are located in sewer easements. The table below provides a...


	District-wide Capital Improvement Project
	1.5 CONTRACT TIME
	A. Perform the Work in ninety (90) working days for the Base Bid Items, and an additional twenty (20) working days if the alternate bid is accepted, from the date of the Notice to Proceed.  Bidders may suggest revisions to the Contract Time with a spe...

	1.6 Definitions
	A. Bid Documents: Contract Documents supplemented with Invitation to Bid,
	B. Instructions to Bidders, Information available to Bidders, Bid Form Supplements and Appendices, and bid securities, identified.
	C. Contract Documents:  Approved Specifications and Construction Plans prepared by Mark Thomas, including Bidding Documents and issued Addenda.
	D. Bid: Executed Bid Form and required attachments submitted in accordance with these Instructions to Bidders.
	E. Bid Price:  Monetary sum identified by the Bidder in the Bid Form.

	1.7 Contract Documents Identification
	A. The Contract Documents are identified as: DISTRICT-WIDE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT as prepared by Mark Thomas and Company, Inc. located at 20863 Stevens Creek Blvd. Suite. 100 Cupertino, CA 95014.

	1.8 Availability Of Documents
	A. Bidding Documents may be obtained as stated in Invitation to Bid.
	B. Partial sets of Bidding Documents will not be issued to general contract Bidders.
	C. Bidding Documents are made available only for the purpose of obtaining offers for this Project.  Their use does not grant a license for other purposes.

	1.9 Examination Of Documents
	A. Upon receipt of Bid Documents, Contractor shall verify documents are complete, and notify the Engineer if the documents are incomplete.
	B. Immediately notify Engineer upon finding discrepancies or omissions in Bidding Documents.

	1.10 Inquiries And Addenda
	A. Bidder must direct all questions about the meaning or intent of Bidding Documents to the District (Attention:  District’s Authorized Representative) in writing.  Letters, Faxes or emails are acceptable forms of written questions. Email address will...
	B. Oral and other interpretations or clarification will be without legal effect.
	C. Questions must be submitted not less than two (2) days before date set for receipt of Bids.  Replies will be made by Addenda.
	D. Addenda may be issued during bidding period.  Addenda shall be acknowledged by number with signature and shall be part of the Contract Documents.  A complete listing of Addenda may be secured from the District.

	1.11 PRODUCT SUBSTITUTIONS
	A. Bidder must base their Bids on Products and systems specified in the Contract Documents or Addenda.
	B. Where Bidding Documents stipulate particular Products, substitution requests will be considered by the Engineer up to two (2) days before receipt of Bids.
	C. With each substitution request, the bidder must provide sufficient information for the Engineer to determine acceptability of proposed products.
	D. Bidder must base their Bids on Products and systems specified in the Contract Documents or Addenda.
	E. When a request to substitute a Product is made, the Engineer may approve the substitution.  Approved substitution will be identified by Addenda.
	F. In submission of substitutions to Products specified, Bidders shall include in their Bid, changes required in the Work and changes to Contract Time and Contract Price to accommodate such approved substitutions.  Later claims by the Bidder for an ad...
	G. Provide Products as specified unless substitutions are submitted in this manner and subsequently accepted.
	H. Approval to submit substitution requests prior to submission of Bids is not required
	1.12 Site Examination
	A. Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder shall be responsible to obtain such additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface, and Underground Facilities) at or c...
	B. A Pre-bid job walk will be scheduled for July 7, 2021 at 10:00 AM. The District recommends potential bidders to attend this job walk but attendance will not be mandatory for bidding. Meeting site for job walk will be within the project area but wil...
	C. Contact Engineer at the following address and phone number for more information:
	Address: 20863 Stevens Creek Blvd. Suite 100, Cupertino CA.
	Telephone: (408) 477-7306
	Contact: Frank Quach

	D. No Geotechnical Soils Investigation has been conducted for this project.  Bidders shall satisfy themselves in assessing subsoil conditions for the Work.
	E. Contractor is responsible for contacting Underground Service Alert (USA) at (1-800-227-2600) prior to the start of construction to have all utility locations marked and located prior to the start of construction.

	1.13 Bidder Qualifications
	A. To demonstrate qualification for performing the Work of this Contract, Bidders may be requested to submit written evidence of bonding capacity, previous experience, current commitments and licenses to perform work in the County of Santa Clara and S...

	1.14 Bidder Pre-Qualification
	A. Bidder must hold a Class “A” General Engineering Contractor or Class “C-34” Pipeline Contractor, contractor’s license and meet current registration requirements with the Burbank Sanitary District to Bid this Contract. Joint ventures must secure a j...

	1.15 Subcontractors
	A. All Bidders must submit with their Bids the required information on all Subcontractors, for those Subcontractors who will perform any portion of Work, including labor, rendering of service, or specially fabricating and installing a portion of the W...

	1.16 Bid Submission Procedure
	A. Bidders shall be solely responsible for delivery of Bids in manner and time prescribed.
	B. Submit one (1) copy of executed offer on Bid Forms provided, signed and sealed with required Bid Bond in a closed opaque envelope, clearly identified with Bidder’s name, Project name, contact phone number and District's name on the outside.
	C. Double Envelope: Insert the closed and sealed Bid Form in a large envelope and include the requested Bid Bond in a separate opaque envelope. Label the outer envelope as noted above.
	D. Improperly completed information or irregularities in Bid Bond, may be cause not to open the Bid Form envelope.  District may declare the Bid invalid.
	E. A summary of submitted Bids will be made available to all Bidders following bid opening.

	1.17 Bid Ineligibility
	A. Bids that are unsigned, improperly signed or sealed, conditional, illegible, obscure, contain arithmetical errors, erasures, alterations, or irregularities of any kind, may be declared unacceptable at District’s discretion.
	B. Bid Forms, Appendices, and enclosures which are improperly prepared may be declared unacceptable at District’s discretion.
	C. Failure to provide security deposit, bonds or insurance requirements will invalidate the Bid at the discretion of the District.
	D. Bids are by invitation from selected Bidders and by qualified Bidders via project advertisement.  Unsolicited Bids from non-qualified Bidders will be returned.

	1.18 Security Deposit
	A. Bids shall be accompanied by a Bid Bond that equals the sum of no less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid Price on standard surety company form.
	B. Endorse Bid Bond in name of the District as obligee, signed and sealed by the principal Contractor and surety.
	C. Include the cost of the Bid Bond in the Bid Price.  No separate payment will be made thereof.
	D. After a Bid has been accepted, Bid Bonds will be returned to the respective Bidders, other than the lowest bidder.
	E. If no contract is awarded, Bid Bonds will be returned.

	1.19 Performance Assurance
	A. Accepted Bidder:  Provide Performance and Payment bonds in amount of one hundred percent (100%) of Bid Price as described in Document 00200 – Instructions to Bidders.
	B. Include the cost of performance assurance bonds in the Bid Price.  Bidder shall identify the cost when requested by the District.

	1.20 Insurance
	A. Provide an executed "Undertaking of Insurance" on a standard form provided by the insurance company stating their intention to provide insurance to the Bidder in accordance with the insurance requirements of the Contract Documents.
	B. Insurance certificates shall name Burbank Sanitary District, Mark Thomas & Co. Inc., and the State Water Board, its officers, agents, employees, and servants as additional insured.

	1.21 Bid Form Requirements
	A. Complete requested information in the Bid Form and Bid Form Supplements.

	1.22 Fees For Changes In The Work
	A. Include in the Bid Form, the overhead and profit fees on Bidder’s own Work and Work by Subcontractors, applicable for Changes in the Work, whether additions to or deductions from the Work on which the Bid Price is based.

	1.23 Bid Form Signature
	A. Sign Bid Form, as follows:
	1. Sole Proprietorship:  Signature of sole proprietor in the presence of a witness who will also sign.  Insert the words "Sole Proprietor" under the signature.  Affix seal.
	2. Partnership:  Signature of all partners in the presence of a witness who will also sign.  Insert the word "Partner" under each signature.  Affix seal to each signature.
	3. Corporation:  Signature of duly authorized signing officers in their normal signatures.  Insert the officer's capacity in which the signing officer acts, under each signature.  Affix the corporate seal.  If the Bid is signed by officials other than...
	4. Joint Venture:  Signature of each party of the joint venture under their respective seals in a manner appropriate to such party as described above, similar to requirements for Partnerships.


	1.24 Additional Bid Information
	A. Complete and submit Document 00430 - Bid Form Supplements with Bid.
	B. Complete and submit the following Appendices included in Document 00430 - Bid Form Supplements within twenty-four (24) hours of Bid opening, if not already included in the Bid:
	1. Appendix A - List of Subcontractors:  Include names of all Subcontractors and portions of the Work each Subcontractor will perform.
	1.25 DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS ENTERPRISE REQUIREMENT

	A. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of the USEPA’s Program for Utilization of Small, Minority, and Women’s Business Enterprises.
	B. The contractor shall attempt to pay 1% of total contract amount to sub-contractors which are classified as small, minority, or women business enterprises.
	1.26 SELECTION OF AWARD AND ALTERNATES

	A. The contract will be awarded to the bidder with the lowest pricing based solely on the Base Bid, excluding alternative bids.
	B. The District reserves the right to award ALL of the Alternate Bid items shown in the bid schedule or portions of the Alternate Bid. Acceptance of the Alternate Bid in no way requires the District to award all of the Bid Items shown in the Alternate...

	1.26 Bid Opening
	A. Bids will be opened and read by Mark Thomas, 20863 Stevens Creek Blvd Ste. 100, Cupertino, California 95014 at 2:00 PM local standard time on July 27, 2021. A report of the results will be made by Mark Thomas at a publicly noticed regular or specia...

	1.27 Duration Of Offer
	A. Bids shall remain open to acceptance and shall be irrevocable for a period of ninety (90) calendar days after bid closing date.

	1.28 Acceptance Of Offer
	A. The District reserves the right to accept or reject any or all offers.
	B. Before acceptance by the District, Engineer will distribute a Notice of Intent to Award (NOITA) informing all bidding contractors of the lowest bidder. The NOITA will be delivered to all bidders on August 30.
	C. It is anticipated that Burbank Sanitary District will award the contract on October 19, 2021 and inform the winning contractor on October 29. .
	D. After acceptance by the District, Engineer will issue to the accepted Bidder, a written Bid Acceptance, First Charge Date will be September 13, 2021.
	E. Once the contractor’s submittals required by these Project Specifications are provided, the Project Kickoff Meeting will be scheduled. The Submittals will be reviewed at the Project Kickoff Meeting and if they meet the requirements of the Specifica...
	F. Notwithstanding delay in the preparation and execution of the Agreement, accepted Bidder shall be prepared, upon written Notice to Proceed (NTP), to commence work within fifteen (15) calendar days following receipt of official written order of the ...
	G. The accepted bidder shall assist and cooperate with the District to prepare the Agreement, and within seven (7) calendar days following its presentation shall execute Agreement and return it to the District.
	H. The contractor must begin construction within fourteen (14) days of the Notice to Proceed. The District is required by the State to hire and have a certified biologist perform a pre-construction survey of the project area for nesting sites for the ...

	1.29 Funding Acknowledgement
	A. Funding for this project has been provided in full or in part through an agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board. California’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund is capitalized through a variety of funding sources, including grants fro...


	END OF DOCUMENT 00200
	DOCUMENT 00210 – INDEMNITY AND RELEASE AGREEMENT

	END OF DOCUMENT 00210
	DOCUMENT 00320 – GEOTECHNICAL DATA, HAZARDOUS MATERIALS, SURVEYS, AND EXISTING CONDITIONS
	1. SUMMARY
	2. REPORTS AND INFORMATION
	A. District, its consultants, and prior contractors may have collected documents providing a general description of the Site and conditions of the Work.  These documents may consist of geotechnical reports for and around the Site, contracts, contract ...

	3. USE OF INFORMATION ON EXISTING CONDITIONS
	A. Above ground Existing Conditions.  Under no circumstances shall District be deemed to make a warranty or representation of existing aboveground conditions, as-built conditions, or other aboveground actual conditions verifiable by reasonable indepen...
	B. Underground Facilities.  Information supplied regarding existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the Site is based on information furnished to District by others (e.g., the owners or builders of such Underground Facilities or others).   ...

	4. LIMITED RELIANCE PERMITTED ON CERTAIN INFORMATION
	A. Geotechnical Data.  For informational purpose only.  Except as expressly set forth in this Document 00320, District does not warrant, and makes no representation regarding, the accuracy or thoroughness of any geotechnical data.  Bidder represents a...
	B. Bidder may rely upon the general accuracy of the “technical data” contained in the geotechnical reports and drawings identified above, but only insofar as it relates to subsurface conditions, provided Bidder has conducted the independent investigat...
	1. The term “technical data” shall include actual reported depths, reported quantities, reported soil types, reported soil conditions, and reported material, equipment, or structures that were encountered during subsurface
	2. The term “technical data” does not include, and Bidder may not rely upon, any other data, interpretations, opinions or information shown or indicated in such drawings or reports that otherwise relate to subsurface conditions or described structures.
	3. The term “technical data” shall not include the location of Underground Facilities.
	4. Bidder may not rely on the completeness of reports and drawings for the purposes of bidding or construction.  Bidder may rely upon the general accuracy of the “technical data” contained in such reports or drawings.
	5. Bidder is solely responsible for any interpretation or conclusion drawn from any “technical data” or any other data, interpretations, opinions, or information contained in supplied geotechnical data.

	5. INVESTIGATIONS
	A. Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder shall be responsible to obtain such additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface, and Underground Facilities) at or c...
	B. District has provided time in the period prior to bidding for Bidder to perform these investigations.

	6. ACCESS TO SITE FOR INVESTIGATIONS


	END OF DOCUMENT 00320
	DOCUMENT 00412 – BID FORM-UNIT PRICE
	Appendix B - Fees for Changes in the Work.  Include the overhead and profit fees on Bidder’s own Work and Work by Subcontractors, applicable for Changes in the Work, whether additions to or deductions from the Work on which the Bid Price is based.

	END OF DOCUMENT 00412
	DOCUMENT 00430 – BID FORM SUPPLEMENTS
	Appendix B - Fees for Changes in the Work. Include the overhead and profit fees on Bidder’s own Work and Work by Subcontractors, applicable for Changes in the Work, whether additions to or deductions from the Work on which the Bid Price is based.
	APPENDIX A - LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS
	APPENDIX B – FEES FOR CHANGES IN THE WORK.


	END OF DOCUMENT 00430
	DOCUMENT 00450 – STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION WORK
	DOCUMENT 00481 – NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

	END OF DOCUMENT 00481
	DOCUMENT 00482 – BIDDER CERTIFICATIONS

	1. STATEMENT OF CONVICTIONS
	2. CERTIFICATION OF WORKER’S COMPENSATION INSURANCE
	3. CERTIFICATION OF PREVAILING WAGE RATES AND RECORDS
	4. CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISCRIMINATION
	5. CERTIFICATION REGARDING PREVIOUS DISQUALIFICATIONS
	6. CERTIFICATION OF ADEQUACY OF CONTRACT AMOUNT
	END OF DOCUMENT 00482
	DOCUMENT 00510 – NOTICE OF AWARD
	1. Three copies of each of the proposed Contract Documents (except Specifications and Drawings) accompany this Notice of Award.
	2. You must comply with the following conditions precedent by 5:00 p.m. of the 10th Calendar Day following the date of this Notice of Award, that is, by _______________________.
	a. Deliver to District three fully executed counterparts of Document 00520 (Construction Contract Agreement).  Each of the Contract Documents must bear your signature on the cover page.
	b. Deliver to District three original Document 00610 (Bidder’s Bond), executed by you and your surety.
	c. Deliver to District three original Document 00620 (Faithful Performance Bond), executed by you and your surety.
	d. Deliver to District three original copies of Document 00630 (Payment Bond), each executed by you.
	e. Deliver to District three original copies of Document 00640 (Warranty Bond), each executed by you.
	f. Deliver to District three original sets of the insurance certificates from Document 00530 (Insurance Forms) with endorsements.

	3. Within 21 Days after you comply with the conditions in paragraph 2 of this Document 00510, District will return to you one fully signed counterpart of Document 00520 (Construction Contract Agreement) with the Contract Documents.
	4. Upon commencement of the Work, you and each of your Subcontractors shall certify and make available for inspection payroll records on forms provided by the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, in accordance with Section 1776 of the California L...


	END OF DOCUMENT 00510
	DOCUMENT 00520 – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE 1 - SCOPE OF WORK
	ARTICLE 2 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS


	a. This Agreement;
	b. Notice Requesting Sealed Proposals;
	c. Accepted Proposal;
	d. Bidder’s Bond;
	e. Faithful Performance Bond;
	f. Payment Bond;
	g. Warranty Bond;
	h. Labor and Material Bond;
	i. Standard Specifications;
	j. Design Standards; and
	k. Plans, Profiles, and Detailed Drawings.
	ARTICLE 3 - CHANGE IN THE WORK
	ARTICLE 4 - COMPLETION OF WORK
	ARTICLE 5 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
	ARTICLE 6 - PREVAILING WAGES
	ARTICLE 7 - CONTRACT PRICE
	ARTICLE 8 - PAYMENT PROCEDURES
	ARTICLE 9 - RETENTION
	ARTICLE 10 - FACILITIES, EQUIPMENT, SAFETY AND JOBSITE MANAGEMENT
	ARTICLE 11 - BONDS
	ARTICLE 12 - INSURANCE
	ARTICLE 13 - INDEMNIFICATION
	ARTICLE 14 - DISCLAIMER AND INDEMNITY
	ARTICLE 15 - ASSIGNMENT
	ARTICLE 16 – EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT
	ARTICLE 17 - NOTICE
	ARTICLE 17 - SEVERABILITY
	ARTICLE 18 - GOVERNING LAW
	AGREEMENT CERTIFICATE
	EXHIBITS
	DOCUMENT 00530 – INSURANCE FORMS
	INSURANCE AGREEMENT
	LIMITS
	CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE TO BURBANK SANITARY DISTRICT


	END OF DOCUMENT 00530
	DOCUMENT 00550 – NOTICE TO PROCEED

	CONTRACT FOR:
	END OF DOCUMENT 00550
	DOCUMENT 00610 – BIDDER’S BOND

	END OF DOCUMENT 00610
	DOCUMENT 00620 – FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND

	END OF DOCUMENT 00620
	DOCUMENT 00630 – PAYMENT BOND

	END OF DOCUMENT 00630
	DOCUMENT 00640 – WARRANTY BOND

	END OF DOCUMENT 00640
	DOCUMENT 00650 – LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND

	END OF DOCUMENT 00650
	DOCUMENT 00660 – AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF ANY AND ALL CLAIMS

	END OF DOCUMENT 00660
	DOCUMENT 00670 – SUBSTITUTION REQUEST FORM

	END OF DOCUMENT 00670
	DOCUMENT 00680 – ESCROW AGREEMENT SECURITY DEPOSITS IN LIEU OF RETENTION

	END OF DOCUMENT 00680
	DOCUMENT 01100 – PROJECT SUMMARY
	Section Includes
	A. Contract description.
	B. Contractor's use of site and Project Limits.
	C. Work sequence.
	D. Order of Work for Project

	Contract Description
	E. In December of 2016, the District applied for a Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) loan.  On April 29, 2021, the District was notified that the CWSRF loan had been approved.  The loan will provide funding for construction costs and soft costs...
	F. Funding for this District Wide Capital Improvement Project has been provided in full or in part by the Clean Water State Revolving Fund through an agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board. California’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund...
	G. The work to be done under this contract consists of, in general, but not limited to the cured in place rehabilitation approximately 43 line segments of 6 and 8 inch sewer mains for a total length of 18,010 linear feet and spot repairs at 41 locatio...
	H. The solicitation is comprised of Base Bid Work for rehabilitation of sewer located within the Burbank street right of way and an Alternative Bid for rehabilitation work to repair pipes that are located in sewer easements. The table below provides a...
	A. Perform Work of the Contract under separate stipulated price contract with District in accordance with Conditions of Contract.

	Contractor's Use Of Site And Project Limits
	A. Contractor shall limit use of street right of way to maintain traffic access all driveway and to public through the construction areas. Contractor must maintain one traffic lane open at all times during construction, and Contractor will be responsi...
	B. Time Restrictions for Performing Contract Work: Work shall not commence prior to 8:00 AM and shall end at 5:00 PM daily, Monday through Friday. Daily cleanup operations shall begin no later than 4:00 PM and all traffic lanes shall be open and unres...
	Work Sequence
	A. Coordinate construction schedule and operations, including any soils testing and notifications, with the Engineer.  Sequence of Work to progress as based on a schedule provided by Contractor to the District prior to the start of construction.
	B. Construction Work to accommodate traffic access during construction period.  Written notification to all affected agencies shall be made one (1) week prior and again twenty-four (24) hours prior to the start of work affecting said agencies and home...
	C. Contractor shall adhere to the Traffic Control Plan showing proposed traffic restriction locations (if any), advance warning signs, and flagmen positions.
	D. Cleanup operations shall begin no later than 4:00 PM in order to leave streets open to traffic by 5:00 PM.
	ORDER OF WORK FOR PROJECT
	A. Field locate all repair per layout and details sheet, and all existing sewer service laterals for the purpose of maintaining service during construction and for reconnection.
	B. For Cured in Place Repairs:
	i. Complete point repairs following procedure in Section 3300, if applicable.
	ii. Once point repair is complete, install CIPP liner as stated in Section 3400.
	C. If repairing via Open Cut or pipe bursting method, In pavement areas, expose laterals connected to existing main, then place steel plate to cover the excavated holes and place AC cut back (minimum 1 foot wide) around the steel plate and open it to ...
	D. Locations of spot repairs involving laterals in proximity:
	 Temporarily disconnect sewer lateral at the wye, CCTV, and then temporarily reconnect sewer lateral (maximum disconnection time is two (2) hours per each lateral).
	 Submit CCTV result and District will make determination if the lateral will need to be replaced or lined via CIPP.
	 Repair mainline via Open Cut, pipe bursting, or CIPP mainline and laterals.
	 Re-establish connection for all laterals
	 If laterals need to be replaced, maximum disconnection time will be 8 hours per laterals
	 Perform testing (Per BSD standard requirement)
	 Final CCTV Inspection of mainline and sewer laterals by District



	END OF DOCUMENT 01100
	DOCUMENT 01200 – PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

	SECTION INCLUDES
	A. Contingency allowances.
	B. Testing and inspection allowances.
	C. Applications for payment.
	D. Change procedures.
	E. Defect assessment
	F. Unit prices.
	Contingency Allowances
	A. No contingency allowance is included in this contract.

	Testing And Inspection Allowances
	A. Construction inspection is provided by the District at no additional cost to the Contractor.

	Applications For Payment
	A. Submit three copies of each application.
	B. Content and Format:  Utilize Schedule of Values for listing items in Application for Payment.
	C. Submit updated construction schedule with each Application for Payment.
	D. Submit with transmittal letter as specified for Submittals in Section 01330.
	E. Submit claim waivers with application for final payment upon completion of the Work.
	F. Substantiating Data:  When Engineer requires substantiating information, submit data justifying dollar amounts in question.  Include the following with Application for Payment:
	1. Partial release of liens from major subcontractors and vendors.
	2. Affidavits attesting to value of off-site stored products.
	3. Construction progress schedules, revised and current as specified in Section 01330.


	Change Procedures
	A. Submittals:  Submit name of individual authorized to receive change documents, and be responsible for informing others in Contractor's employ or Subcontractors of changes to the Work.
	B. The Engineer will advise of minor changes in the Work not involving adjustment to Contract Price or Contract Time by issuing supplemental instructions in a Written Amendment to the Contract.
	C. The Engineer may issue a Notice of Change including a detailed description of proposed change with supplementary or revised drawings and specifications, a change in Contract Time for executing the change and the period of time during which the requ...
	D. Contractor may propose changes by submitting a request for change to Engineer, describing proposed change and its full effect on the Work.  Include a statement describing reason for the change, and effect on Contract Price and Contract Time with fu...
	E. Unit Price Change Order:  For contract unit prices and quantities, the Change Order will be executed on fixed unit price basis.  For unit costs or quantities of units of work which are not pre-determined, execute Work under Work Directive Change. C...
	F. Work Directive Change: Engineer may issue directive, instructing Contractor to proceed with change in the Work, for subsequent inclusion in a Change Order.  Document will describe changes in the Work, and designate method of determining any change ...
	G. Time and Material Change Order:  Submit itemized account and supporting data after completion of change, within time limits indicated in Conditions of the Contract. Engineer will determine change allowable in Contract Price and Contract Time as pro...
	H. Contractor will not be paid for extra work performed prior to approval by Engineer.
	I. Maintain detailed records of work done on Time and Material basis.  Provide full information required for evaluation of proposed changes, and to substantiate costs for changes in the Work.
	J. Document each quotation for change in cost or time with sufficient data to allow evaluation of quotation.
	K. Change Order Forms: District Change Order.
	L. Execution of Change Orders:  Engineer will issue Change Orders for signatures of parties as provided in Conditions of the Contract.
	M. Correlation of Contractor Submittals:
	1. Promptly revise Schedule of Values and Application for Payment forms to record each authorized Change Order as separate line item and adjust Contract Sum/Price.
	2. Promptly revise progress schedules to reflect change in Contract Time, revise sub-schedules to adjust times for other items of work affected by the change, and resubmit.
	3. Promptly enter changes in Project Record Documents.


	Defect Assessment
	A. Replace the Work, or portions of the Work, not conforming to requirements of approved Construction Plans and Specifications, i.e.: failing compacted backfill material, contaminated soils or aggregates, damaged pipe materials etc.
	B. If, in the opinion of the Engineer, it is not practical to remove and replace the Work, the Engineer will direct appropriate remedy or adjust payment.
	C. The defective Work may remain, but unit price will be adjusted to new price at discretion of Engineer.
	D. Individual specification sections may modify these options or may identify specific formula or percentage sum/price reduction.
	E. Assessment of defects and identification of payment adjustments is the authority of the Engineer.
	F. Non-Payment for Rejected Products:  Payment will not be made for rejected products for any of the following:
	1. Products wasted or disposed of in a manner that is not acceptable.
	2. Products determined as unacceptable before or after placement.
	3. Products not completely unloaded from transporting vehicle.
	4. Products placed beyond lines and levels of required Work.
	5. Products remaining on hand after completion of the Work.
	6. Loading, hauling, and disposing of rejected products.
	7. Any other products/work deemed unacceptable by the Engineer.


	Unit Prices
	A. Measurement methods delineated in individual specification sections complement criteria of this section.  In event of conflict, requirements of individual specification section govern.  All measurements shall be as specified or made by conventional...
	B. Contractor to take measurements and compute quantities.  Engineer will verify measurements and quantities.
	C. Unit Quantities:  Quantities and measurements indicated in Bid Form are for contract purposes only.  Quantities and measurements supplied or placed in the Work shall determine payment.
	1. When actual Work requires twenty-five (25%) percent or greater change in quantity than those quantities indicated, District or Contractor may claim for Contract Price adjustment.

	D. Payment Includes:  Full compensation for required labor, products, tools, equipment, plant and facilities, transportation, services and incidentals; erection, application or installation of item of the Work; overhead and profit.
	E. Final payment for Work governed by unit prices will be made on basis of actual measurements and quantities accepted by Engineer multiplied by unit price for Work incorporated in or made necessary by the Work.
	F. Measurement of Quantities:
	1. Measurement by Volume:  Measured by cubic dimension using mean length, width and height or thickness.
	2. Measurement by Area:  Measured by square dimension using mean length and width or radius.
	3. Linear Measurement:  Measured by linear dimension, at item centerline or mean chord.
	4. Stipulated Price Measurement:  Items measured by count, weight, volume, area, or linear means or combination, as appropriate, as completed item or unit of the Work.
	5. Lump Sum: Items measured by all components required to complete item of the Work.



	END OF DOCUMENT 01200
	DOCUMENT 01300 – ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS
	SECTION INCLUDES
	A. Field engineering.
	B. Pre-construction meeting.

	Field Engineering
	A. The District will provide a Land Surveyor registered in State of California to stake the project area, at no cost to the Contractor.  Field staking/engineering shall be provided one time by the District. Any subsequent damaged or missing stakes or ...
	B. The District will provide locations of survey control and reference points.
	C. Vertical control datum for survey is that shown on Project Plans.
	D. Contractor shall protect survey control points prior to starting site work; preserve permanent reference points during construction.
	E. Contractor shall promptly report to District loss or destruction of reference point or relocation required because of changes in grades or other reasons.  Contractor shall be responsible for replacing any lost or destroyed items.
	F. Contractor shall replace dislocated survey control points based on original survey control.  Make no changes without prior written notice to District.

	First Charge Day
	A. Contractor will be given a First Charge Day during the Notice of Award. This Day will be the day they can begin charging to the job.
	B. Tasks allowed are gathering of Bonds, Insurance, Emergency Contact Information, and any necessary submittals.
	C. The First Charge Day does NOT equate to the Notice to Proceed (NTP).

	Preconstruction Meeting
	A. District will schedule meeting after Notice of Award.
	B. Preconstruction meeting required prior to Notice to Proceed (NTP).
	C. Attendance Required:  District Engineer or authorized representative, and Contractor.
	D. Agenda:
	1. Execution of District-Contractor Agreement.
	2. Submission of executed bonds and insurance certificates.
	3. Distribution of Contract Documents.
	4. Submission of list of products, schedule of values, and progress schedule. Designation of personnel representing parties in Contract, District and the Contractor. Procedures and processing of field decisions, submittals, substitutions, applications...
	5. Scheduling, Critical Path Schedule and Order of Work.
	6. Site Mobilization and Equipment staging.
	7. Scheduling activities of Geotechnical Engineer.
	8. Traffic Control and Work Hours.
	9. Daily Clean Up Procedures.
	10. Safety Program (including trench safety). Verify that Contractor has notified appropriate police and fire departments and post office of construction dates.  Contractor must submit copies of the written notifications to the Engineer.
	11. Utility and environmental compliance.
	12. Required Material submittals
	1) PVC Pipe & Fittings
	2) CIPP Liner & Installation Procedures
	3) Pipe Bedding
	4) Trench Backfill
	5) Asphalt Concrete
	6) Mortar/Grouting for connections to manholes
	7) SWPPP


	E. Record minutes and distribute copies within two (2) days after meeting to participants, with two (2) copies to Engineer, Owner, and those affected by decisions made.


	END OF DOCUMENT 01300
	DOCUMENT 01330 – SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES
	Section Includes
	A. Submittal procedures.
	B. Construction progress schedules.
	C. Proposed product and submittal lists.
	D. Test reports.

	Submittal Procedures
	A. Transmit each submittal with Engineer accepted form.
	B. Identify Project, Contractor, subcontractor and supplier; pertinent drawing and detail number, and specification section number, appropriate to submittal.
	C. Apply Contractor's stamp, signed or initialed certifying that review, approval, verification of products required, field dimensions, adjacent construction Work, and coordination of information is in accordance with requirements of the Work and Cont...
	D. Schedule submittals to expedite Project, and deliver to Engineer at business address.  Coordinate submission of related items.
	E. Contractor shall identify variations from Contract Documents and product or system limitations which may be detrimental to successful performance of completed Work.
	F. Allow space on submittals for Engineer review stamps.
	G. Distribute copies of reviewed submittals as appropriate to any subcontractors.  Instruct parties to promptly report inability to comply with requirements.
	H. District shall review and return submittals within three (3) working days after receipt.

	Construction Progress Schedules
	A. Submit initial schedules within seven (7) days after date of District-Contractor Agreement.  After review, resubmit required revised data within three (3) days.
	B. Submit revised Progress Schedule on Monday of each week following start of construction.
	C. Distribute copies of reviewed schedules to District Engineer, subcontractors, suppliers, and other concerned parties.
	D. Instruct recipients to promptly report, in writing, problems anticipated by projections indicated in schedules.
	E. Submit computer generated horizontal bar chart with separate line for each section of Work, identifying first workday of each week.

	Proposed Product AND SUBMITTAL ListS
	A. Within seven (7) days after date of District-Contractor Agreement, submit list of major products proposed for use, with name of manufacturer, trade name, and model number of each product.  All products must be approved by District prior to start of...
	B. For products specified only by reference standards, give manufacturer, trade name, model or catalog designation, and reference standards.
	C. Methods of construction, reconnection, and restoration of existing service laterals.
	D. Detailed descriptions of the methods of modifying existing manholes.
	E. Sewer bypass plans, methods and list of equipment to be utilized.
	F. Description of the method to remove and dispose of the host pipe, if required.
	G. The safety plan in conformance with the Contract Documents and OSHA regulations.
	H. Operator certifications for CIPP lining, grouting, horizontal directional drilling, and pipe fusing, if applicable.
	I. Traffic Control Plans
	J. Storm Water Prevention and Best Management Practices

	Test Reports
	A. Submit for Engineer's knowledge as contract administrator for District.
	B. Submit compaction test reports for information for purpose of assessing conformance with Specifications shown on Project Plans and expressed in Contract Documents.


	END OF DOCUMENT 01330
	DOCUMENT 01400 – QUALITY REQUIREMENTS
	Section Includes
	A. Quality control and control of installation.
	B. Testing and inspection services.
	C. Examination.

	Quality Control And Control Of Installation
	A. Monitor quality control over suppliers, manufacturers, products, services, site conditions, and workmanship, to produce Work of specified quality.
	B. Comply with manufacturers' instructions, including each step in the sequence.
	C. When manufacturers' instructions conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from Engineer before proceeding.

	Testing And Inspection Services
	A. Construction inspection of the sanitary sewer will be provided by the District at no cost to the Contractor.
	B. Any product or material testing required by the District shall be coordinated by the Contractor via an independent testing firm.  The independent firm will perform tests, inspections and other services, at the Contractor’s expense, specified in ind...
	C. Testing, inspections and source quality control may occur on or off project site.  Perform off-site testing as required by the District and/or Santa Clara County.
	D. All reports will be submitted by the independent firm to Engineer and Contractor, in duplicate, indicating observations and results of tests and indicating compliance or non-compliance with Contract Documents.
	E. Cooperate with independent firm; furnish samples of materials, design mix, equipment, tools, storage, safe access, and assistance by incidental labor as requested.
	1. Notify Engineer and independent firm twenty-four (24) hours prior to expected time for operations requiring services.
	2. Make arrangements with independent firm and pay for additional samples and tests required for Contractor's use.

	F. Testing and employment of testing agency or laboratory shall not relieve Contractor of obligation to perform Work in accordance with requirements of Contract Documents.
	G. Re-testing or re-inspection required because of non-conformance to specified requirements shall be performed by same independent firm on instructions by Engineer.  Payment for re-testing or re-inspection will be charged to Contractor by deducting t...
	H. Limits on Testing Authority:
	1. Agency or laboratory may not release, revoke, alter, or enlarge on requirements of Contract Documents.
	2. Agency or laboratory may not approve or accept any portion of the work.
	3. Agency or laboratory may not assume duties of Contractor.
	4. Agency or laboratory has no authority to stop the Work.


	Examination
	A. Verify existing site conditions and substrate surfaces are acceptable for subsequent Work.  Beginning new Work means acceptance of existing conditions.
	B. Examine and verify specific conditions described in individual specification sections.
	C. Prior to starting work, The Contractor shall verify the location of all adjacent existing utilities.
	D. The Contractor shall expose all interfering and crossing utilities by spot excavating at the planar intersection of the pipe and removing the soil from around the utility.


	END OF DOCUMENT 01400
	DOCUMENT 01500 – TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS
	Section Includes
	A. Temporary Utilities:
	1. Temporary water service.
	2. Temporary sanitary facilities.

	B. Construction Facilities:
	1. Vehicular access.
	2. Parking.
	3. Progress cleaning and waste removal.
	4. Traffic regulation.

	C. Temporary Controls:
	1. Barriers.
	2. Fence
	3. Water control.
	4. Dust control.
	5. Erosion and sediment control.
	6. Noise control.
	7. Pollution control.
	8. Removal of utilities, facilities and controls.


	Temporary Water Service
	A. Provide suitable water supply at the Contractor’s expense as needed to maintain specified conditions for construction operations. Contractor is responsible for contacting local water agency for the use of their facilities.

	Temporary Sanitary Facilities
	A. Maintain required facilities and enclosures at the beginning of the project and keep in place until project completion.

	Vehicular Access
	A. Maintain vehicular access as work progresses, provide detours as necessary for unimpeded traffic flow.
	B. Provide unimpeded access for emergency vehicles.
	C. Provide and maintain access to fire hydrants free of obstructions

	Parking
	A. When vehicle/equipment parking space is not adequate on-site, Contractor shall utilize off-site parking, within legal parking areas/spaces as determined by the City of San Jose and the County of Santa Clara Roads & Airports Department.
	B. Maintenance:
	1. Maintain traffic and parking areas in sound condition free of excavated material and construction equipment.
	2. Maintain existing and permanent paved areas used for construction; promptly repair breaks, potholes, low areas, standing water, and other deficiencies, to maintain paving, access and drainage in original, condition.

	C. Removal, Repair:
	1. Remove temporary materials and construction when permanent paving is usable. Before Substantial Completion.
	2. Repair existing facilities damaged by use, to original and/or specified condition.

	D. Mud from Construction Vehicles:  Provide means of removing mud from vehicle wheels before entering streets.

	Progress Cleaning And Waste Removal
	A. Maintain work areas free of waste materials, debris, and rubbish.  Maintain site in clean and orderly condition.
	B. Broom and wash down paved areas to control dust and remove tracked mud during construction and at end of each workday.  Mechanical street sweeping may be required if excessive amounts of dirt, mud and dust are present.
	C. Collect and remove waste materials, debris, and rubbish from site daily and dispose at approved off-site location.

	Traffic Regulation
	A. Signs, Signals, and Devices:
	1. Barricade-Mounted or Temporary Folding Based Traffic Control and Informational Signs:  As approved by the City, County, and District.
	2. Traffic Cones and Drums, Flares and Lights:  As approved by the City, County, and District.
	3. Flag Person Equipment:  As required by the City, County, and District.
	4. Flag Persons:  Provide trained and equipped flag persons to regulate traffic when construction operations or traffic encroach on public traffic lanes.

	B. Flares and Lights:  Use flares and lights during hours of low visibility to delineate traffic lanes and to guide traffic.
	C. Haul Routes:
	1. Consult with authority having jurisdiction, establish public thoroughfares to be used for haul routes and site access.
	2. Provide traffic control at critical areas of haul routes to regulate traffic, to minimize interference with public traffic.

	D. Traffic Signs and Signals:
	1. Provide signs at approaches to site and on site, at crossroads, detours, parking areas, and elsewhere as needed to direct construction, pedestrians, and affected public traffic.
	2. Relocate as Work progresses, to maintain effective traffic control.


	BARRIERS
	TEMPORARY FENCE
	Water Control
	Dust Control
	Erosion And Sediment Control
	Noise Control
	Pollution Control
	A. Contractor shall prevent contamination of soil, water, and atmosphere from discharge of noxious, toxic substances, and pollutants produced by construction operations.
	B. Comply with pollution and environmental control requirements of authorities having jurisdiction.
	C. Contractor shall provide a temporary concrete washout (i.e. portable) area.

	Removal Of Utilities, Facilities, And Controls
	A. Remove temporary utilities, equipment, facilities, and materials prior to Final Application for Payment inspection.
	B. Clean and repair damage caused by installation or use of temporary work.
	C. Restore existing and permanent facilities used during construction to original condition.  Restore permanent facilities used during construction to specified condition.

	MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

	END OF DOCUMENT 01500
	DOCUMENT 01510 – TEMPORARY BYPASS PUMPING SYSTEMS

	END OF DOCUMENT 01510
	DOCUMENT 01600 – PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS

	GENERAL
	Section Includes
	A. Products
	B. Product delivery requirements
	C. Product storage and handling requirements
	D. Product options
	E. Product substitution procedures

	Products
	A. Furnish products of qualified manufacturers suitable for intended use.  Furnish products of each type by single manufacturer unless specified otherwise.
	B. Furnish interchangeable components from same manufacturer for components being replaced.
	C. Iron and Steel products shall be produced in the United States.

	Product Delivery Requirements
	A. The Contractor shall transport, handle, and store pipe and fittings as   recommended by manufacturer.
	B. Promptly inspect shipments to ensure products comply with requirements, quantities are correct, and products are undamaged.
	C. New pipe and fittings that are damaged before or during installation it shall be repaired or replaced, as recommended by the manufacturer or required by the Engineer.  The costs of such repair or replacement shall be borne by the Contractor and be ...
	D. The Contractor shall deliver, store and handle other materials as required to prevent damage.  Materials that are damaged or lost shall be repaired or replaced by the Contractor at no additional expense to the District.

	Product Storage and Handling Requirements
	A. Store and protect products in accordance with manufacturers' instructions.
	B. Provide off-site storage and protection when site does not permit on-site storage or protection.
	C. Store loose granular materials on solid flat surfaces in well-drained area.  Prevent mixing with foreign matter.
	D. Arrange storage of products to permit access for inspection. Periodically inspect to verify products are undamaged and are maintained in acceptable condition.

	Product Options
	A. Products Specified by Reference Standards or by Description Only:  Any product meeting those reference standards or descriptions per the Plans or Specifications.
	B. Products Specified by Naming One or More Manufacturers: products of one of manufacturers named and meeting specifications, no options or substitutions allowed.
	C. Products Specified by Naming One or More Manufacturers with Provision for Substitutions:  Submit request for substitution for any manufacturer not named in accordance with the following article.

	Product Substitution Procedures
	A. The District will consider a product substitution and a request constitutes a representation that Contractor:
	1. Has investigated proposed product and determined that it meets or exceeds quality level of specified product.
	2. Will provide same warranty for substitution as for specified product.
	3. Will coordinate installation and make changes to other work which may be required for the work to be complete with no additional cost to District.
	4. Waives claims for additional costs or time extension which may subsequently become apparent.

	B. Substitution Submittal Procedure:
	1. Submit three copies of request for Substitution for consideration.
	Limit each request to one proposed Substitution.
	2. Submit Shop Drawings, Product Data, and certified test results attesting to proposed product equivalence.  Burden of proof is on proposer. Engineer will notify Contractor in writing of decision to accept or reject request.



	END OF DOCUMENT 01600
	DOCUMENT 01700 – EXECUTION REQUIREMENTS

	GENERAL
	Section Includes
	A. Mobilization.
	B. Closeout procedures
	C. Final cleaning.
	D. Protecting installed construction.
	E. Project record documents.

	Mobilization
	Closeout Procedures
	A. Submit written notice to the District that Contract Documents have been reviewed, Work has been inspected, and that Work is complete in accordance with Contract Documents and ready for Engineer's review.
	B. Provide submittals to Engineer required by authorities having jurisdiction.
	C. Submit final Application for Payment identifying total adjusted Contract Sum, previous payments, and sum remaining due.

	Final Cleaning
	A. Execute final cleaning prior to final project assessment.
	B. Remove waste and surplus materials, rubbish, and construction facilities from site.

	Protecting Installed Construction
	A. Protect installed Work and provide special protection where specified in individual specification sections, if applicable.
	B. Provide temporary and removable protection for installed products, as required.

	Project Record Documents
	A. Maintain on site one set of the following record documents; record actual revisions to the Work:
	1. Plans/Drawings
	2. Specifications
	3. Addenda
	4. Change Orders and other modifications to the Contract

	B. Record information concurrent with construction progress, not less than weekly.
	C. Record Drawings and As-Built. Mark each item to record actual construction including:
	1. Measured horizontal and vertical locations of underground utilities and appurtenances, referenced to permanent surface improvements.
	2. Measured locations of internal utilities and appurtenances concealed in construction, referenced to visible and accessible features of the Work.
	3. Field changes of dimension and detail.
	4. Details not on original Contract Plans.

	D. Submit documents to Engineer with claim for final Application for Payment.
	E. Video Inspection.  Contractor must videotape entire length of the sanitary sewer main and laterals for all point/spot repairs prior to commencing work, to ensure that the repairs will be made in the correct locations.


	END OF DOCUMENT 01700
	DOCUMENT 01900 – FIELD ENGINEERING & SURVEYING WORK
	PART 1 - GENERAL
	1.01 DESCRIPTION
	1.02 LINES AND GRADES
	1.03 SURVEYS FOR LAYOUT AND PERFORMANCE

	PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
	PART 3 – EXECUTION (NOT USED)


	END OF SECTION 01900
	DOCUMENT 02000 – PROTECTION OF ADJACENT CONSTRUCTION AND UTILITIES
	PART 1 - GENERAL
	1.1 DESCRIPTION
	1.2 PROTECTION OF EXISTING STRUCTURES AND UTILITIES
	1.3 NOTIFICATIONS AND POTHOLING FOR EXISTING UTILITIES

	PART 2 – PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
	PART 3 – EXECUTION (NOT USED)
	PART 4 – MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT


	END OF SECTION 02000
	DOCUMENT 02100 - SOILS
	GENERAL
	1.1 SUMMARY


	A. Section Includes:
	1. Subsoil materials
	1.2 REFERENCES


	A. American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials:
	1. AASHTO T180 - Standard Specification for Moisture-Density Relations of Soils Using a 4.54-kg (10-lb) Rammer and a 457-mm (18-in.) Drop.

	B. American Society for Testing and Materials:
	1. ASTM D1557 - Standard Test Method for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil Using Modified Effort (6,000 ft-lb./ft3 (2,700 kN-m/m3)).
	2. ASTM D2487 - Standard Classification of Soils for Engineering Purposes (Unified Soil Classification System).
	3. ASTM D2922 - Standard Test Method for Density of Soil and Soil-Aggregate in Place by Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth).
	4. ASTM D3017 - Standard Test Method for Water Content of Soil and Rock in Place by Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth).
	1.3 SUBMITTALS


	A. Section 01330 - Submittal Procedures:
	1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE

	A. Perform Work in accordance with Burbank Sanitary District, County of Santa Clara and Caltrans Standard Specifications 2018, Sections 5 and 6.

	PART 2 - PRODUCTS
	2.1  SUBSOIL MATERIALS
	A. Subsoil Type:
	1. Excavated and re-used material.
	2. Free of lumps larger than six (6) inches, rocks larger than three (3) inches and debris.
	3. Having a Plasticity Index of fifteen (15) or less.
	2.2 SOURCE QUALITY CONTROL


	A. Section 01400 - Quality Requirements: Testing and analysis of soil material.
	B. Testing and Analysis of Subsoil Material: Perform in accordance AASHTO T180
	C. When tests indicate materials do not meet specified requirements, change material and retest.
	D. Furnish materials of each type from same source throughout the Work.

	PART 3 - EXECUTION
	3.1 EXCAVATION
	A. Excavate subsoil and topsoil from areas designated. Strip topsoil to full depth of topsoil in designated areas.
	B. Stockpile excavated material meeting requirements for subsoil materials and topsoil materials.
	C. Remove excess excavated materials, subsoil and topsoil, not intended for reuse, from site.
	D. Remove excavated materials not meeting requirements for subsoil materials and topsoil materials from site.
	3.2 STOCKPILING

	A. Stockpile in sufficient quantities to meet Project schedule and requirements.
	B. Separate differing materials with dividers or stockpile apart to prevent mixing.
	C. Stockpile topsoil six (6) feet high maximum.
	D. Prevent intermixing of soil types or contamination.
	E. Direct surface water away from stockpile site to prevent erosion or deterioration of materials.
	F. Stockpile unsuitable materials on impervious material and cover to prevent erosion and leaching, until disposed of.
	G. Contractor to inform the District of their proposed stockpile location.
	3.3 STOCKPILE CLEANUP

	A. Remove stockpile, leave area in clean and neat condition.  Grade site surface to prevent free standing surface water.
	3.4 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

	A. No separate payment will be made for compliance with this section of the specifications and payment for work herein required shall be considered to be included in the various contract item of work required and no separate payment will be made.

	END OF DOCUMENT 02100
	DOCUMENT 02200 - MOBILIZATION

	PART 1 - GENERAL
	1.1 REQUIREMENT
	A. The Work of this Section includes all those measures required during the CONTRACTOR's initial move onto the site to mobilize equipment, material, and protect existing fences, structures, and associated improvements, streets, and utilities adjacent ...
	1.2 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE

	A. Division 1, General Requirements.
	B. Section 02400, Site Clearing
	1.3 JOB CONDITIONS

	A. Existing Conditions. The CONTRACTOR shall determine the actual condition of the site as it affects this portion of the Work.
	B. Protection. Site preparation shall not damage existing structures or cause obstruction and/or contamination to the property. The CONTRACTOR shall repair or replace any damaged property at no cost to the DISTRICT.
	1.4 CONTRACTOR SUBMITTALS

	A. A copy of this specification section, with any addendum updates included, and all referenced and applicable sections, with any addendum updates included, shall be submitted with each paragraph check-marked to indicate specification compliance or ma...
	B. Submittals shall be provided to confirm that material to be used comply with information specified herein.
	C. The CONTRACTOR shall submit to the ENGINEER a schedule of proposed disposal locations and written authorization from disposal site owner.
	D. The CONTRACTOR shall submit safety measure drawings.
	E. The CONTRACTOR shall submit a map identifying the location of any construction staging areas to be utilized, unless shown on the Project Drawings. The CONTRACTOR shall submit written authorization from each site owner.
	F. Deactivating Existing Facilities. The CONTRACTOR shall submit to and obtain the ENGINEER’s approval of a deactivation plan 30 days prior to commencing with the work. The CONTRACTOR shall also advise the ENGINEER in writing not less than forty-eight...

	PART 2 PRODUCTS
	2.1 SAFETY BARRIERS
	A. The CONTRACTOR shall prepare a submittal to the ENGINEER with drawings that define the proposed safety measures prior to any construction activity.
	B. All work shall be done in conformance with the rules and regulations pertaining to safety established by California Division of Industrial Safety and OSHA.
	2.2 SIGNAGE

	A. The Contractor shall furnish and install a sign that is 4 feet tall by eight feet wide made of ¾” thick exterior grade plywood, or other approved material, in a prominent location on the Project site and shall maintain the sign in good condition fo...
	B. The Project Funding Sign shall be placed on the northeast corner of the intersection of W San Carlos Street and N Bascom Avenue.
	C. The Sign Shall have the following disclosure statement and colored logos:
	1. Funding for this District Wide Capital Improvement Project has been provided in full or in part by the Clean Water State Revolving Fund through an agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board. California’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund...
	2.

	PART 3 EXECUTION
	A. Contractor, prior to commencing of site clearing as required for the project, shall notify Engineer 48 hours prior to commencement.
	B. Contractor is not required to have a field office for this project.
	C. Refer to Section 02400, Site Clearing, of these specifications for details.

	PART 4 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	4.1 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	A. The contract lump price paid for mobilization shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals for doing all the work involved, complete and in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in thes...
	END OF DOCUMENT 02200
	DOCUMENT 02300 – WATER POLLUTION CONTROL

	PART 1 GENERAL
	1.1 SUMMARY
	A. This Section includes requirements for water pollution control including water pollution control maintenance.
	B. Water pollution control shall conform to the requirements of the County of Santa Clara, the District, and these technical specifications.  Water pollution control maintenance work shall be considered as integral functional practices to implement wa...
	C. Failure to fully comply with the requirements of the permit shall subject the Contractor to all fines, damages and job delays incurred due to failure to implement the proper measures.
	1.2 REFERENCES

	A. Water pollution control work shall conform to the requirements in the “Construction Site Best Management Practices (BMPs) Manual”.
	B. State of California, Department of Transportation (Caltrans):
	1. Standard Specifications:
	a. Section 13 – Water Pollution Control
	b. Section 21 – Erosion Control
	1.3 SUBMITTALS

	A. The Contractor shall make a combined submittal of the Water Pollution Control Program and Water Pollution Control Plan (WPC Plan), which include all the requirements specified herein.
	B. The submittal shall include the site plan of the WPC Plan updated to accurately show the actual site conditions at various phases of construction and the WPC Plan revised to reflect the actual site conditions as shown on the site plan.
	C. Updated and revised WPC Plan shall be submitted no later than August 1 of any 1 year and shall be updated, revised and submitted by the first day of each month thereafter until and including March 31 of the following year.  From April 1 to July 31,...
	D. Submit working or shop drawings for any additional unit descriptions (other water pollution control measures designated by the Contractor and included in the schedule of values) to District for review and approval.
	E. The Contractor shall update and submit a water pollution control maintenance program and schedule to District for approval not less than 20 working days before the beginning of each water pollution maintenance period.  If District determines the su...
	F. In addition to the various water pollution control measures shown on the Plans and indicated herein, any further use of these measures as proposed on the Plans and schedule of values shall be approved by District before installation.
	G. The Contractor shall submit a list of on-hand materials and their respective quantities to District for review.
	H. The Contractor shall submit 2 sets of construction entrance working drawings to District for approval. The working drawings shall show complete construction entrance layout, construction details and installation and removal schedules.
	1.4 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION - GENERAL

	A. The Contractor’s program to control water pollution shall be included in the WPC Plan to prevent, to the extent feasible, any net increase in pollution of storm water runoff from entering waterways.
	B. The WPC Plan shall include a water pollution control program (narrative) that graphically indicates where water pollution control measures and temporary erosion control work will be used year-round and during all phases of construction.
	C. The water pollution control program shall be updated and revised whenever there is a proposed change in construction or operations which may affect the site drainage patterns or discharge of pollutants to surface waters, groundwater, or a separate ...
	D. The WPC Plan shall graphically show the use of temporary drainage inlet protection, check dams, temporary straw (slope protection), and temporary blankets in relation to other water pollution and temporary erosion control and slope protection work ...
	E. All areas of exposed earth created by the Contractor beyond what is shown on the Plans and referred to in the technical specifications shall also be subject to these provisions except that the Contractor shall be fully responsible for all costs and...
	1.5 WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PROGRAM

	A. The water pollution control program shall include the following:
	1. A schedule for implementing and maintaining water pollution control measures for all phases of the work.
	2. When temporary sediment basins or sediment traps are used to contain runoff, the following information will be required:
	a. Basin or trap calculations used in sizing these facilities.  For design purposes, all soil particles 0.8 mil in size and larger shall be captured.  Basin efficiency will be evaluated in trapping all soil particles 0.8 mil or larger in size.
	b. Soil loss calculations shall be based on a storm of at least a 10-year, 6-hour frequency.
	c. The shed area contributing runoff to individual basins or traps.
	d. The settling and storage depth of each basin or trap.  A 24-in minimum depth for settling and storage will be required for sediment traps.
	3. A description of the methods of temporary or permanent erosion control that will be implemented to stabilize permanent, temporary and on-going work.
	B. The water pollution control program shall also direct attention to other sections in the WPC Plan, which apply to the program for water pollution control.
	C. The water pollution program submitted as part of the WPC Plan shall include the Contractor’s plans for temporary erosion control measures for all phases of the work.  Refer to temporary erosion control requirements specified herein.
	1.6 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION - WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN

	A. The WPC Plan shall include a site map that is a combination of the contract drainage, stage construction, and contour grading plans and showing water pollution control components.  Contractor shall update this site map and the WPC Plan to accuratel...
	B. The WPC Plan shall include graphic representation of conditions, measures, and features as specified and as required in the permit.
	C. The site conditions, measures and facilities graphically shown on the plan and included in the schedule of values shall, at a minimum, include:
	1. The Contractor shall include the following minimum quantities of water pollution control measures:
	2. The current stage and phase of construction and all other planned improvements throughout the construction period.
	3. All exposed graded surfaces, finished and unfinished construction slopes, stockpiles, haul roads and storage areas, top and toe of slope lines and drainage arrows shall be graphically shown.
	4. Drainage patterns within each shed area (shown by slope arrows) and the drainage system or containment area where runoff will be conveyed for removal or storage.  Drainage swales, temporary culverts, active and inactive drainage inlets, gutters and...
	5. Where offsite water enters or exits the site.
	6. The Contractor shall focus on identifying, as a minimum, storage facilities, concrete washout areas and proposed earthen stockpile locations.  Precautionary water pollution control measures shall also be shown and may consist of providing drainage ...
	7. Any additional requirements of the permit as referenced elsewhere in this Section and not covered in the above noted items.
	1.7 WATER POLLUTION CONTROL MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

	A. The Contractor shall furnish sufficient personnel, materials and adequate equipment to perform the water pollution control maintenance work immediately and to work continuously until its completion.
	B. Water Pollution Control Maintenance Work.  Water pollution control maintenance work shall consist of maintaining water pollution control measures during the water pollution control maintenance periods as defined herein.
	C. Each water pollution control maintenance period shall be through the duration of the construction period.  Note:  If the completion of all work (including plant establishment work), except water pollution control maintenance work falls within a wat...
	1.8 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION - WATER POLLUTION CONTROL MEASURES

	A. Water pollution control measures shall be constructed and functioning year round throughout the construction period.  From April 1 to September 14, the Contractor shall install water pollution control measures to prevent discharges into storm drain...
	B. The Contractor shall install precautionary measures including drainage inlet protection around the immediate perimeter of each active storm drain system within construction work areas.
	C. If work in any area has not progressed to a point where all or part of the facilities on the WPC Plan for that area can be constructed, the Contractor shall construct such supplementary temporary water pollution control facilities as are necessary ...
	D. No earthen materials shall be stockpiled within 50 ft of drainage inlets.  All stockpiles of earthen materials shall have appropriate erosion control measures installed to abate and control erosion.
	E. By September 15, water pollution control measures shall be constructed and functioning to prevent water pollution from areas where portions of the contract are completed for that year and no further earthwork is planned.  In all areas where earthwo...
	1. Water pollution control measures, hereafter noted as measures, shall be implemented as practicable to control runoff and to allow earthwork to continue.  This may include removing and reinstalling erosion control measures to allow ingress or egress...
	2. Special attention will be required to protect areas which have been cleared and grubbed before excavation or embankment operations, and which are subject to runoff during the period from September 15 to March 31.  Temporary measures may include, bu...
	3. After each storm, desilting basins shall be checked against their design capacity and if necessary, silt and sediment shall be removed to restore capacity.  Sediments removed shall be disposed of or relocated, stockpiled and ringed with silt fence ...
	4. Active drainage inlets where runoff is likely to go shall have drainage inlet protection installed around the immediate perimeter of the inlet as noted on the Plans.  The perimeter of each individual work area shall have measures installed to contr...
	5. If there is no active drainage system within each individual work area, the Contractor shall submit a plan proposing measures to de-silt and remove runoff from active construction areas.  This may include the use of sediment basins, sediment traps ...
	6. The minimum capacity of each desilting basin shall be constructed with a capacity of 1860 cu. ft./acre (slope measurement) of disturbed ground.
	7. No earthen materials shall be stockpiled within 25 ft. of drainage inlets.  All stockpiles of earthen materials shall have appropriate erosion control measures installed to abate and control erosion.
	8. Staging and work areas shall be kept orderly with neat stockpiling of construction materials.  Measures shall be installed at the entrance and exits of staging and work areas to control mud from entering the roadway pavement.
	9. The District will and the Contractor shall monitor the weather forecast on a daily basis.  If rain is predicted within 48 hours, construction scheduling shall be modified, as required, to provide functioning water pollution control measures before ...
	10. Water pollution control materials (silt fence) shall be stockpiled on the site in sufficient quantities to stabilize any problem areas within 24 hours. The Contractor shall replenish his stockpiles of material as required to quickly install measur...
	11. The Contractor shall have adequate labor on hand to install and maintain water pollution control measures within 24 hours following notification by the District.
	1.9 SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS - TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL

	A. Temporary erosion control shall include constructing such facilities and taking such measures as are necessary to prevent, control, and abate water, mud, and erosion damage to public and private property as a result of the construction of this proj...
	B. All areas of exposed earth created by the Contractor beyond what is shown on the Plans and referred to in the technical specifications and areas cleared and grubbed before excavation or embankment operations which are subject to wind erosion and ru...
	C. As a minimum, the program shall provide for the following:
	1. If sediment basins are used, rainfall intensity expected from a storm of at least a 10-year 6-hour frequency/duration, shall be used to calculate basin capacity.
	D. Construction or implementation of temporary erosion control measures shall be performed year-round.  By September 15 of each year such temporary erosion control features as are necessary to prevent damage during the forthcoming winter season shall ...
	E. The Contractor shall use the pollution control measures outlined in the Plans and referenced in these technical specifications as part of the overall program to control erosion and silt runoff.  If the Contractor elects to modify the construction d...
	F. Temporary erosion control facilities and measures to be used shall include the following:
	1. The Contractor shall conduct his operations in such a manner that storm runoff will be contained within the project or channeled into the storm drain system which serves the runoff area.  Storm runoff from 1 area shall not be allowed to divert to a...
	2. Storm drain systems, toe of slope drains, and outlet structures shall be constructed and operating before, or concurrently with, constructing an embankment.  Temporary downdrains, drainage structures, and other devices shall be provided to channel ...
	3. Embankment areas, while being brought to grade, and during periods of completion before final roadbed construction, shall be protected by various measures to eliminate erosion and the siltation of downstream facilities and adjacent areas.  These me...
	a. Temporary down drains, either in the form of pipes or paved ditches with protected outfall areas.
	b. Graded berms around areas to eliminate erosion of embankment slopes by surface runoff.
	c. Embankment slopes, not included as part of the roadway construction contract and constructed by the contractor for temporary access roads, shall be compacted by track-walking the face of the slope in a direction perpendicular to the slope contours....
	4. Excavation areas, while being brought to grade, shall be protected from erosion and the resulting siltation of downstream facilities and adjacent areas by the use of various temporary erosion control measures.  These measures may include, but shall...
	a. Check dams/Fiber rolls
	b. Silt fence
	c. Protection around inlets, which have not been brought up to grade.
	d. Protection around flared end sections.
	5. Contour graded areas shall be protected against erosion and the resulting siltation of downstream facilities and adjacent areas during grading operations.  Various measures may include, but shall not be limited to: the use of graded contour berms t...
	1.10  SITE CONDITIONS

	A. A copy of the WPC Plan, together with updates, revisions and amendments shall be kept at the construction site.  At the request of the District, the Contractor shall furnish multiple copies of the WPC Plan for distribution.

	PART 2 PRODUCTS
	2.1 MATERIALS
	A. General: Materials (not all listed shall be used) shall conform to the provisions in Section13-5.02, “Materials,” of the Caltrans Standard Specifications 2018 and these technical specifications.
	B. Sediment Bag:
	1. Filter Fabric:  Geosynthetic filter fabric for sediment bags shall be a prefabricated geosynthetic filter envelope with a woven polypropylene fabric and sewn with a double stitched seam using nylon thread.  The fabric shall conform to the provision...
	2. Sediment Filter Bag:  The sediment bag shall be sized to fit the catch basin or drop inlet and be complete with lifting hoops and dump straps attached at the bottom to facilitate emptying of the sediment bag.  The sediment bags shall have a restrai...
	C. Gravel-Filled Bag:
	1. Gravel-Filled bag fabric shall be woven polypropylene, polyethylene or Polymide with a minimum unit weight of 0.03 lb/ft2.  The fabric shall have a mullen burst strength of at least 300 lb/in2 in accordance with ASTM D3786 and an ultraviolet (UV) s...
	2. Gravel-Filled bags shall have a length of 24-in to 31-in, width of 16-in to 18-in, thickness of 6-in to 8-in, and weight of 80 lb to 120 lb.
	3. Gravel-Filled bag fill material shall be non-cohesive, gravel, free from deleterious material.
	D. Geosynthetic filter Fabric:  Geosynthetic filter fabric shall conform to the requirements in Section 96 of the Caltrans Standard Specifications 2018 and to the requirements shown in Section 3.1 “Temporary Drainage Inlet Protection” of this technica...
	E. Rock for construction entrances shall be Class 3 permeable material and shall conform to the provisions in Section 68-1.025, “Permeable Material,” of the Caltrans Standard Specifications 2018 and these technical specifications.
	F. Reinforcing Fabric:  Reinforcing fabric for construction entrances shall be manufactured from 1 or more of the following materials:  polyester, nylon or polypropylene.  Reinforcing fabric shall be woven, permeable and shall conform to the following...
	1. The reinforcing fabric shall be furnished in an appropriate protective cover, which shall protect it from ultraviolet radiation and from abrasion due to shipping and handling.
	G. Temporary Blanket.  Temporary blanket shall conform to the provisions in Section 20-2, “Materials,” of the Caltrans Standard Specifications 2018 and these technical specifications.

	PART 3 EXECUTION
	3.1 TEMPORARY DRAINAGE INLET PROTECTION
	A. Temporary drainage inlet protection shall be installed, maintained and later removed as shown on the Plans, as specified in these technical specifications, and as directed by the District.  Temporary drainage inlet protection shall be installed at ...
	B. The Contractor shall use temporary drainage inlet protection as one of the various measures to prevent water pollution.
	C. Sediment bags shall be installed by removing the drainage inlet grate, placing the sediment bag in the opening, and replacing the grate to secure the sediment bag in place.  Removal of the bag shall be facilitated by the use of 10-inch long steel r...
	D. Sediment bags installed, as part of temporary drainage inlet protection shall be emptied when the restraint cords are no longer visible.  Emptying of the bags shall be facilitated by the use of 10-inch long steel reinforcing bars placed through the...
	E. The storage capacity of the sump area around each drain inlet shall be maintained to provide for maximum capacity and as directed by Valley Transportation Authority.
	F. When no longer required for the purpose, as determined by the District, temporary drainage inlet protection facilities shall be removed. Removed facilities shall become the property of the Contractor and shall be removed from the Worksite.
	3.2 TEMPORARY FIBER ROLL

	A. Temporary fiber rolls shall be installed as shown on the plans and in conformance with construction detail sheet.
	B. Temporary fiber rolls shall be maintained to disperse concentrated water runoff and to reduce runoff velocities. When no longer required for the intended purpose, as determined by the District Representative, temporary fiber rolls shall be removed ...
	3.3 TEMPORARY CONCRETE WASHOUT FACILITY

	A. Temporary concrete washout facility shall be constructed, maintained and later removed as shown on the Plans, as specified in these technical specifications and as directed by the District.  The work shall consist of furnishing all materials and in...
	3.4 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

	A. Temporary construction entrance shall be constructed, maintained and later removed as shown on the Plans, as specified in these technical specifications and as directed by the District.  The work shall consist of furnishing all materials and instal...
	B. Temporary construction entrances shall be removed immediately following completion of work at the above locations and as directed by District.
	C. The reinforcing fabric for construction entrances shall be handled and placed in accordance with the manufacturer’s recommendations.  A 24-inch minimum overlap will be required at adjoining pieces.  Care shall be taken to install the fabric taut an...
	D. A 35-inch skirt of reinforcing fabric shall extend beyond the cross sectional limits of the rock bed as shown on the WPC Plan.
	E. The temporary construction entrance shall be graded to prevent runoff from leaving the construction site and flowing onto paved roadways.
	F. The rock bed shall be spread to a minimum depth of 6 inches.  Additional rock shall be added as directed by the District to maintain the rock bed.
	G. At the completion of work at each individual work area as determined by the District, construction entrances shall be removed in their entirety.
	3.5 TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

	A. Wood posts shall be an integral part of the silt fence and shall be packaged with the silt fence fabric.  Wood posts shall be a minimum of 4 feet in length.
	B. Concrete footings for wood posts will not be required.
	C. Temporary silt fences that are damaged from any cause during the progress of the work shall be repaired or replaced by the Contractor at his expense.  The Contractor shall repair any damaged temporary silt fences as directed by District.
	D. When no longer required for the purpose as determined by District, temporary silt fence shall be removed.  Removed facilities shall become the property of the Contractor and shall be removed from the Worksite.
	3.6 TEMPORARY COVER

	A. Temporary cover shall be furnished and installed, as specified in these technical specifications, as shown on the Plans and at locations designated by District.
	B. Contractor shall use temporary cover as one of the various measures to prevent water pollution.
	C. Temporary cover shall be installed at locations designated by District and shall be installed to control erosion on critical areas of unfinished earthwork slopes not currently identifiable.
	D. When no longer required for the purpose as determined by District, temporary cover shall be abandoned or removed as directed by District.
	3.7 RESTORATION

	A. Before contact acceptance, restore damaged work to the same state of completion as before the damage.
	B. The District will not make adjustment for payment for repair or restoration that the Engineer determines was caused by contractor’s failure to construct the work under this contract or to protect the work from being damaged.

	PART 4 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	4.1 MEASUREMENT
	A. The work performed for water pollution control including temporary erosion control measures will be measured for payment as a lump sum price.
	4.2 PAYMENT

	A. The contract lump sum price paid water pollution control including temporary erosion control measures shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in temp...
	DOCUMENT 02400 – SITE CLEARING

	PART 1 GENERAL
	1.1 SUMMARY
	A. Related Documents:
	1. State of California, Department of Transportation (Caltrans), Standard Specification 2018.
	a. Section 15  Existing Facilities
	b. Section 17-2 Clearing and Grubbing
	B. Related Sections:
	1. Section 02200 – Mobilization and Site Preparation.
	1.2 REFERENCES

	A. The General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and applicable portions of Division I apply to the work of this Section as if printed herein.
	1.3 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

	A. Comply with all applicable codes, standards, and regulations in the execution of the work.
	1.4 PROJECT CONDITIONS

	A. Traffic: Conduct site-clearing operations to ensure minimum interference with roads, streets, walks, and other adjacent occupied or used facilities.  Do not close or obstruct streets, walks, or other occupied or used facilities without permission f...

	PART 2 PRODUCTS
	No products are required in this Section.

	PART 3 EXECUTION
	3.1 PREPARATION
	A. Verify that existing heritage trees designated to remain are tagged or identified, if applicable.
	B. Call Local USA Underground not less than two working days before performing Work.
	C. Requested underground utilities to be located and marked within and surrounding construction areas.
	D. Remove or abandon facilities when it is no longer used or active.
	E. Each structure to be filled with pea gravel, 2-sack slurry or approved equal.
	F. Existing manhole frame and cover and grade ring will be removed and disposed of, upon removal, areas shall be saw cut neatly around the structure and repaved in accordance with paving section specified elsewhere in these specifications.
	G. Indicated locations of existing utilities are approximate; Contractor shall determine exact locations by potholing before commencing work.
	3.2 PROTECTION

	A. Locate, identify, and protect utilities that remain from damage.
	B. Protect heritage trees designated to remain, against unnecessary cutting, breaking or skinning of roots, skinning or bruising of bark, smothering of trees by stockpiling construction materials or excavated materials within drip line, excess foot or...
	1. Water trees and other vegetation to remain within limits of contract work as required to maintain their health during the course of construction operations.
	2. Provide protection for roots over 1-1/2 inch in diameter that are cut during construction operations.  Coat cut faces with emulsified asphalt or other acceptable coating formulated to use on damaged plant tissues.  Temporarily cover exposed roots w...
	3. Repair or replace trees indicated to remain that are damaged by construction operations in a manner acceptable to District.  Employ a licensed arborist to repair damage to trees.
	4. Replace trees that cannot be repaired and restored to full-growth status, as determined by arborist.

	C. Protect benchmarks and existing improvements on adjoining properties and existing improvements on the County, City or District’s property designated to remain, from damage or displacement.
	D. Restore damaged improvements to their original condition, as acceptable to the District at no extra cost to owner.
	3.3 CLEARING, GRUBBING, STRIPPING, AND REMOVAL

	A. All construction areas shall be cleared of structures including retaining walls, fences, concrete, masonry, or pavement debris, landscaping, trees, logs, upturned stumps, grass, weeds, loose boulders, and any other objectionable material of any kin...
	B. Removal of concrete curb, sidewalk, and driveway required for construction shall be removed to construction joints and replaced in kind.  Removal of concrete bus stop parking area may be removed only as necessary for construction by sawcutting mini...
	C. Within the limits of clearing, the areas below the natural ground surface shall be grubbed to a depth necessary to remove all stumps, roots, buried logs, and all other objectionable material. Cleanouts and connection lines and any other underground...
	D. Additional requirements for excavating or removing existing soil are shown on the Drawings.
	E. Unless otherwise shown or specified, native trees larger than 3 inches in diameter at the base shall not be removed without the ENGINEER's approval. The removal of any trees, shrubs, fences, or other improvements outside of the limits of constructi...
	F. Trees and shrubbery adjacent to the trench, pole lines, fences, signs, survey markers and monuments, structures, conduits, pipeline under or above ground, all roadway facilities and any other improvements or facilities within or adjacent to the wor...
	G. Serious injuries to trees to remain shall be avoided. No major roots or branches crossing the trench shall be cut if such cutting would seriously injure or imperil the safety of the tree or trench. All limbs, roots or branches, which are cut or bro...
	H. The ENGINEER shall be notified when site preparation work is completed.
	3.4 REGRADING

	A. In areas to receive fill, the stripped surface should be scarified to a depth of about 6 inches below the excavated level, conditioned to near optimum moisture content and re-compacted to 90 percent (90%) of maximum relative density.
	B. Any holes remaining after stripping and grubbing shall be backfilled unless they are located within an area designated for further excavation. Backfill material and placement shall be in accordance with these specifications.
	3.5 DISPOSAL OF DEBRIS

	A. Dispose of removed materials, waste, trash, and debris in a safe, acceptable manner, in accordance with applicable laws and ordinances and as prescribed by authorities having jurisdiction.
	B. Burying of trash and debris on the site will not be permitted. Burning of trash and debris at the site will not be permitted.
	C. Remove trash and debris from the site daily so that its presence will not delay the progress of the Work.
	D. Removed materials, trash, and debris shall become the property of the CONTRACTOR and shall be removed from the District's property and disposed of in a legal manner. Location of disposal site and length of haul shall be the CONTRACTOR's responsibil...

	PART 4 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	4.1 MEASUREMENT
	A. Measurement will be made for site clearing as a lump sum bid item.
	4.2 PAYMENT

	A. The contract lump price paid for site clearing shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals for doing all the work involved complete and in place, as shown on the plans, including protection ...

	END OF DOCUMENT 02400
	DOCUMENT 02500 – TRAFFIC CONTROL

	PART 1 GENERAL
	1.1 THE REQUIREMENT
	A. The work specified in this Section includes furnishing all labor, materials and equipment required to properly maintain vehicular, pedestrian and bicyclist in the work zone area as described herein, as directed by the Engineer and as shown on the p...
	B. The Contractor shall provide the requirements for temporary work zone traffic control, signing and Pavement in accordance with Section 12, “Construction Area Traffic Control Devices” of the State Standard Specification, the plans, the Standard Draw...
	C. The Contractor shall either remove permanent signs or cover the signs in conflict with construction and remove pavement markings in conflict.  Remove signs or pavement markings shall be replaced as before the commencement of construction.
	D. The Contractor shall have an individual on call twenty-four (24) hours a day familiar with and responsible for Traffic Control.  The name and telephone number of this individual shall be submitted to the Engineer.
	E. In general, open holes/trenches shall not be allowed overnight unless steel plates are placed. Overnight open holes/trenches not yet backfill shall be allowed only upon approval of the Engineer.  If allowed, the Contractor shall immediately provide...
	F. The Contractor shall be allowed to close traffic lanes during normal working hours only with approval of the Engineer.  The Contractor shall notify the Engineer at least one (1) calendar week before any intended lane closures.  The Contractor shall...

	PART 2 PRODUCTS
	A. All signs shall conform to the latest Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) and as shown on the plans.
	B. Channelizes shall be orange color and either surface mounted or with portable base as shown on the plans.
	C.  Cones shall be orange and shall be minimum 24” in height.
	D. Steel plate shall be minimum one inch in thickness.

	PART 3 TRAFFIC CONTROL PROCEDURES
	A. The Contractor shall have flaggers available to control all construction vehicles entering or crossing the travel lanes of secondary or primary routes.  The Engineer shall determine the necessity of these flaggers for control of these construction ...
	B. Conduct all work activities within the boundaries of a travel lane closed to vehicular traffic or a pedestrian thoroughfare closed to pedestrian traffic.  Conducting work activities over a travel lane open to traffic is PROHIBITED. Conducting work ...
	C. Steel plate shall be placed over all open trenches/holes at the end of each working day.  Asphalt cutback shall be placed minimum width of 3 inches all around the steel plate.

	PART 4 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	4.1 MEASUREMENT
	A. Traffic Control for DISTRICT-WIDE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT will be measured by lump sum.
	4.2 PAYMENT

	A. The contract lump sum price paid for Traffic Control (DISTRICT-WIDE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT) shall include full compensation for furnishing all signs, labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals for doing all the work involved including...
	DOCUMENT 02600 – EARTHWORK AND EXCAVATION

	PART 1 GENERAL
	1.1 THE REQUIREMENT
	A. This Section includes all earthwork required for construction of the Work. Such earthwork shall include, but not be limited to the loosening, removing, loading, transporting, depositing, and compacting in its final location of all materials wet and...
	B. The CONTRACTOR shall provide all materials, equipment, and labor necessary to perform and complete all earthworks as shown on the Drawings and as specified herein.
	C. Excavations and backfill for appurtenant structures such as, but not limited to, maintenance holes shall be deemed to be in the category of trench excavation and backfill.
	1.2 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE

	A. Section 02200, Mobilization and Site Preparation
	B. Section 02800, Aggregate Base
	C. Section 02900, Asphalt Concrete
	1.3 REFERENCE SPECIFICATIONS, CODES, AND STANDARDS

	A. Without limiting the generality of other requirements of these Specifications, all work specified herein shall conform to or exceed the requirements of the Building Code and the applicable requirements of the following documents to the extent that ...
	B. Specifications, Codes and Regulations:
	1. California Department of Transportation Test Method Nos. 301 and 217
	2. Caltrans Standard Specification 2018, Section 19
	3. U.S. Corp of Engineers, Specification CW-002215
	C. This Section contains references to the following documents. In case of a conflict between the requirements of this Section and those of the listed documents, the requirements of this Section shall prevail. The latest edition of the following refer...
	1.4 CONTRACTOR SUBMITTALS

	A. A copy of this specification section, with any addendum updates included, and all referenced and applicable sections, with any addendum updates included, shall be submitted with each paragraph check-marked to indicate specification compliance or ma...
	B. Submittals shall be provided to confirm that material to be used comply with information specified herein.
	C. Certificates of Compliance. Certificates of Compliance shall be provided for all products and materials proposed to be used at the project site conform to requirements, and that all tests were conducted in accordance with the specification.
	D. The Contractor shall prepare a work plan detailing the order of work, waste excavation minimization and material handling
	1.5 QUALITY ASSURANCE

	A. General. It shall be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to accomplish the specified compaction for backfill or other earthwork. All soils testing will be done by a testing laboratory of the DISTRICT’s choice at the DISTRICT’s expense except as ot...
	B. Where soil material is required to be compacted to a percentage of maximum density, the maximum density at optimum moisture content shall be determined in accordance with ASTM D1557. Where cohesionless, free draining soil material is required to be...
	C. In case the first test and one retest of the fill or backfill show non-compliance with the required density, the CONTRACTOR shall accomplish such remedy as may be required to insure compliance. Subsequent testing after the first retest to show comp...
	D. The CONTRACTOR shall notify the ENGINEER at least 48 hours prior to performing any excavation.
	E. Particle size analysis of soils and aggregates shall be performed using ASTM D422.
	F. Determination of sand equivalent value shall be performed using ASTM D2419 or California Test Method No. 217, State of California, Department of Transportation.
	G. The determination of durability index shall be made using ASTM D3744.
	H. The determination of the resistance (R-Value) shall be made using ASTM D2844 or California Test Method No. 301, State of California, Department of Transportation.
	I. All materials to be used shall be natural materials. No recycled materials are acceptable.
	J. The CONTRACTOR shall provide access in the trench for the soil compaction testing technician or inspector. This shall include providing and properly installing safety equipment and temporary shoring to enable compaction testing at SEVERAL LEVELS in...
	K. Unified Soil Classification System. References in these specifications to soil classification types and standards are set forth in ASTM D2487. The CONTRACTOR shall be bound by all applicable provisions of said ASTM D2487 in the interpretation of so...
	L. Moisture Content:  The ratio, expressed as a percentage of the weight of water for a given soil mass to the weight of solid particles, shall be determined by ASTM D1557.
	M. Perform work as specified herein and in accordance with Section 19, “Earthwork” of the State of California Department of Transportation, Standard Specifications, dated 2018.
	N. If at any time, the Contractor encounters impacted soil or groundwater, as indicated by visual discoloration, noticeable odor, or evidence of asbestos fibers, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner.
	O. The Contractor is responsible for performing excavation to meet applicable OSHA safety standards and requirements
	P. The Contractor is responsible for determining the equipment and construction methods necessary to efficiently perform the work.
	1.6 DEFINITIONS

	A. Utility. Any buried pipe, conduit or cable.
	B. Open Trench. Any excavation deeper than 2 feet below original grade.
	1.7 SURVEY CONTROL

	A. CONTRACTOR shall verify that intended elevations for work are as shown on the Drawings.

	PART 2 PRODUCTS
	2.1 SUITABLE MATERIALS
	A. Class 2 Aggregate Base. – Refer to Section 02800, Aggregate Base, of these specifications.
	B. Native Material.
	1. Native material will be allowed for trench backfill and shall be material obtained from on-site excavations, provided the materials are not classified as unsuitable. Native materials shall be free of stones, lumps, and broken concrete, objectionabl...
	C. Type 1 Material – ¾” Crushed Rock.
	1. Type 1 material shall be clean, durable, natural 3/4-inch crushed (angular) drain rock.
	D. Sand.
	1. Sand shall be free of organics and other deleterious materials.
	2. Sand shall meet the following gradation requirements:
	3. Sand shall have a sand equivalent not less than 30.
	2.2 UNSUITABLE MATERIAL

	A. Unsuitable soils for fill material shall include, but not be limited to, all soils that, when classified under ASTM D2487, fall in the classifications of PT, OH, or OL. Type CH and MH soils will be permitted in unimproved areas only where required ...
	B. In addition, any soil that cannot be compacted sufficiently to achieve the percentage of maximum density specified for the intended use, shall be classed as unsuitable material.
	C. Materials Containing Detrimental Amounts of Organic Matter. Organic matter shall be no more than 5 percent. Amount of organic matter shall be determined based on ASTM Test Method D2974.
	D. Materials containing rock or similar irreducible material with a maximum dimension greater than 6 inches.
	E. Materials containing foreign manmade objects, such as construction debris.
	F. Materials of such unstable nature as to be incapable of being compacted to specified density using ordinary methods at optimum moisture content.
	G. Materials that are too wet to be properly compacted and circumstances that prevent suitable in-place drying prior to incorporation into the Work. However, the presence of excessive moisture in a material is not, by itself, sufficient cause for dete...
	H. Any material determined to be hazardous is defined as unsuitable material.
	I. Washed, smooth rock (pea gravel) is classified as unsuitable material.
	J. Materials that is unsuitable for the planned use.
	K. When moisture content of the material is not in conformance with this Specification, the material shall be classified as unsuitable material.
	L. Chemical testing for corrosivity shall be performed for all materials proposed for use as backfill for metallic pipe. The testing shall be in accordance with the requirements of California Test Methods 532 and 643 of the California Department of Tr...
	2.3 USE OF FILL AND BACKFILL MATERIAL TYPES

	A. The CONTRACTOR shall use the types of materials as designated herein, and as shown on the Contract Documents for all required construction.
	B. Fill and backfill types shall be used in accordance with the following provisions:
	1. Pipe bedding, pipe zone, trench zone, and final zone shall be as shown on the Contract Drawings, unless otherwise specified.
	2. Aggregate base materials under pavements, sidewalks, and curb and gutters shall be aggregate base material constructed to the thicknesses shown or specified.
	3. Backfill materials beneath concrete slabs on grade shall be ¾” crushed rock, as shown on the PLANS.
	4. Trench backfill and final zone backfill for pipelines under slabs shall be the same material as used in the pipe zone, except where specifically required otherwise by the Contract Documents.

	PART 3 EXECUTION
	3.1 GENERAL
	A. Trench excavation shall be in accordance with Caltrans Specifications 2018, Section 19, Earthwork.
	B. Excavation shall include removal of all waters that interfere with the construction work.
	C. Excavated spoils shall be dumped directly into trucks for off haul, as native excavated soil cannot be used as backfill. Dumping of excavated materials on adjacent pavement will not be permitted.
	D. Trench width is shown on the Drawings. If maximum trench width is exceeded, the CONTRACTOR shall consult the ENGINEER immediately, and the CONTRACTOR shall provide additional bedding, another more stringent type of bedding, or higher strength pipe ...
	E. Before lowering into the trench, the pipe shall in inspected for defects.  All cracked, chipped, or broken pipe shall be discarded.  The ends and interior of the pipe shall be clean.  Belled ends shall be laid upgrade.  Handling of the pipe shall b...
	F. Pipe shall be laid accurately to the staked line and grade.  All service connections shall be installed as indicated on the Drawings.  Where existing service sewers are to be connected, suitable fittings and adapters shall be provided by the Contra...
	G. Pipe shall be cleaned of all foreign matter, and water shall be kept out of trenches until joints have been completed.  When WORK is not in progress, open ends of pipe and fitting shall be securely closed to keep foreign matter and animals from ent...
	H. Location of the sewer laterals are approximate and may be changed by the Engineer.  Relocating of the sewer lateral will not add extra cost to the Owner, unless either of the following conditions result:
	1. The relocation results in a significant increase in the length of the lateral; or
	2. There are significant differences in the surface characteristics at the new lateral location which would result in substantial and foreseeable changes in construction methods and materials.
	I. Lateral connections to new sewer mains shall be made with a manufactured sanitary wye of the same materials as the mainline pipe.
	3.2 STRUCTURE AND ROADWAY EXCAVATION

	A. General. The CONTRACTOR shall submit an excavation plan for review before any excavation commences. Excavations in areas of pedestrian or vehicular traffic shall be open the minimum time necessary to complete the Work, but shall not exceed 4 days m...
	B. Steel Plates. Steel plates of 1-inch minimum thickness with adequate trench bracing shall be used to bridge across trenches at roadways where trench backfill and temporary patch have not been completed during regular working hours. Safe and conveni...
	C. Excavation Beneath Paved Areas. Excavation under areas to be paved shall extend to the bottom of the aggregate base. After the required excavation has been completed, the exposed surface shall be scarified, brought to optimum moisture content and c...
	3.3 PIPELINE AND UTILITY TRENCH EXCAVATION

	A. General. Unless otherwise shown, ordered, or accepted by the ENGINEER, excavation for pipelines and utilities shall be vertical trenches, unless otherwise shown.
	B. Existing utilities, maintenance holes, drainage structures, and other facilities shall be protected, supported, and kept in service.
	C. Excavation and pipe laying shall proceed up station or upstream unless otherwise approved by the ENGINEER.
	D. Trench Bottom. The bottom of the trench shall be excavated uniformly. The trench bottom shall be given a final trim, using a laser to set the string line for establishing grade, such that each pipe section when first laid will be continually in con...
	E. Open Trench. The maximum lengths of open trench permitted in any on location shall be the length necessary to accommodate the amount of pipe installed in a single day. The distance is the collective length at any location, including open excavation...
	1. Trench plates will be allowed to cover a minimum area over the end of the last section of pipe installed each day, provided the trench is properly shored and the plates are within barricaded area approved by the ENGINEER. Temporary backfill of the ...
	2. In other special circumstances, but only with the prior approval of the ENGINEER and the DISTRICT, City of San Jose, or Santa Clara County.
	3. When traffic plates are authorized, they shall be provided with non-skid coating and cold mix asphalt around the plate perimeter.
	F. Trench Over-Excavation. Where the Contract Documents indicate that trenches shall be over-excavated, they shall be excavated to the depth shown, and then backfilled to the grade of the bottom of the bedding.
	G. Over-Excavation. If the bottom of the excavation is found to consist of soft or unstable material that is incapable of properly supporting the pipe or structure, the ENGINEER shall be advised immediately. At the ENGINEER's direction, such material ...
	1. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain the ENGINEER's written approval prior to over-excavating. Any over-excavating and resultant backfill and compaction without such approval shall be at the CONTRACTOR's expense. The quantity of approved unsuitable material...
	3.4 DISPOSAL OF EXCESS EXCAVATED MATERIAL

	A. The CONTRACTOR shall remove and dispose of all excess excavated material in a legal manner at a site located off-site as selected by the CONTRACTOR and reviewed by the ENGINEER.
	3.5 BACKFILL- GENERAL

	A. Backfill shall not be dropped directly upon any structure or pipe. Backfill shall not be placed around or upon any structure until the concrete has attained sufficient strength to withstand the loads imposed. Backfill around water-retaining structu...
	B. Except for materials being placed in over-excavated areas, backfill shall be placed after all water is removed from the excavation.
	3.6 PLACING AND SPREADING OF BACKFILL MATERIALS

	A. Backfill materials shall be placed and spread evenly in layers, loose depth 8 inches or less.
	B. During spreading, each layer shall be thoroughly mixed as necessary to promote uniformity of material in each layer. Pipe zone backfill materials shall be manually spread around the pipe so that when compacted, the pipe zone backfill will provide u...
	C. Where the backfill material moisture content is too low to permit the specified degree of compaction, water shall be added before or during spreading until the proper moisture content is achieved. Jetting will not be permitted for compaction.
	D. Where the backfill material moisture content is too high to permit the specified degree of compaction, the material shall be dried until the moisture content is satisfactory.
	E. Storage of backfill materials overnight at the job site is prohibited, unless accepted by the DISTRICT.
	F. Bell or coupling holes shall be provided. Do not shovel slice bedding material into the bell or coupling hole.
	3.7 COMPACTION OF FILL, BACKFILL, AND EMBANKMENT MATERIALS

	A. Each layer of backfill materials as defined herein, where the material is graded such that at least 10 percent passes a No. 4 sieve, shall be mechanically compacted to the specified percentage of maximum density. Equipment that is consistently capa...
	B. Compaction of backfill adjacent to all subgrade structure walls shall follow a pattern of compaction that begins at the wall face and progresses outward to the outside edge of the excavation before beginning a new lift.
	C. Flooding, ponding, or jetting shall not be used.
	D. Class 2 Aggregate Base materials shall be compacted by means of at least 2 passes from a flat plate vibratory compactor.  ¾” Crushed rock bedding shall be placed in lifts no greater than six (6) inches at a time.
	E. Compaction Requirements. The following compaction test requirements shall be in accordance with ASTM D1557, or in accordance with ASTM D4253 and D4254, as applicable.
	F. Trench Backfill Requirements. The pipe has been structurally designed based upon the trench configuration. Where pipe embedment is disturbed after compaction, such as by the removal of sheeting and shoring, the DISTRICT may require recompaction to ...
	G. If the allowable deflection specified for the pipe is exceeded, the CONTRACTOR shall expose and reround or replace the pipe, repair all damaged lining and coating, and reinstall the pipe zone material and trench backfill as specified at no addition...
	3.8 PIPE AND UTILITY TRENCH BACKFILL

	A. Pipe Backfill. The pipe zone and pipe bedding is defined as that portion of the vertical trench cross-section lying between a plane 6 inches below the bottom surface of the pipe (i.e., the trench subgrade), and a plane at a point 12 inches above th...
	B. After compacting the bedding, the CONTRACTOR shall perform a final trim using a stringline for establishing grade, such that each pipe section when first laid will be continually in contact with the bedding along the extreme bottom of the pipe.
	C. The pipe zone shall be backfilled with the specified backfill material as specified in the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR shall exercise care to prevent damage to the pipeline coating, cathodic bonds, and the pipe itself during the installation...
	D. Trench Zone. After the pipe zone backfill has been placed as specified above, and after all excess water has completely drained from the trench, backfilling of the trench zone may proceed. The trench zone is defined as that portion of the vertical ...
	E. Final zone. Final zone is all backfill in the last 30 inches between the top of the trench zone and the bottom of the paved subgrade, and the last 24 inches between the top of the trench zone and the finish final grade in unpaved area.
	F. If compaction fails to meet the specified requirements, the CONTRACTOR shall remove and replace the backfill at proper compaction or shall increase the compaction to specified level by other means acceptable to the ENGINEER. Subsequent tests requir...
	G. Periodic compliance tests may be made by the ENGINEER at no cost to the CONTRACTOR to verify that compaction is meeting the specified requirements.
	3.9 DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS MATERIAL

	A. Remove excess earth materials, unsuitable materials, and debris from the site and dispose of it in a legal manner. Location of disposal site and length of the haul shall be the CONTRACTOR's responsibility. Site shall be located off DISTRICT property.
	3.10  UTILITIES

	A. Location
	1. A particular effort has been made to locate and indicate on the Contract Drawings all utilities and/or other facilities, which may conflict with, cross, or lie close to the Work. While the locations shown are believed to be reasonably correct, neit...
	2. The CONTRACTOR shall, before proceeding with the Work, confer with all agencies and utilities that have or may have above-ground and/or underground facilities in the vicinity of the Work. The purpose of the Conference shall be to notify said agenci...
	3. Where existing utilities and/or other facilities, above-ground and/or underground, are encountered during construction, they shall not be displaced or molested unless necessary. If it is necessary to relocate a utility or if a utility is disturbed ...
	4. A 12-inch minimum clearance shall be maintained at all utility crossings. Adjustments to the pipe alignment and elevation will be made by the ENGINEER where exploratory work indicates the need.
	B. Excavation Around Utilities.
	1. Excavation and other work under or adjacent to utilities shall not interfere with their safe operation and use.
	2. CONTRACTOR shall carefully probe to determine the exact location of utility, and hand excavate where necessary to avoid damages.
	3. In the event of damage incurred during construction to such structures property, CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the Owners or proper authorities, and shall arrange for immediate repairs at his expense.
	3.11 STREET MONUMENTS

	A. Any monuments or bench marks replaced by CONTRACTOR due to work shall be replaced in accordance with applicable DISTRICT’s details and requirements.
	3.12  SHORING REMOVAL

	A. Shoring Removal. Shoring shall be removed as soon as the trench backfill has been placed and compacted to a level adequate to support the trench walls, unless otherwise indicated. Compaction of the backfill shall be continuous throughout the shorin...
	3.13  TEMPORARY PAVING

	A. A minimum of 2 inches of hot-mix temporary asphalt shall be placed in finished trenches and rolled to a smooth surface at the end of each day, unless final paving can be completed or steel plates are authorized to cover trenches in paved streets. T...

	PART 4 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	4.1 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	A. The work included in this specification section will not be measured separately for payment.
	B. Full compensation for the work of this section will be considered as included in the prices for work performed under other contract items listed in the schedule of bid prices in the Bid Form, and no additional compensation will be made.

	END OF DOCUMENT 02600
	DOCUMENT 02700 - DEWATERING

	PART 1 GENERAL
	1.1  DESCRIPTION
	A. Section includes specifications for temporary dewatering systems if required.
	1.2  SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

	A. Remove water which accumulates in excavations during the progress of work so that all work can be done in the dry, unless otherwise approved by the Engineer. Keep excavated areas free from water while underground utilities or structures are constru...
	B. In addition to the other requirements specified herein, design the dewatering     systems to perform as follows:
	1. Prevent damage to adjacent properties, buildings, structures, utilities, and other work as a result of settlement or other groundwater-related effects.
	2. At all times, maintain groundwater levels over the entire excavation a minimum of 3 feet below the excavation grade.
	C. At all times, have on the work site sufficient pumping equipment for immediate use, including standby pumps for use in case other pumps become inoperable. Dispose of water in accordance with the detailed requirements specified herein and so as to c...
	D. Design dewatering system to prevent pumping fines from below grade or disturbing materials exposed at the excavation bottom.
	E. Furnish container for construction dewatering complete with baffles for the purpose of filtering silt prior to discharge of water.  Size container or containers to suit dewatering and storage demands.
	F. If the approved methods include displacing groundwater as concrete or other work is placed in excavations, the dewatering system shall capture groundwater as it is displaced and follow the procedures herein for its containment, analysis, and discha...
	G. Obtain jurisdictional authority’s specific discharge requirements prior to commencement of dewatering.
	1.3  SUBMITTALS

	A. Submit dewatering plan including shop drawings and design data including the following elements:
	1. The proposed type of dewatering system.
	2. Arrangement, location, and depths of system components.
	3. Complete description of equipment and instrumentation to be used, with installation, operation and maintenance procedures.
	4. Types and sizes of filters.
	5. Design calculations demonstrating adequacy of the proposed system and equipment.
	6. Methods of disposal of pumped water.
	7. Method of water quality monitoring.
	8. Type of filtration and chemical treatment of contaminated water, as applicable.
	1.4 DELIVERABLES

	A. Submit copies of dewatering plan as required for work of this Section, including any permits required for disposal of pumped water.

	PART 2 PRODUCTS
	PART 3 EXECUTION
	3.1 DEWATERING
	A. Except as otherwise indicated in the Contract Documents, perform dewatering to accomplish a lowering of measured static ground water level to an elevation which is suitable for the construction of structures below grade.
	B. When pumping is required to reduce groundwater levels, accomplish pumping in a manner that will not disrupt the surrounding environment.
	C. Do not turn off the dewatering system in a manner that the upsurge in water weakens the subgrade for completed excavation and structure foundation work.
	D. Construct, operate and maintain as required to complete the Work all necessary cofferdams, channels, pipes, flumes, drains, sumps, well points and protective works; and furnish, install, operate and maintain all necessary pumping and other equipmen...
	E. Storage tank:  Provide a minimum 2,500-gallon double-walled water storage tank on Site for the duration of the Work.  If more storage capacity is needed, provide additional storage tanks on Site.
	F. Water sampling and chemical analysis:  Water samples shall be collected from the holding tanks and submitted to a State-Certified chemical analysis laboratory.  Chemical analyses required for the samples shall at a minimum include:  TPHg following ...
	G. Perform additional chemical analyses that may be required for disposal or recycling of the water.  Laboratory chemical analysis reports associated with the water samples shall be provided to Town of Woodside.
	H. Remove storage containers, including those cleaned, and other dewatering facilities from the site at the completion of dewatering operations.
	I. Excavated trench, after dewatering, may be sealed water tight per State Standard Specification at the option of the Contractor in lieu of continual dewatering.
	3.2  CONTAINMENT, ANALYSIS, AND DISCHARGE OF GROUNDWATER EXTRACTED

	A. Containment: Upon extraction, store groundwater extracted in the process of construction dewatering in containers prior to discharge or disposal of water, as applicable. Keep containers locked to prevent accidental or purposeful discharge of the wa...
	B. Analysis:   Collect and analyze water samples taken directly from each storage container to verify that the extracted groundwater meets applicable discharge requirements.  Number of samples taken per container shall be at the sole discretion of the...
	C. Discharge Requirements: Discharge no water which exceeds regulatory requirements or the jurisdictional authority’s discharge requirements.
	D. Discharge:   Obtain jurisdictional authority’s specific discharge requirements prior to commencement of dewatering.  Subject to the discharge restrictions specified herein and upon written authorization from the jurisdictional authority, discharge ...
	E. Disposal:   In the event that extracted groundwater does not meet the discharge
	F. requirements criteria, provide for the disposal of the extracted groundwater in    accordance with General Provisions 7.16, Disposal of Material Outside of the Work Site. Clean dewatering containers, piping, pumps, and other dewatering facilities c...
	G. Use:   Extracted groundwater of sufficient quality as shown by test data may be used on site with Engineer’s written approval for those purposes approved by the Engineer.

	PART 4 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	4.1 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	A. The work included for dewatering will not be measured for payment.
	B. Full compensation for dewatering, if required, shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals for doing all the work involved in dewatering, complete and in place, as shown on the plans, as spe...

	END OF DOCUMENT 02700
	DOCUMENT 02800 – AGGREGATE BASE

	PART 1 GENERAL
	1.1 SUMMARY
	A. Section Includes:
	1. Aggregate base for trench backfill and course
	1.2 REFERENCES

	A. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM):
	1. ASTM C136: Test Method for Sieve Analysis of Fine and Coarse Aggregates
	2. ASTM D421: Practice for Dry Preparation of Soil Samples for Particle-Size Analysis and Determination of Soil Constants
	3. ASTM D1241: Specification for Materials for Soil-Aggregate Subbase, Base, and Surface Courses
	4. ASTM D1557: Test Method for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil Using Modified Effort
	5. ASTM D2419: Test Method for Sand Equivalent Value of Soils and Fine Aggregate
	6. ASTM D2844: Test Method for Resistance R-Value and Expansion Pressure of Compacted Soils
	7. ASTM D2922: Test Methods for Density of Soil and Soil-Aggregate in Place by Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth)
	8. ASTM D3017: Test Method for Moisture Content of Soil and Soil-Aggregate in Place by Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth)
	9. ASTM D3744: Test Method for Aggregate Durability Index
	B. State of California, Department of Transportation (Caltrans), Standard Specifications, 2018 edition:
	1. Section 10-6  Watering
	2. Section 26 Aggregate Bases
	1.3 SUBMITTALS

	A. General:  Submit under the provisions of Section 01330, Submittal Procedures
	B. Product Data:  Submit source, gradation, R-value, sand equivalent, and durability for the base material.
	C. Test Reports: Submit plant and field test reports as specified in these specifications.

	PART 2 PRODUCTS
	2.1 AGGREGATE BASE MATERIAL
	A. Aggregate for base at the time the base material is deposited on the prepared sub grade or in trench shall conform with ASTM D1241 and the following requirements:
	B. Class 2 Aggregate Base:
	1. Class 2 aggregate base shall be free of vegetable matter, reclaimed asphalt, concrete, glass and other deleterious substances. Coarse aggregate, material contained on the No. 4 sieve, shall consist of material of which 25 percent by weight shall be...
	Percentage Passing Sieves
	1-1/2 inch   3/4-inch
	Sieve Sizes   Maximum   Maximum
	2-inch    100    -----
	1-1/2 inch   90-100   -----
	1-inch    -----   100
	3/4-inch   50-85    90-100
	No. 4    25-45    35-55
	No. 30    10-25    10-30
	No. 200   2-9    3-9

	2. Class 2 aggregate base shall conform to the following additional requirements:
	ASTM Test
	Tests     Method  Requirements
	Resistance (R-Value)  D2844   78 min.
	Sand Equivalent   D2419   30 min.
	Durability Index   D3744   35 min.
	2.2 SOURCE QUALITY CONTROL

	A. The Contractor shall perform sampling and tests of the aggregate base material in accordance with the ASTM Test Methods herein specified and provide copies of such tests to District, to determine compliance with specified requirements. Samples shal...
	B. Aggregate grading or sand equivalent test shall represent no more than 500 cubic yards of base material or one day’s production, whichever is the greater amount.

	PART 3 EXECUTION
	3.1 EXAMINATION
	A. Section 01300 - Administrative Requirements: Verification of existing conditions before starting work.
	B. Section Verify substrate has been inspected, gradients and elevations are correct, and are dry.
	C. The Contractor shall call for an inspection by the Engineer and obtain written acceptance of the prepared sub grade or sub base before proceeding with the placement of aggregated base course.
	D. The Subgrade or subbase to receive aggregate base course, immediately prior to spreading, shall conform to the compaction and elevation tolerances indicated for the material involved and shall be free of standing water and loose or extraneous mater...
	3.2 PREPARATION

	A. Correct irregularities in substrate gradient and elevation by scarifying, reshaping, and re-compacting.
	B. Do not place fill on soft, muddy, or unsuitable surfaces.
	3.3 AGGREGATE PLACEMENT

	A. Level and contour surfaces to elevations and gradients indicated.
	B. Add small quantities of fine aggregate to coarse aggregate as appropriate to assist compaction.
	C. Maintain optimum moisture content of fill materials to attain required compaction density.
	D. Use mechanical tamping equipment in areas inaccessible to compaction equipment.
	E. Aggregate base shall be applied over the prepared subgrade or subbase and compacted (95% relative compaction unless otherwise noted) in accordance with Section 26 of the Caltrans Standard Specifications 2018.
	F. Aggregate base shall have minimum uniform thickness after compaction of dimensions indicated.  Where not indicated compacted thickness shall be 6 inches.
	G. All compaction expressed in percentages in this section refers to the maximum dry density as determined by ASTM D1557.
	3.4 TOLERANCES

	A. Section 01400 - Quality Requirements: Tolerances.
	B. Maximum Variation from Thickness: ¼ inch.
	C. Maximum Variation from Design Elevation: ½ inch.
	3.5 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

	Elsewhere covered
	3.6 SCHEDULES

	A. Under pavement:
	1. Compact placed aggregate materials uniformly to achieve dry density minimum ninety-five percent (95%) of maximum density.

	PART 4 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	4.1 MEASUREMENT
	A. Aggregate base will not be measured separately for payment.
	4.2 PAYMENT

	A. No separate payment will be for aggregate base.  Full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals for doing all the work involved, complete and in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in these specifica...
	END OF DOCUMENT 02800
	DOCUMENT 02900 – ASPHALT CONCRETE

	PART 1 GENERAL
	1.1 REQUIREMENTS
	A. The CONTRACTOR shall perform all work associated with asphalt concrete pavement and base as shown on the Drawings and/or as specified herein including all labor, materials, equipment, supplies, and facilities associated with providing a finished pr...
	1.2 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE

	A. Section 02400, Site Clearing
	B. Section 02600, Earthwork and Excavation
	1.3 REFERENCE SPECIFICATIONS, CODES, AND STANDARDS

	A. Without limiting the generality of other requirements of these Specifications, all work specified herein shall conform to or exceed the requirements of the Building Code and the applicable requirements of the following documents to the extent that ...
	B. This section contains references to the following documents. In case of a conflict between the requirements of this section and those of the listed documents, the requirements of this section shall prevail. The latest edition of the following refer...
	1.4 CONTRACTOR SUBMITTALS

	A. A copy of this specification section, with any addendum updates included, and all referenced and applicable sections, with any addendum updates included, shall be submitted with each paragraph check-marked to indicate specification compliance or ma...
	B. Submittals shall be provided to confirm that material to be used comply with information specified herein.
	C. The CONTRACTOR shall submit, in writing, materials testing reports, job-mix formulas, and other pertinent information satisfactory to the ENGINEER demonstrating that the materials and methods the CONTRACTOR proposes to utilize comply with the provi...
	D. Certificate of Compliance of Proposed Materials. Certificate of Compliance with the specifications shall be provided prior to start of the Work. The Certificate of Compliance shall identify the name of the material, aggregate source, name of the su...
	E. Delivery Tickets. The CONTRACTOR shall provide delivery tickets to the ENGINEER at the time of delivery of each load of product, including aggregate subbase, aggregate base, asphalt concrete, liquid asphalt, and sealant. Each delivery ticket shall ...
	1.5 QUALITY ASSURANCE

	A. The DISTRICT may employ a testing laboratory to perform all quality assurance testing and inspection testing as may be required by this Section.

	PART 2 PRODUCTS
	2.1 AGGREGATE BASE
	A. Materials for aggregate base shall be Class 2 material as specified in Section 02600, Earthwork and Excavation.
	2.2 PRIME COAT

	A. Prime coat shall be Grade SC-250 liquid asphalt complying with the requirements of AASHTO M82 (ASTM D2027). Grade SC-70 liquid asphalt complying with the requirements of Caltrans Standard Specification 2018 Section 93 may be used when acceptable to...
	2.3 TACK COAT OR PAINT BINDER

	A. Tack coat of paint binder shall be emulsified asphalt Grade SS-1 in conformance with Caltrans Standard Specification 2018 Section 39.
	2.4 ASPHALT CONCRETE

	A. Asphalt concrete shall be HMA Type A.
	B. Asphalt binder to be mixed with the mineral aggregate shall be steam-refined paving asphalt grade designation AR-4000 conforming to Section 92 of the California State Specifications. Asphalt binder for temporary paving shall consist of liquid aspha...
	C. The aggregate shall be medium grading for top lift(s) (1/2” max. aggregate size) and, the aggregate shall be medium grading, for the bottom lift(s) (3/4” max. aggregate size) in conformance with Caltrans Standard Specification 2018 Section 39.
	2.5 FOG SEAL

	A. Fog seal shall be emulsified asphalt Grade SS-1 or CSS-1, conforming to Section 37 of Caltrans Standard Specifications 2018.

	PART 3 EXECUTION
	3.1 GENERAL PAVING AND GRADING
	A. Where pavement restoration is required due to trenching, the road section shall be restored to the as-built section. In no case shall the section be less than that indicated in the Contract Documents.
	B. Existing curbs and sidewalks being demolished shall be replaced to match the existing curb and sidewalk.
	C. Where trenches are within 2 feet from the lip of the gutter or the edge of the pavement, the CONTRACTOR shall remove and replace the pavement to the lip of the gutter or the edge of the pavement.
	D. Failed pavement adjacent to the trench shall be removed and replaced by the CONTRACTOR. Any pavement damaged by the CONTRACTOR shall be removed and replaced by the CONTRACTOR.
	E. All residents in each area to be paved shall be notified by the CONTRACTOR at least 48 hours in advance of the paving work. Each notice shall indicate the approximate duration that the road will be closed.
	3.2 SUBGRADE PREPARATION

	A. The subgrade shall be prepared in conformance with Caltrans Standard Specification 2018 Section 19 & 25, unless modified by this Section.
	B. All soft material which will not compact readily and all unstable material shall be removed in conformance with Section 02600, Earthwork and Excavation.
	C. Subgrade preparation and compaction and determination of subgrade stability shall be performed under the observation of the ENGINEER. In no case shall lime or cement treatment be used to stabilize subgrade.
	D. Finish subgrade shall be within the tolerance established in Caltrans Standard Specification 2018 Section 19 & 25.
	3.3 AGGREGATE BASE

	A. Aggregate base shall be provided where shown and to the thickness shown and shall not vary more than 0.05 foot above or below the established grade. Imported aggregate bases shall be delivered to the job site as uniform mixtures and each layer shal...
	B. Where the required thickness is more than 6 inches the base materials shall be spread and compacted in two or more layers of approximately equal thickness and the maximum compacted thickness of any one layer shall not exceed 6 inches. The relative ...
	C. The surface of the aggregate base after compaction shall be hard, unyielding, uniform, smooth, self-draining, and true to grade and cross-section.
	3.4 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT

	A. Vertically saw-cut all bituminous pavements, regardless of the thickness prior to excavation. Cuts shall be made with an approved saw. Pavement shall be removed from the trench utilizing two or more separate saw-cuts. The initial pavement cut shall...
	3.5 PAVEMENT PREPARATION

	A. The CONTRACTOR shall clean the surface by sweeping, blowing or other means to remove all loose particles of paving, all dirt and all other extraneous material immediately before applying the prime coat.
	3.6 PRIME COAT

	A. Prior to placing of pavement, a prime coat of Grade SC-250 liquid asphalt shall be applied to the compacted base or subgrade and all vertical surfaces that abut the new paving at a rate between 0.30 and 0.50 gallon/square yard.
	3.7 TACK COAT OR PAINT BINDER AND FOG SEAL

	A. A tack coat or paint binder shall be applied to existing paved surfaces where new asphalt concrete is to be placed on or against existing pavement. It shall also be applied to the contact surfaces of all cold pavement joints, curbs, gutters, manhol...
	B. Fog seal shall be applied to limit shown on the plans after trench has been restored to permanent condition.
	3.8 ASPHALT CONCRETE

	A. The CONTRACTOR shall install piping, backfill, and bedding before placing asphalt concrete.
	B. The CONTRACTOR shall notify the ENGINEER before the paving has begun. At the time of delivery to the Work site, the temperature of mixture shall not be lower than 260 degrees F nor higher than 320 degrees F, the lower limit to be approached in warm...
	C. Asphalt concrete shall not be placed when the atmospheric temperature is below 50 degrees F or during unsuitable weather.
	D. Application of a prime coat and/or tack coat shall not occur until all surface preparation has been performed.
	E. The asphalt concrete shall be evenly spread upon the base to such a depth that, after rolling, it will be of the minimum specified cross section and grade of the course being constructed. All spreading and compacting shall be in conformance with Se...
	F. The depositing, distributing, and spreading of the asphalt concrete shall be accomplished in a single, continuous operation by means of a self-propelled mechanical spreading and finishing machine designed especially for that purpose. The machine sh...
	G. Spreading, once commenced, must be continued without interruption.
	H. Asphalt concrete, when required to be distributed by hand, shall be placed using a shovel into a mass of asphalt, the asphalt concrete shall not be broadcast or scattered resulting in segregation.
	I. The mix shall be compacted immediately after placing. In areas too small for the roller a vibrating plate compactor or a hand tamper shall be used to achieve thorough compaction.
	J. The relative density after compaction shall be 95 percent of the density obtained by using ASTM D1188 or D2726. A properly calibrated nuclear asphalt testing device shall be used for determining the field density of compacted asphalt concrete, or s...
	K. The finished grade shall be flush with the adjacent existing pavement, shall conform to the cross slope or crown of the street, and shall be within the tolerances of the “straightedge” test as defined in Section 39 of the Caltrans Standard Specific...
	L. The depositing, distribution, and spreading of each lift of the asphalt concrete shall be accomplished in a single, continuous operation.
	3.9 ASPHALT CONCRETE UTILITY CUT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT

	A. Preparation of Existing Asphalt Concrete Pavement. The existing asphalt concrete pavement shall be saw-cut 12 inches past the edge of the trench to provide a smooth joint for the new pavement. The CONTRACTOR may saw-cut the pavement before excavati...
	B. Placement of asphalt concrete shall be in conformance with this Section.
	3.10  PROTECTION OF STRUCTURES

	A. Provide whatever protective coverings may be necessary to protect the exposed portions of buildings, curbs, posts, guard fences, equipment pads, and any other structures from splashing oil and asphalt from the paving undesirable matter that may com...
	3.11  CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

	A. Settlement of replaced pavement over trenches within the warranty period shall be considered the result of improper or inadequate compaction of the sub-base or base materials. The CONTRACTOR shall promptly repair all pavement deficiencies noted dur...

	PART 4 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	4.1 MEASUREMENT
	A. Asphalt Concrete (and other associated materials required in conjunction with the installation/placing of asphalt concrete) will not be measured separately for payment.
	4.2 PAYMENT
	A. Full compensation for asphalt concrete shall include furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals for doing all the work involved, complete and in place including prime and tack coat, fog seal, and as shown on the plans, as sp...


	END OF DOCUMENT 02900
	DOCUMENT 03000 – CONCRETE CURB, GUTTER, DRIVEEWAY, & SIDEWALK

	PART 1 GENERAL
	1.1 THE REQUIREMENT
	A. The work specified in this Section includes furnishing all labor, materials and equipment required to remove concrete curb, gutter, driveway, and sidewalk  and replace with new concrete curb, gutter, driveway, and sidewalk to properly complete cons...
	1.2 PROCEDURES

	A. Concrete curb, gutter, driveway, and sidewalk shall conform to Road and Airport County of Santa Clara Standard Details, City of San Jose and in accordance with Section 73, “Concrete Curbs and Sidewalk” of the State Standard Specifications. Curb and...
	B. Where pipe is to be placed under an existing concrete curb and gutter, the concrete shall be removed at construction joints unless their length is more than 10 feet, in which case, the concrete shall be saw-cut as directed by the Engineer.
	C. Backfill shall be thoroughly compacted for the entire depth of the trench prior to concrete pour.
	1.3 MEASUREMENT

	A. Measurement for curb and gutter will not be made for payment.
	1.4 PAYMENT

	A. Full compensation for removal and installation of concrete curb and gutter shall furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals for doing all the work involved, complete and in place as specified herein and as directed by the En...

	END OF DOCUMENT 03000
	DOCUMENT 03100 – SEWER PIPES AND APPURTENANCES

	PART 1 GENERAL
	1.1 THE REQUIREMENT
	A. This Section covers the Work necessary to furnish, install, test, and complete the polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe and fittings as shown on the Drawings and specified herein.
	1.2 REFERENCE SPECIFICATIONS, CODES, AND STANDARDS

	A. The following references are part of this Section. In case of conflict between the requirements of this Section and those of the listed documents, the requirements of this Section shall prevail. The latest edition of the following references at the...
	1.3 CONTRACTOR SUBMITTALS

	A. Submittals shall be provided to confirm that materials to be used comply with information specified herein.
	B. Submit list of pipe and fittings to be used, which includes the following information, where applicable:
	1. List of Pipe Fittings to be Used
	2. Manufacturer
	3. Model Number, if applicable
	4. Size and Schedule
	5. Material
	6. Pressure Rating
	7. Catalog Data
	8. Drawings
	C. Certificates and Compliance. Certificates of compliance shall be provided for all products and materials proposed to be used under this Section as specified in the referenced standards and the following supplemental requirements:
	1. Hydrostatic proof test reports
	2. Sustained pressure test reports
	3. Burst strength test reports
	D. All expenses incurred in making samples for certification of tests shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR.
	1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE

	A. Tests. Except as modified herein, all materials used in the manufacture of the pipe shall be tested in accordance with the requirements of this Section, and as specified in the referenced standards, as applicable.
	B. The CONTRACTOR shall have said material tests performed at no additional cost to the DISTRICT. The ENGINEER shall have the right to witness all testing provided that the CONTRACTOR’s schedule is not delayed for the convenience of the ENGINEER.
	C. In addition to those tests specifically required, the ENGINEER may request additional samples of any material for testing by the DISTRICT. The additional samples shall be furnished at no additional cost to the DISTRICT.
	1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

	A. All plastic materials should be stored out of direct sunlight.

	PART 2 PRODUCTS
	2.1 POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) PIPE
	A. All PVC pipe and fitting shall be suitable for use with raw wastewater.
	1. PVC pipe shall be SDR 26 and SDR 17, as shown on the DRAWINGS, unless shown otherwise.
	2. Pipe shall be joined using solvent cement in accordance with ASTM D2564 and ASTM D1784. Primers used on solvent cement joints shall be in accordance with ASTM F656, and handling of primers and solvent cements shall conform to ASTM F402. Solvent cem...
	3. Threaded Lubricant. Threaded lubricant shall be Teflon tape. Lubricant, if required, shall be suitable for lubricating the parts of the joints in the assembly. The lubricant shall have no deteriorating effects on the gasket and pipe material.
	4. Solvent Cement. All connections to be joined by PVC (polyvinyl chloride) solvent cement shall be industrial grade and shall conform to ASTM D2564 and shall bear a dated stamp on the container indicating the date of manufacture. Manufacture and visc...
	B. Gravity Sewer Pipe.
	1. Gravity sewer pipe shall conform to ASTM F679 with integral bell gasketed joints. Polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe shall be manufactured from rigid, un-plasticized polyvinyl chloride compound complying with ASTM D1784, Type 1, Grade 1 (Class 12454-B o...
	2. Joints. Unless otherwise indicated or shown on the Contract Drawings, PVC pipe and fittings shall have gasketed or solvent welded joints. Elastomeric gaskets shall conform to ASTM F477. All gaskets shall be suitable for corrosive air from the wet w...
	3. Polyethylene Plastic Pipe shall be high-density polyethylene pipe (HPDE) and meet the applicable requirements of ASTM F714 Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Pipe (SDR-PR) Based on outside diameter of AWWA C906, ASTM D1248 and ASTM D3350.  The maximum wall ...
	a. Depth of cover 0 – 16.0 feet minimum SDR21
	b. Depth of cover > 16.0 feet minimum SDR17

	PART 3 EXECUTION
	3.1 GENERAL
	A. Upon completion of installation, piping systems shall be flushed and cleaned.
	B. All rigid polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe shall be cut square, burrs removed, made up, and installed in accordance with the pipe manufacturer’s recommendations, as approved. Offset shall be as recommended by the manufacturer for the maximum temperatu...
	C. Pipe shall not be laid when the temperature is below 40 degrees F, nor above 120 degrees F when exposed to direct sunlight. Ends to be joined shall be shielded from direct sunlight prior to and during the laying operation.
	D. Provide adequate ventilation when working with pipe joint solvent cement.
	E. Wyes shall be 6 inch by 4 inches of the same materials as the main line pipe and shall be same type gasket connections.  Tees will not be allowed.
	F. Bend shall be standard 4 inch; 11.25 degree (1/8) pipe bends.  Bends and joints shall be as specified for service pipe.
	G. Service Pipe installed as part of main sewer line construction shall be standard 4, 6, 8, or 10 inch service pipe.  PVC service pipe shall be 4, 6, 8, or 10-inch SDR-26 pipe which complies with the same requirement as the main sewer.
	H. All wyes bends, service pipe and other appurtenances shall be provided as required for each connection.  All joints shall be installed so as to provide watertight connection.
	I. Wye joint shall be installed as directed, with the branch turned to the proper direction.  Wye shall be firmly supported by methods and materials used for bedding of main line pipe.  Branch of wyes shall be installed at an angle 45 degree to the sp...
	J. Coupler band shall be stainless steel banded Mission “Flex-Seal ARC Coupling”, Fernco “shear-ring” or approved equal.
	1. Steel banded couplings must be made with steel that has been produced in the United States.
	3.2 TESTING

	A. Conduct pressure and leaking tests on all newly installed pipelines.  Furnish all necessary equipment, instrumentation, and material including temporary plugs and blind flanges and make all taps in the pipe, as required.  The Engineer will monito t...
	B. Where any section of pipe provided with concrete thrust blocking, do not make the pressure test until at least 5 days have elapsed after the thrust blocking is installed.
	C. Conduct the tests on piping after the piping has been completely installed, including all thrust blocks and anchors.
	D. All leaks shall be repaired and all leaking lines retested as approved by the ENGINEER.
	E. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the deflection “mandrel” test for the sanitary sewer system as specified herein. If the amount of allowable pipe deflection is exceeded, the CONTRACTOR shall uncover the pipe and shall improve the quality of the pipe zo...
	F. All sanitary sewer systems shall be tested as specified. All sanitary sewer gravity lines shall be tested for leakage using a low-pressure air test. All sanitary sewer maintenance holes shall be tested for leakage as specified herein. Maintenance h...
	G. During flushing of the sewer lines, the maintenance hole at the low end of the new line shall be plugged and incoming water pumped to a drain point approved by the DISTRICT. Before the plug can be removed, all sand, silt, gravel, and other foreign ...
	H. Deflection. All PVC non-pressure pipe shall be tested for deflection obstructions and protruding laterals by passing a “mandrel” from the nearest downstream structure to the nearest upstream structure. The “deflection test” procedure shall be accep...
	I. Air Pressure Test. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all materials, equipment, and labor for making an air test. Air test equipment shall be approved by the ENGINEER.
	1. The CONTRACTOR may conduct an initial air test of the sewer main line after densification of the backfill but prior to installation of the laterals. Such tests will be considered to be for the CONTRACTOR’S convenience and need not to be performed i...
	2. Each section of the sewer shall be tested between successive maintenance manholes by plugging and bracing all openings in the main sewer line and the end of all laterals. Prior to any air pressure testing, all pipe plugs shall be checked with a soa...
	3. The final leakage test of the sewer main line and laterals shall be conducted in the presence of the ENGINEER.
	4. The test procedure shall be conducted by first increasing the pressure within the line to approximately 4 psi using a compressed air supply. After the air supply is turned off or disconnected, there shall be a two-minute waiting period to allow sta...
	5. At the CONTRACTOR’S option, joints may be air tested individually, joint by joint, with the use of specialized equipment. The CONTRACTOR shall submit its joint testing procedure for the ENGINEER’S review prior to testing. Prior to each test, the pi...
	3.3 CLEANING

	A. Care shall be exercised during fabrication to prevent the accumulation of weld rod, weld splatter, pipe cuttings and filings, gravel, cleaning rags, etc., within piping sections. All piping shall be examined to assure removal of these and other for...
	B. Following assembly and testing, but prior to final acceptance, all pipelines shall be flushed with high velocity water or flushed with a cleaning ball. All accumulated construction debris and other foreign matter shall be removed. Flushing velociti...
	C. All leaks shall be repaired and all leaking lines retested as approved by the ENGINEER.
	D. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the deflection “mandrel” test for the sanitary sewer system as specified herein. If the amount of allowable pipe deflection is exceeded, the CONTRACTOR shall uncover the pipe and shall improve the quality of the pipe zo...

	PART 4 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
	4.1 MEASUREMENT
	A. The work performed for PVC pipe will be measured for payment on a lump sum basis.
	4.2 PAYMENT

	A. The contract lump sum price paid for PVC Pipe listed in the Bid Schedule shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in excavating, installing and backfi...

	END OF DOCUMENT 03100
	DOCUMENT 03200 – CLEANING AND TELEVISION INSPECTION FOR SANITARY SEWERS

	END OF SECTION 03200
	DOCUMENT 03300 – SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION
	DOCUMENT 03400 – CURED-IN-PLACE LINING (CIPP)
	A. The Contractor shall submit installation procedures, equipment details, and an insertion location plan to the Engineer for review.
	B. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer verification that the CIPP liner complies with the ASTM testing requirements. Verification of compliance shall be in written form of a finalized, signed and dated independent laboratory report. The date o...
	C. CCTV inspection of all installed CIPP liner and any subsequent repairs shall be performed in accordance with Section 1307-3, “Television Inspection”, of these Special Provisions. A DVD copy of the CCTV inspection shall be submitted to the Engineer ...
	a) First order of work:  CCTV as specified herein.
	b) The CIPP liner shall extend the full length of the pipe reach to be rehabilitated and shall provide a structurally sound, impermeable, seamless, joint-less, tight fitting pipe-within-pipe that when cured, is mechanically bonded to the host pipe. Th...


	END OF DOCUMENT 03400


	Text1: Item 9.A.
	Text2: Item 9.B.
	Text3: Item 10.C.
	Text4: Item 5.A.1.
	Text5: Item 5.A.5.
	Text11: Item 10.D.


